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Directors’ Profile
EE/BIT

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung, aged 61, is Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Shum is responsible for the formulation and implementation of
corporate policies and strategies. Mr. Shum has over 30 years
of experience in international trading and investment in the
Mainland China.

Shum Chun, Lawrence, aged 41, is Managing Director of the
Company since 2009. Mr. Shum graduated from the University
of Saskatchewan with a degree in Bachelor of Arts, majoring in
Economics. Prior to joining the Company in 2004, Mr. Shum has
pursued a career in finance and accountancy in an international
accounting firm. He is the son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

Cen Ziniu, aged 51, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
and has been involved in trading businesses in Hong Kong
and the Mainland China, holding senior managerial positions.
Mr. Cen has extensive experience in dealership management,
business formation and marketing. He is responsible for market
development of the Group and overseas operations. He is a
cousin of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

Siu Ka Fai, Brian, aged 57, graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
He conducted a further course of study in real estate at the
University of British Columbia in Canada and then had over
20 years experience in the investment and real estate field,
working with various reputable companies in Hong Kong and the
Mainland China. Mr. Siu joined the Group in 2005 and is currently
in charge of the Group’s liquefied petroleum gas purchasing and
liquefied petroleum gas re-export operations.
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Directors’ Profile
EE/EIT

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony, aged 68, has been independent
non-executive director since August 2001. Mr. Cheung is an
associate member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly: the Hong Kong Polytechnic)
with a higher diploma in Accountancy. Mr. Cheung has over 30
years of experience in account, finance and investment banking
profession specializing in equity/debt fund raising, mergers and
acquisition and corporate restructuring before working with
publicly listed companies undertaking corporate management,
planning and strategies development functions. Mr. Cheung is
an independent non-executive director of Tou Rong Chang Fu
Group Limited and Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited,
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict, aged 61, has been independent
non-executive director since March 2006. Mr. Chan is a holder
of a Master of Science Degree in Applied Mechanics (Cranfield
Institute of Technology, U.K.) and a registered professional
engineer in Hong Kong and the U.K. Mr. Chan is graduated with
First Class Honours in mechanical engineering and the recipient
of the U.K. Institution of Mechanical Engineers Outstanding
Project Price Award, 1981. For the last 20 years, Mr. Chan
has taken up key management positions in engineering and
technology businesses in Hong Kong, ranging from pumping
equipment and control systems, mini-piling, and software and
hardware engineering businesses.

Dr. Xu Mingshe, aged 64, was accredited a doctor’s degree
in economics by the Xiamen University. He graduated from the
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Languages with a bachelor’s
degree in English, holds the title of Senior Economist, and has
over 20 years’ experience in the banking-finance field. Since
1980, Dr. Xu has held in succession a series of position in the
top management level in banking sector in the Mainland China,
and has been well connected in the finance and corporate
sectors both in the Mainland China and overseas. Dr. Xu’s
expertise includes public listings, project financing, syndicated
loan, debt restructuring and merge and acquisition. He has
taken part in a considerable number of overseas listing of
Chinese enterprises and other major fund raising exercises. Dr.
Xu was appointed as independent non-executive director of the
Company on 1 July, 2006.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

On behalf of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the report on the audited
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 to the
shareholders.

During 2019, the overall economy of Southern China had seen
a stable growth but to some extent, remained plagued by the
crossfire of the China-US trade war. Despite the valiant efforts
of the government in stimulating the domestic demand to tackle
the trade war, the pace of economic development was slower
than expected, where the market demand also slightly weakened
but no noticeable market shrinkage had been observed. As the
government has been keenly promoting environmental protection
and energy saving initiatives, the demand for traditional
energy products for civilian usage had diminished; coupled
with the continuing emergence of a range of new energies,
the structure of energy consumption has undergone a further
evolutionary change. For such, the Group has already adopted
a series of measure in response to the government initiatives
in environmental protection, for instance, building new energy
stations and establishing the first hydrogen station in Guangzhou.

Facing the landscape of a highly competitive market, the Group
had picked up its pace in exploring new markets and capturing
new clients during the year. Our sales volume were still on
an upward climb; however, hampered by the depreciation of
Renminbi and the drop in some high profit margin business
like auto-gas, the Group’s annual profits had declined from
approximately HK$700 million, to approximately HK$600 million.

Throughout these years, the Group has been concentrating
its businesses in the Southern China region. Our success in
establishing a highly efficient logistics chain and an extensive
end-user and wholesaling sales network has fueled the massive
rise in our profitability. Nonetheless, putting our business
emphasis merely on one single market would pose certain risks,
and therefore the only long-term solution would be to explore
overseas markets in line with China’s Belt and Road Initiative,
and to break through from the current confinement of relying on
one single market, so as to diversify our risks, and continuously
improve our profitability and investment returns.

Since 2017, | personally have been leading the key management
of the Group to go beyond Hong Kong and the Mainland China.
Holding the trophy of success in lowering the procurement costs
of oil products in Hong Kong after establishing the Group’s
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

first procurement centre in Malaysia, we celebrated another
triumph of officially kick-starting our marine bunkering business
in Singapore. During the year, the Group had boosted oil
bunkering business to reach an annual sales volume of around
4,500,000 tonnes, that is an average monthly sales volume as
high as nearly 375,000 tonnes. At the same time, the Group had
also started supplying oil to other places like Malaysia, laying
a strong foundation for it to achieve a monthly sales volume of
above 400,000 tonnes in the future. Over the year, |, together
with the management, had paid visits to Malaysia to facilitate our
preliminary negotiations with the local government and relevant
departments on the matter of the establishment of our oil
refinery. It is hoped that the construction of the refinery can be
commenced in around late 2020. | sincerely believe, such project
will fundamentally propel the Group to the success of growing its
businesses abroad in the long run. Such refinery will also ensure
the effectiveness of providing prime products to our end-user
sales network, which in turn favor the majority of the Group’s
oil businesses to further lower their operating costs, enhance
their competitiveness, and realize their operations under a self-
sustained model.

| firmly believe, the status quo can only be changed by the power
of putting words into deeds, and turning ideas into actions for
realizing a better future, which also was, is and will always be the
business philosophy that NewOcean firmly upholds.

Given that substantial capital is expected to be summoned for
implementing our overseas investments, the Board does not
recommend the declaration of a final dividend for 2019.

| hereby take the opportunity to express on behalf of the Board
the appreciation we have to our staff for their contribution in the
past year, and look forward to the creation of a better future
where we all unite to brave any challenges ahead in the Group’s
spirit of perseverance. Seeing the escalation of the global
epidemic of novel coronavirus at present, may we wish every one
of you well and the epidemic end soon.

Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

8 April 2020

Annual Report 2019 —Z— N FEE#H

mRBAA  BNBHET NS E N
BEIBER - 5F  £SEEE L IARE
EEH 2 F 44,500,000 (EEFHE A
#9375,000 Mg ) 37 [ & [A) H & #o & 40 55 2R gn
#h - M B2E A EE £ E Z 400,000 ME A
HFHEENER - FRNEAAREREAER
EF BRI EOR - A E R F R B
TR BRBEFIEITRI S - TEAA 2T
2020 F R ABTEHE - ARARBLIEEY
ESEESINEREEBGRERENED
ER » BB A W B AN S B A 4R n iE &
HEEEHEENER  FEEXITHOHME
BE LT — PRELERAE - BAERSF
N WERALBRHEEEN -

AANRELERT SHEE/ERTHS
BEMERMN BEREXFHRK - E2FH BB
H BRERRRBENEBREHLEER

BERBATEDRAEESETEING
B EEEEFTRE2019FERHMKE -

RAFRELEE RREFSUAEEDR
THEBE-FMERBRTEORH - FE
NRACERASENEREN - BREE B
B AEFERE REHNUTABRENE
IR MUBRBERHER  MIEASERE

il

EY1
Er”

20204 4 48 H

7



8

NewQOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1582 REBHR Q5

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 25T wm AT

Market Overview

International crude oil market — In 2019, oil prices
did not see any major fluctuations, but lingered between
US$50 and US$75 per barrel. During the year, despite the
China-US tug-of-war over trade as well as the continued
tension between the Middle East and the United States, the
market did not take a too huge hit on oil prices. Comparing
to the past such as 2016 which was a year of boom and
bust, oil prices seemed to be relatively stable in 2019. At
present, the general market anticipates that crude oil has
substantially regained its equilibrium pricing; nonetheless,
the play between the cutting production by oil-producing
countries such as Saudi Arabia, and the increase in shale
oil production by the United States still acts as a crucial
factor in disrupting such balance. As the global economic
growth loses some steam worsened by China-US trade
war and the novel coronavirus outbreak, these are definitely
not good news for the economy which has been placing
a weight on petroleum to push its own growth, thus the
Group expects continued fluctuating prices of oil products
in the future.

The oil and gas consumer market in the Mainland
China — In respect to China, the performance of upstream
industries, such as the industries of exploration and
oil refinery, remained bolstered by the steady recovery
in oil products prices for the majority of 2019. But for
downstream players, although the country has been
proactively expanding its domestic demand for cushioning
the impact of the China-US trade war, the consumption of
downstream industries could only remain on a mild rising
trend, hinting the possibility that Chinese economy may
continue to be in the doldrums, which may in turn lower the
demand for petroleum. In the past one year, the demand
for liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) for the usages of re-
export and civilian consumption remained stable, although
the vehicle-related demand of such had been continuously
declining, as hampered by the existence of liquefied natural
gas (“LNG”), electric energy and the structural changes in
taxi market. In the long run, the demand for oil products
and LPG in the Mainland China will only be able to set for a
moderate growth. When new energies such as natural gas,
electric energy or even hydrogen energy are successively
emerging into the market, meanwhile the price rise in oil
products and LPG in recent years have only favoured
other new energies to win more market competitiveness,
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE LT wm AT

together with the launch of environmental protection
policies by the government, the domestic demand for oil
products and LPG will likely to suffer some hit in the future.
Given all these factors, and also with the tragedy that the
novel coronavirus epidemic since late 2019 have already
caused certain economic casualties in China jeopardizing
the economic growth, the Group will strive to tap into
the overseas new markets while consolidating its existing
customer market.

The exchange rate of Renminbi — Renminbi performed
well during the first half of 2019, during which the
currency pair, Renminbi against the US dollar, had once
hit a high of around 6.7. Since August, the rate however
started to decline and even fell to a low of around 7.2 at
one time, but eventually eased off to around 7.0 by the
end of December. Given that part of the Group’s main
incomes are denominated in Renminbi, the depreciation
of the currency poses a considerable impact on both our
profitability and performance. For calming the ripples of
volatile exchange rates, the Group has deployed a series
of defensive measures, such as strengthening its main
businesses denominated in the US dollar by, for instance,
expanding our marine bunkering business in Singapore to
not only drive our US dollar cash inflow but also minimize
any unnecessary exchange of Renminbi, and expediting
the exchange of Renminbi into the US dollar at times of
Renminbi depreciation.

Performance overview
2.1 Basic situation

Remained plagued by the China-US trade war, China
market had seen a domestic economic slowdown
during 2019. Under such a less satisfactory operating
environment, our excellent procurement team and
end-user sales networks had given full play to their
market competitive edges, which contributes to the
continued success of expanding the operating scale
of our oil products/chemical products (collectively
as “oil products”) during the year. Thanks to their
efforts in expanding our sales footholds in the
overseas markets, our sales volume such as the
sales of oil products had grown correspondently.
However, given the intense competitions in energy
market, coupled with the continuous diminishing sales
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 25T wm AT

volume in our auto-gas refueling business, the overall
operating gross profits of our LPG business had been
narrowed. Additionally, hindered by the escalating
finance costs, the Group’s profits were unfavourably
impacted, which had slightly lowered our net profits
as compared to that of last year.

During the year, with the increase in our sales volume,
the balances of our inventories and trade receivables
at the end of the year were then accounted for
approximately half of our current assets. In the field of
coping operating risks, the Group has owned years of
solid experience and has always been well-prepared
from the start. Prior to any sales of credits, the Group
would always conduct strict credit control on all of its
clients, and amid the process, would always perform
prudent credit management measures. Besides, in
order to ensure the sustainable expansion of sales
in a low-risk environment, the Group would also
purchase credit insurance, or obtain effective security
or collateral for certain trade receivables, and at the
same time maintain its inventory turnover within 30
days.

Apart from the ongoing developments of its energy
business in the Southern China region, the Group
had started to conceptualize the plan of expanding its
business to the overseas markets as early as 2016,
and started its LPG wholesaling business in Africa.
At the end of 2017, the Group established its first
procurement centre in Malaysia, which mainly assisted
its marine bunkering businesses in Singapore, Hong
Kong and the Mainland China for diversifying sourcing
channels and lowering their procurement costs. In the
last two years, the Group had picked up its pace in
developing its oil business, eventually winning a wide
recognition among the industry with its professions.
During 2019, our Group’s oil bunkering business
had achieved an annual sales volume as high as
around 4,464,000 tonnes, representing a raise of
approximately 1,768,000 tonnes. In the third quarter
of 2019, the Group kick-started its marine bunkering
business in Malaysia, which had already generated
a remarkable sales volume of approximately 80,000
tonnes within a few months. Additionally, the floating
warehouse with the size of 300,000 tonnes that the
Group has started leasing in Malaysia since late 2018
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2.2

had already been well-equipped and discharged its
functions effectively, in return further positioned us
well for any growth in our sales volume. Therefore,
the Group foresees the share that our oil bunkering
businesses contributing to our sales volumes will
continue to climb.

In order to further improve the industry chain of its
energy business, the Group began to approach and
negotiate with the Malaysian government since mid-
2017 to express its interest in constructing an oil
refinery in Malaysia. After some efforts, the Group
had successfully obtained relevant licences in year
2018 and 2019. In 2020, the Group will actively and
continuously applying the remaining governmental
approvals of all kinds, where its construction of the
refinery is targeted to commence in late 2020. In the
coming years, the Group will work on accelerating
the progress of rolling out its refinery so as to further
reduce the costs of its oil products.

On the whole, the Group continued to fire up its
determination to adjust its operating strategies
during 2019, that is to go international with its solid
foundation laid in China for maximizing its market
opportunities and diversifying its operating risks.
Moving forward, we will gradually better our industry
chain. In the long run, we aim to achieve self-
sufficiency in most of the aspects and avoid the
plight of relying on a single sales market or sourcing
channel, so that we can better manage our business
growth, increase our overall profit generating ability,
and at the same time reduce our overall operating
costs to the greatest extent.

Operating income, net profit and basic earnings
per share

During the year, the Group had achieved a total
revenue of approximately HK$27,791,913,000
(among which, the revenue of energy products
was approximately HK$26,809,177,000,
contributing around 96.46% of the total revenue),
representing a decrease of approximately
7.38% as compared with the total revenue of
approximately HK$30,007,805,000 (among which,
the revenue of energy products was approximately

2.2
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2.3

HK$29,308,766,000, contributing around 97.67% of
the total revenue of the same period of the year) in
last year. During the year, the sales volumes of energy
products had surged more than 800,000 tonnes, yet
the average prices of LPG and oil products of 2018
had diminished by around 15%, which in turn slightly
brought down our revenue.

During the year, the Group recorded a net profit
of approximately HK$607,110,000, representing a
decline of approximately 9.45% as compared with
the net profit of approximately HK$670,456,000
of last year. Our gross profits also decreased by
approximately HK$84,740,000 during the year, which
in turn dragged our net profit down by approximately
HK$63,346,000. These could be mainly due to the
non-subsiding shrinkage in our sales of auto-gas
refueling which is with high gross margins, and the
spikes in our expenses such as selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses and finance costs
due to our expansion in overseas new markets.

In 2019, the Group did not engage in any fund-
raising activities in relation to our shares. Therefore,
for the twelve months ended 31 December 2019, the
weighted average number of the Company’s issued
ordinary shares was approximately 1,468,124,216
shares, representing a decrease of 2,164,016 shares
as compared to the 1,470,288,232 shares for the
twelve months ended 31 December 2018. During the
year, the basic earnings per share were approximately
HK$0.44, representing a drop of around 15.38%
over the basic earnings per share of approximately
HK$0.52 in last year.

Gross profits

During the year, our total gross profits were
approximately HK$1,882,257,000, representing a
decline of around 4.31% as compared with the total
gross profits of approximately HK$1,966,997,000
in the same period of last year. During the year, the
total volume of the Group’s energy products sold
had been on its continuous upward climb; however,
with the downward movements of average gas and
oil prices during the year, together with the fact that
fierce competitions on the market had shown no

2.3
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2.4

2.5

2.6

signs of easing, the sales volume of our auto-gas
refueling business yielding high gross margins had
declined. Those reasons are negative factors affecting
the gross profits in 2019. However, in 2018, there
was a recorded provision of HK$120 million made on
the basis of net realizable value due to the impairment
in inventories, however, such provision was not
necessary for the current year, our gross margin thus
stood at 6.77%.

Net exchange gain and loss

Hit by the declaration of the China-US trade war,
the exchange rate of Renminbi against the US dollar
during the year had worsened by approximately
2.0%; therefore, as of 31 December 2019, the Group
recorded a net exchange loss of approximately
HK$49,330,000.

Changes in fair values of derivate financial
instruments

The continuous growth in the sales volume of oil
products had put the Group with a considerable
amount of inventory of these products. In order to
mitigate any negative impact on our interests posed
by price fluctuations of oil products, the trade war
and global economic uncertainties, the Group had
entered into several derivative contracts for oil
commodities in accordance to its oil product inventory
level for the purpose of hedging and de-risking. The
profits of these hedging activities were approximately
HK$9,561,000.

Finance costs

During the year, due to the large volume of purchases
of oil products, together with the increases in average
inventory level and the relatively large increment
in its trade receivables, the Group had to utilize
a substantial sum of its bank borrowings to meet
with the needs induced by the increase in liquidity.
Since the end of 2018, the Group’s total borrowings
had reached HK$7 billion. Therefore, the finance
costs used in this respect rose to approximately
HK$358,485,000, representing a significant increment
of approximately 25.99% as compared with the
finance costs of approximately HK$284,525,000 in
last year.

2.4

2.5

2.6
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2.7

2.8

Net current assets

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had its
net current assets amounting to approximately
HK$5,047,011,000, and its current ratio of
170.683%, representing a drop of approximately
HK$823,423,000 as compared with the net current
assets of approximately HK$5,870,434,000 (current
ratio: 193.77%) as of 31 December 2018. Overall, the
liquidity of the Group’s short-termed assets remained
on a considerably secured level.

Fixed assets and investments

Throughout the year of 2019, the Group had invested
approximately HK$130 million into the construction
project of its headquarter located in Zhuhai. Such
increment had already been reflected in the items
of ‘construction in progress’ within the fixed assets,
and ‘properties under development for sale’. The
headquarter in Zhuhai is composed of five buildings
which had already had all of their roof capped and
are now undergoing interior renovation. Since the
third quarter of 2019, the Group had launched sales
of Block A and B, which are apartments with an
expected handover date being scheduled to the
second half of 2020.

As the Group aimed to centralize its resources on
boosting the monthly turnover volume of its Malaysian
procurement centre of oil products up to 300,000 to
400,000 tonnes, as well as to reserve its funds for
the development of its refinery in Malaysia, the Group
had not invested in other investment projects, but
had paid approximately HK$ 570 million in advance
as at 31 December 2019 for purchasing construction
materials, refinery machines and equipment for the
construction of its refinery in Malaysia. The Group
expects that the construction of such refinery will
begin in late 2020.

Due to the fact that the natural gas market in the
Guangdong Province had yet to mature but faced
uncertainties, the Group had only invested a smidgen
of resources into planning and laying the sales
network in the Guangdong Province.

2.7

2.8
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2.9 Gearing ratio

As of 31 December 2019, the total balance of
the Group’s bank and other borrowings was
approximately HK$7,054,410,000. Meanwhile,
our bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and
cash balances were amounted to approximately
HK$2,648,902,000. The equity attributable to
the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$8,009,678,000. According to this computation,
the percentage of the net bank borrowings to
the equity attributable to owners (i.e. the gearing
ratio) was 55.00%, which was lower than that of
approximately 62.08% of last year.

3. Performance review

3.1 Segment performance

In 2019, the LPG business, oil product business,
electronics business and other businesses of
the Group had achieved an operating income
of approximately HK$27,791,913,000 in total,
representing a decline of 7.38% as compared
with the operating income of approximately
HK$30,007,805,000 in last year. The proportions of
the revenue brought by the three businesses were:

LPG (HK$’000)

LPG (F#7T)
2019 7,519,226 27.05%
2018 9,957,788 33.18%

During the year, the three businesses had achieved
total gross profits of approximately HK$1,882,257,000
and their respective contribution to the total gross
profits of the Group was:

LPG (HK$’000)

LPG(F#T)
2019 953,030 50.63%
2018 1,341,630 68.21%
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Oil products (HK$’000) Electronics (HK$’000)

Wk (FET) BF(FET)
19,289,951 69.41% 982,736 3.54%
19,350,978 64.49% 699,039 2.33%
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Oil products (HK$’000) Electronics (HK$’000)
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585,937 29.79% 39,430 2.00%
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3.2 RERMEERENK

3.2 Energy products business

Sales volume of LPG in tonnes LPGH#HEE ()
(percentage contributed to the (EEHEEEEN %)
total sales volume of the period)

Sales volume of ol products in HmiEEE ()
tonnes (percentage contributed HEMAEEEN %)
to the total sales volume of the
period)

Total sales volume in tonnes BHES ()

In 2019, the Group had achieved the sales of
energy products of approximately 7,465,000 tonnes,
representing a growth of 13.09% as compared with
the sales volume of approximately 6,601,000 tonnes
in the same period of last year.

3.2.1LPG business

Over the past few years, the emergence of new
energies indeed fettered the development of traditional
clean energies such as LPG on automobile and
civilian usage in a long run. When the volume of auto-
gas refueling continued to shrink, shadowed by some
factors such as the China-US trade war and global
economic downturn, the sales volume of LPG under
a number of sales categories including wholesaling,
industrial customers and bottled LPG had also seen
a drop of around 10% respectively. In 2019, the LPG
sales volume of the Group amounted to approximately
1,848,000 tonnes, representing a decrease of
approximately 259,000 tonnes as compared with the
sales volume of approximately 2,107,000 tonnes of
last year.

Throughout the year, the LPG business recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$7,519,226,000,
indicating a plunge of nearly 24.49% as compared
to the revenue of approximately HK$9,957,788,000
in the same period of last year. The decrease in
business revenue was mainly due to the drop of
nearly 15% in average prices and the decline in sales
volume.

Increase

Full year 2019 Full year 2018 (decrease) %
20195 25F 201825 EMORD) %
2,107,000 (259,000)

(31.92%) (12.29%)

4,494,000 1,123,000

(68.08%) 24.99%

6,601,000 864,000

(100.00%) 13.09%
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During the year, the gross margin of the LPG
business was 12.67%, representing a slight drop of
approximately 5.90% as compared with the gross
margin of 13.47% of last year.

Procurement

In 2019, the Group procured a volume of
approximately 826,000 tonnes of goods from
overseas, representing a decline of 21.93% as
compared with approximately 1,058,000 tonnes in
last year. The goods procured from the refineries
in China were approximately 1,016,000 tonnes
which was similar to last year’s 1,061,000 tonnes.
During the year, the total LPG procurement were
approximately 1,842,000 tonnes, representing a
decrease of approximately 13.07% as compared to
the approximately 2,119,000 tonnes of last year.

Sales

In 2019, the total sales volume of LPG was
approximately 1,848,000 tonnes, representing a drop
of around 12.29% as compared with approximately
2,107,000 tonnes in 2018.

Sales category

Annual Report 2019 —Z— N FEE#H
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Full year 2018 Decrease %
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Based on the information above, almost all the
LPG sales categories in the Mainland China had
experienced shrinkage to various extents during
the year, as compared with the sales volumes
recorded in the same period of last year. When
the China-US trade war has lasted for more than
one full year, despite the efforts of the Chinese
government in launching policies to stimulate its
domestic consumption, the overall economy has been
undermined by a basket of uncertainties, which in turn
dragged down the sales of bottled LPG, and also the
sales to our industrial customers, other terminals and
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bottling plants clients. On one hand, the shrinkage
in the volume of auto-gas refueling was relatively
serious. In Guangzhou, the LPG auto-gas refueling
market was targeted at buses and taxis as its core
sales targets. Because of the government policy, a
part of the buses had to switch to the use of liquefied
natural gas, which did not only cut the number of LPG
buses, but also their demand for automotive LPG.
On the other hand, the taxi industry was prone to
serious under-utilisation as affected by the improper
on-line car hiring services. In the circumstance that
the demand for LPG from buses and taxies both
declined due to different grounds, the shrinkage in
the business of auto-gas refueling had then become
unavoidable.

3.2.2 0il products business

During the year, the Group achieved a total sales
volume of around 5,617,000 tonnes of oil products,
representing a growth of approximately 24.99% as
compared with approximately 4,494,000 tonnes of
last year.

The oil products business recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$19,289,951,000, which
was comparable to the revenue of approximately
HK$19,350,978,000 of last year. Due to the drop
of nearly 15% in the average prices of oil products,
the revenue remained unchanged despite the rise of
around 24.99% in the sales volume.

While the sales volume grew 24.99%, the
actual increase in our gross profits leaped
approximately 44.77%, amounting to approximately
HK$848,233,000 (2018: approximately
HK$585,937,000). The gross margin of our oil
products business also increased from approximately
3.083% from last year, to approximately 4.40% in
2019. The major reason is that in 2018, our cost of
sales included a one-off provision of HK$120 million
made on the basis of the net realizable value of
inventories.
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Procurement

During the year, the Group procured oil products of
approximately 5,523,000 tonnes in total, representing
an increment of approximately 25.64% as compared
to approximately 4,396,000 tonnes of last year;
among which, the volume procured outside the
Mainland China (including Hong Kong, Singapore and
etc.) reached nearly 3,369,000 tonnes, representing
a growth of approximately 815,000 tonnes (an
increment of around 31.91%) as compared with
approximately 2,554,000 tonnes in last year. The
volume of procurement conducted in the Mainland
China was approximately 2,154,000 tonnes,
representing an increase of approximately 16.94% as
compared to approximately 1,842,000 tonnes in last
year.

g

SEFAREBR® 5,523,000
WE -8R 2= 4F 494,396,000 F 7+
#4925.64% o H A 7E B EINE
BEE - NS ETHRENE
%) /3,369,000 M8 + Lt ¥ & F 4
2,554,000 MF + 32 0 7 49815,000
MR- A (3618 %) & 31.91%) ° £
NETRENE 4 A2,154,000
WE - L ¥ K F 491,842,000 18 » 1%
18474 16.94% °

Sales $E
Region of sales Full year 2018
HENE 2018F 27
Hong Kong/Singapore B/
Oil products/chemical products e/ L IRER 4,529,000 tonnesi 3,041,000 tonnes!if 48.93%
China hE
Oil products/chemical products e/ L TBER 1,088,000 tonnesi 1,453,000 tonnes (25.12%)
Total sales volume HHEE 5,617,000 tonnesB 4,494,000 tonnes i 24.99%

In 2017, the Group began the establishment of its
procurement centre in Malaysia; meanwhile, it had
also enlarged the size of its leasing floating warehouse
for oil storage from 100,000 tonnes at the beginning
to 300,000 tonnes at present, for supporting its
marine bunkering and wholesaling businesses in
regions such as Singapore and Hong Kong. The
Group’s oil bunkering business in Hong Kong and
Singapore had also seen its sales volume booming
from the annual record of 2,018,000 tonnes (i.e. a
monthly average volume of around 170,000 tonnes)
in 2018 to that of approximately 3,826,000 tonnes
(i.e. a monthly average volume of 320,000 tonnes) in
2019, altogether reaffirming the two years of efforts of
the Group. In order to avoid the market concentration
risk, our Group’s long term goal is to develop
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overseas market by using our existing facilities. The
Group will continuously to build up a vertical supply
chain by using our existing resources (i.e. letter of
credit and bank and cash) in an optional way. Due to
the limitations of our resources, the resources put on
other markets and products such as the wholsaling of
chemical products will be reduced.

During the year, the sales volume of oil products in
the Mainland China had decreased approximately
365,000 tonnes, representing a fall of around 25.12%.
QOur oil products business in the Mainland China has
adopted a development model which is similar to the
one that is practiced in the Zhuhai LPG Terminal, that
is to make use of infrastructure such as its existing oil
terminal and leased oil terminal to be the distribution
points for the promotion of the wholesaling
businesses of shipping and automotive transportation.
The sales of oil products (at sea and on land) in the
Mainland China has built a solid customer base and
was able to generate a relatively stable sales volume,
with the gross profit margin standing steady at around
4%. Nonetheless, due to the reallocation of resources
by the Group for exploring the bunkering markets in
overseas, our oil products businesses, whether at sea
or on land, had been slightly shrank. In contrast, the
chemical products market in the Guangdong Province
was highly narrowed with a volatile wholesale
customer base, whereas the prices and gross profit
margins had also seen wide fluctuations due to a
spectrum of factors. For such, the Group believes
that a relatively long period of time will be necessary
before we can successfully connect with the end-
user customers of the chemical products. During the
year of 2019, the Group had significantly reduced
the amount of injected resources on this aspect,
but allowed the limits for issuing letter of credit from
banks and its cash to be diverted into our other prime
markets for development, for instance, our marine
bunkering business in Singapore and Malaysia. In
particular, as the market demand for low-sulphur oil
has started to thrive since the end of 2019, which is
a kind of oil that costs double that of high-sulphur oil,
the level of liquidity required by the Group has been
lifted, highlighting the fact that the trading of chemical
products will continue to decline in the future.
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3.3

3.4

Electronics business

During the year, the electronics business recorded a
revenue amounting to approximately HK$982,736,000
in total, representing an improvement of nearly
40.58% as compared with the revenue of
approximately HK$699,039,000 in last year. The gross
profits contribution of the electronics business was
approximately HK$80,994,000, indicating a spike of
approximately 105.41% as compared with the gross
profits of around HK$39,430,000. The electronics
business is not our prime business of development,
thus contributing less than 4% to our business as a
whole.

Other businesses

LNG auto-gas refueling station business — Currently,
the LNG efforts are still under development but the
prospect of its market is likely taking a hit under the
impact brought by new energies. Our existing projects
have been screened, through which we have also
undertaken initiatives to abandon projects which only
have a slim chance of making a profit to our Group.
Instead, we will continue to focus on devoting our
resources to invest into other potential projects.

Hydrogen station — During 2019, the Group spent
around RMB20,000,000 to construct the first
hydrogen station in Huangpu district of Guangzhou.
The target customers are mainly logistical vehicles.
The Group will keep developing this business under
the support of the local government in Guangzhou.

Real estate business — Such business mainly focuses
on the construction of the headquarter located in
Zhuhai. Since the third quarter of 2019, the Group
had launched the pre-sale of Block A and B, with
the sales proceeded received in advance reaching
approximately HK$29,557,000 as of 31 December
2019. It is expected that the handover of these
properties will commence since the second half of
2020.

3.3

3.4
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Business outlook

In the past, the Group has always been focusing on the sale
of energy products in the Southern China region. Having the
backdrop of the expanding oil and gas production globally,
and also with the fact that the Southern China is the most
sizeable target market within China, all operators in the
industry has been aiming to boost their distribution volume
to grow their market share, which has led to a highly
competitive landscape. Iced by the declaration of trade
war between China and the United States and the novel
coronavirus epidemic, China has undergone an economic
slowdown. However, the issue of oversupply is not a
major issue for operators who has owned a huge end-
user market and fully integrated production chains such as
NewOQOcean Group. As far as those operators stand firm to
secure their market share and leverage on their advantage
of maintaining lower costs per tonne than their industry
peer, these operators will most likely have the advantages
to stay in the market, then generate a reasonable return
as the demand and supply reaches a balance eventually.
However, they may inevitably suffer on their profitability to
a certain extent while waiting for the market to adjust itself.
Even so, it is definitely possible to avoid such risk, which is
by exploring more new markets to diversify our risks.

Accordingly, the Group has established its development
blueprint in 2017, that is to expand its overseas business
in a proactive manner. Holding the trophies of success in
expanding our business in the marine bunkering market
of Singapore in 2018 then Malaysia in 2019, we will
continue to adopt the same operating strategies, that are
designed to push our developments forward with our end-
user markets to facilitate the rapid growth in our business
volume. Meanwhile, we are reviewing the Group’s industry
structure and operating model so as to continuously
improve the efficient coordination between our industry
and logistics chains. It is expected that such measures
will enhance our operating efficiency and further lower our
operating costs.
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Oil products business — The developments of our oil
products business will be expedited

(1)

As for our bunkering business, since Hong Kong
or ports along the coastal lines of the Mainland
China are not quite considered to have geographical
advantages, our foothold established in Singapore
plays a very crucial role for improving our marine
bunkering business. At the end of 2018, we had
successfully leased a floating warehouse with a size
of approximately 300,000 tonnes in Malaysia as a
procurement centre, which had already sufficiently
helped lowering the procurement costs of fuel oil for
marine uses. It also successfully helped the Group to
tap into the marine bunkering market in Singapore,
as well as at Port Klang in Malaysia. Our long-term
objective is to further increase the market share, and
explore stable and long-term suppliers and clients.

We are currently planning to expand our marine
bunkering business to other ports in Malaysia;
meanwhile, our company in Singapore will provide
supply services of oil products and technical support
for these new markets.

Other than laying the groundwork for operations in the
Mainland China, we also acquired shareholdings of
three companies which engaged in auto-fuel trading
and oil products transportation in Hong Kong in late
2017, which in turn allowed the Group to become
the primary agent of the four major oil companies in
Hong Kong and officially tap into the auto-fuel market
in Hong Kong. The annual volume of oil sales on land
reaches approximately 100,000 tonnes.

We are not only facilitating our cooperation with
our partners in the Mainland China to construct
refueling stations at prime locations in the Guangdong
Province, but also considering establishing sales
networks of automotive refueling stations by means of
acquisition and mergers.
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LPG business — The retail markets located in the
Southern China region (including Macau and Hong Kong)
will still be the core of our business.

(1)  We are currently exploring more opportunities to
develop more end-user markets for our bottled LPG.
Meanwhile, we will enhance our management towards
distributors and provide them with more support
in order to improve our sales volume, and thus our
profitability.

(2) We are actively exploring more LPG industrial users.
When the emergence of new energies has already
affected the volume of auto-gas refueling for civilian
uses, the volume of LPG for industrial uses is still
skyrocketing on a year-on-year basis, thus our sales
team in the Mainland China will continue its efforts to
look for new industrial clients.

(8) As to the expansion of our business to the overseas
markets, we have begun wholesaling LPG to Africa
two years ago. At present, we are seeking suitable
land parcels in Africa for the construction of LPG
terminal gas plants and bottling plants. We aim to tap
into the local end-user markets as soon as possible,
which are expected to yield healthy return on capital.

Improvement on our industry chain — Vertical
integration will be conducted.

(1) The Group is now pressing ahead with the
establishment of its refinery project in Malaysia. We
believe that a significant part of the Group’s annual
sales volume of oil and gas will be from the products
manufactured by the refinery upon its completion
Thus, the oil and gas business of the Group will be
able to be largely self-sufficient, instead of relying on
the supply from other sources.

(2)  After the works of such vertical integration, the Group
will be able to achieve better costs management
under a low-risk ecosystem. This will also enhance
the Group’s bargaining power on the international
markets, thus broadening its procurement channels
and realizing its promise on creating more sales
opportunities.
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We are confident that a long-term growth in the sales of
the Group and improvements in our profitability can only
be achieved by the continuous expansion of our end-user
sales network in the Southern China region, the active
expansion of sales markets in the overseas markets, as
well as the vertical integration of our supply chain.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend and
propose that the profit for the year be retained.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Friday, 5 June 2020. A notice convening the annual general
meeting will be published and dispatched to the shareholders in
due course in the manner required under the Listing Rules.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 2 June 2020 to Friday, 5 June 2020 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general meeting. In
order to qualify for attendance and voting at the annual general
meeting, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s Share Registrars, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 1 June 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2019, apart from the pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$360,218,000, the Group also pledged its oil
vessels with carrying value of approximately HK$89,880,000 to
secure bank loans granted to the Group.

Annual Report 2019 —Z— N FEE#H

BPRERAEEHLERERRES
WEEE AERERRENEED
B M EHERHEERA A TUE
B B R E A E R E A%
EEHEFES o

KRR

EEeY TEBARERPRE - LIRFERE
RERAH -

BREBFEXEROFMERMDBEER

AAFEFTN202066 A5H(EHA)EH
BRAFAS BREFASBEHEBREL
MHRABEZHER TR TE TR -

KA BB 202056 A2 H(EH# =) E2020
FoASH(EHR)BREEEMA)GEH
BERMHBEFER  UWHEETARLEFERRBSE
AEVTHRELEBRENREER - BFEER
HEEERERBEFRGTRNE LRE - KRE
BABHBREXHERAERERIBAR
RAZBNBRFEL P ESEMERBERA
A M ABEBEFERFERNBRE 1837 A M
6418 - MHREAN2020F6 A1H(EH
—)NT 4RS00 AIRE - UETTER ©

BRAR

HE2019F K2018F 12 H31 H » AKEIL
BEARREE -

EEEH
R2019F 12 A31H @ KE BIBRITHERLY

360,218,000 Lo * AREE TN AEBIRITE
XA BR E 1B 49 89,880,000 5 7T 2 S HE 4 o



26 |

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited 3188 REBHBR L

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 25T wm AT

EMPLOYEES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed 1,222 (2018:
1,280) full time employees in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore and
other regions in the Mainland China. The Group remunerated
the employees based on their performance, experience and
prevailing market practice. Employee benefits provided by the
Group include a mandatory provident fund scheme and medical
insurance scheme.
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The Company is committed to good corporate governance
principles. Its Board recognises that an effective corporate
governance framework and high governance standard are both
essential to the Company’s long-term development. Set out
below is the corporate governance report prepared by the Board
in accordance with Appendix 14 “Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report” of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 the Company
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
as set out in the corporate governance code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 for the Listing Rules, save for a
deviation from the provision governing tenure of non-executive
directors mentioned below.

Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for specific term, subject to re-
election. The Company deviated from this provision in that none
of the non-executive directors are appointed for a fixed term,
instead their tenure of office are governed by the provisions
for retirement by rotation and re-election as provided in the
byelaws of the Company (these provisions are described in the
paragraph headed “Non-executive Directors” below). The board
of directors believes that the fixing of the tenure of non-executive
directors by way of provisions contained in the bye-laws, and
the shareholders’ right to re-elect retiring non-executive directors
as contained in the bye-laws, will serve the long term interests
of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, the measures
adopted by the Company are no less exacting than those in the
CG Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code during the year.
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Board of Directors (the “Board”)

The Board currently comprises four executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. Biographical details
of all directors of the Company are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Profile” on page 4 to page 6. The current
structure and composition of the Board have provided it with an
appropriate mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
and the Board reviews its structure and composition from time to
time to ensure that appropriate expertise and independence are
maintain.

Membership of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2019 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)

Cen Ziniu

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond (retired by rotation on 5 June 2019)
Wang Jian (resigned on 1 October 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

All directors have disclosed to the Company the number and
nature of offices they held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitment, including the identity of the
public companies or organizations and indication of the time
involved. Managing Director Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence is the
son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company and a
cousin of Mr. Cen Ziniu, executive director of the Company. The
Board establishes the strategic direction for the development of
the Company and sets out the objectives of the management,
with operational decisions and execution delegated to the
management. The Board also approves annual budgets, major
funding proposals and investment proposals, and oversees the
processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk
management, financial reporting and compliance. The Board is
responsible for the corporate governance functions of the Group,
including the development and review of the Group’s policy and
practices on corporate governance.
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With the assistance of the company secretary, Board meetings
are initiated by the Chairman and all directors are consulted on
the agenda. Procedures are established for all directors to have
free access to board papers and related information, to review
the Group’s internal controls, and to have the services of the
company secretary to ensure matters are transacted in the Board
in accordance applicable rules and practices. Directors may seek
independent professional advice upon reasonable request to
discharge their duties. All committees of the Board have specific
terms of reference clearly defining their respective powers and
responsibilities and committee meetings are held as required
under these terms of reference. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their
decisions or recommendations.

The following table shows the attendance of directors at
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meetings of the Board during the year ended 31 December

2019:

Name of director

EEgS

Executive Directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)

Cen Ziniu

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond (retired by rotation on
5 June 2019)

Wang Jian (resigned on 1 October 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

During the vyear,

all directors received regular briefing and

CEPN e o

= %

Number of Meetings

Attended
HESERS
HITEFE -
B (FE) 4/4
BB (EFMEEE) 4/4
ZF4 4/4
eV 4/4
AR (R2019F6 H5H
# AR T) 1/4
TER(R2019F 108 1H
FHEF) 2/4
BIIHNITESE :
w898 4/4
R fIE A& 4/4
BREMLEB LT 4/4

FA- MAEFCEHUBI AR R EBH G

updates on the Group’s business, operation and corporate
governance matters. They also attended training relevant to the
industry, regulatory updates or directors’ duties to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills as listed company directors.

®EREH HEEERTCEEREHE KBS
IME 2T - R A RBIRRE 5k
FEERENEI UEREFSRERLTA
RIE BN KR o

29



30 |

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited ¥/88EREBER A A

Corporate Governance Report

/\;LI/_/"\-/'\—\
E/E#&D

Through participating in the Company’s board meetings and
committees meetings, and review of briefings and updates
on the Company’s business and affairs, all directors are able
to make contribution required from them to the Board and to
the development of the Company. The Company has received
confirmation from each director that he has given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company during the year
under review. The Company has also received from the directors
a record of training received by them during the year which is
summarized as follows:

PREFEBZ2EARFTNESTEEENE
Eees \&%ﬁﬁ AMEBREHZE
EWELNEEFTERARAHE
&ﬂﬁ%kaaﬁ ARBEKREBE
SRR REFABHARANEHRATRE
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Type of Training

Name of director Attended
EElE HEZIER
Executive Directors: HITERE -

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) BME(FE) A B
Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BB (EFLELHE) A, B
Cen Ziniu E2F4 A B
Siu Ka Fai, Brian eV A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUINTESE -

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony K897 A, B
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIBAZ A B
Dr. Xu Mingshe mEMELT A, B
Notes: Bt -

A Attending briefing and updates on rules and regulations related to
corporate governance law and practice

B Reading of material and updates on the Group’s operation and
finance and on the industry generally

Chairman and Managing Director

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
are separated by written guidelines adopted by the Board to
ensure a clear division of responsibilities. The responsibilities
of the Chairman include leadership of the Board, providing
relevant information and mobilizing the collective resources of
the directors in the Board’s roles and functions. The Managing
Director is responsible for leadership of the management, and for
execution of business strategies and front-line execution.
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Non-Executive Directors

As at the date of this report, three members of the Board are
independent non-executive directors. The term of appointment
of non-executive directors is governed by the Company’s
byelaws pursuant to which at each annual general meeting one-
third of the directors of the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire in each year.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive directors are independent within the
definition of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (“Mr. Cheung”) and Mr.
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict (“Mr. Chan”), who are to be retired by
rotation in the coming annual general meeting, have served as
an independent non-executive directors for more than 9 years.
The Nomination Committee has assessed the independence
of Mr. Cheung and Mr. Chan for reappointment as non-
executive directors and concluded that they have satisfied the
independence factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
that there are no relationships or circumstances which would
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement in
taking up their role as independent non-executive directors,
and that they have the required professionalism, integrity and
knowledge to continue to fulfill their roles as independent
directors despite their length of service of more than 9 years. The
Nomination Committee also noted that the positive contributions
of Mr. Cheung and Mr. Chan to development of the Company’s
strategy and policies through independent, constructive and
informed contributions supported by their valuable professional
knowledge and experience, and from their active participation at
meetings. Hence, the Nomination Committee recommended to
the Board that Mr. Cheung and Mr. Chan be nominated for re-
election as independent non-executive directors.

During the year, arrangements were made for the non-executive
directors to meet with the Chairman without the presence of the
executive directors, to consider and discuss various matters in
respect of the management of the Company.
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Board Committees

The Company has set up three Committees in accordance with
the CG Code, namely the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee. In addition to the above 3
Committees, the Board has set up an Executive Committee
comprising all executive directors on the Board. Under its terms
of reference, the Executive Committee is responsible for the
oversight of the management of the Group and the formulation
of administrative guidelines.

Audit Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Audit
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Audit Committee
comprises all independent non-executive directors and two
executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Cen Ziniu

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting and internal control
procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship
with the external auditor of the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
effectiveness of the internal audit function and the system of
internal control covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. Through direct communication and meetings with the
management, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
reporting of the Company, including the Company’s interim and
annual reports, and the financial position of the Company as
disclosed in the financial reports, and it has also reviewed the
engagement of external auditors and the effectiveness of the
audit process.
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The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year 2019 during
which the following matters were reviewed and discussed:

° Auditing and financial reporting matters;

° Appointment and remuneration of external auditor;

° Non-auditing work of external auditor;

° Financial reporting process and risk management functions;

° Maintenance of the Group’s internal control system;

o Review of interim results and audited financial statements;

° Review and monitor of the internal audit function; and

° Based on the Group’s risk management function i.e policies
and procedures, formulate the scope of internal audit work

for 2019.

Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at meetings
during the year is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BREME HEERRE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) KB (ZEEEFE) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRABIZ 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe HrAETIET 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence A 2/2
Cen Ziniu B 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee, which are in line with the principles
of the CG Code and are posted on the Company’s website.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
nonexecutive directors and two executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Cen Ziniu (appointed on 5 June 2019)
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The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and senior management. It takes into consideration
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once
a year to access the performance and review the annual salaries
and bonus of the senior executives.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has assessed the
performance of the executive directors, reviewed and discussed,
among other matters, the Remuneration Policy of the Company
and its implementation. 2 meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held in the year to review, among other things,
the remuneration packages of the Chairman, the executive
directors and senior executives.

Attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee at
meetings during the year is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
REXR HEFRXE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) KAB(ZEEEF/E) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIBAE 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe AT 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence 2E 2/2

Cen Ziniu (appointed on 5 June 2019) BFHE(R2019F6 55 H
Z) 1/2

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond (retired by rotation on 5 June &R (RKR20194F6 A5 H
2019) B AR (TE) 1/2

Nomination Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Nomination
Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and two executive directors as follows:

Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman)
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board, identify suitably
qualified individual for appointment to the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

Board Diversity Policy

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the
Nomination Committee may make reference to certain criteria
such as the Company’s needs, the diversity on the Board, the
integrity, experience, skills and professional knowledge of the
candidate and the amount of time and effort that the candidate
will devote to discharge his/her duties and responsibilities.

The Company also recognizes and embraces the benefit of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance
and hence the purpose of the Board diversity. To comply with
the provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, a board diversity policy was
adopted by the Company pursuant to which the Nomination
Committee is responsible for monitoring the implementation of
the board diversity policy and assessing the Board composition
under diversified perspectives (including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional
experience). The Nomination Committee shall report its findings
and make recommendation to the Board. Such policy and
objectives will be reviewed from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness in determining the optimum composition of the
Board.

Nomination Policy
1.  Objective

1.1 The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable
candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to board of directors for election as
executive directors or non-executive directors of the
Company to fill casual vacancies.

1.2 The Nomination Committee may, as it considers
appropriate, nominate a number of candidates more
than the number of directors to be appointed or re-
appointed at a general meeting, or the number of
casual vacancies to be filled.
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Selection Criteria

2.1

2.2

The factors listed below would be used as reference
by the Nomination Committee in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate.

° Reputation for integrity

° Accomplishment and experience in the energy
industry, in particular, in the liquefied petroleum
gas (“LPG”), oil and other energy products
markets

° Commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest

° Diversity in all its aspect, including but not
limited to gender, age (18 years or above),
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service

These factors are for reference only, and not meant
to be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination
Committee has the discretion to nominate any person,
as it considers appropriate.

Retiring non-executive directors, save for those who
have served as non-executive directors for a period of
9 consecutive years, are eligible for nomination by the
Board to stand for re-election at a general meeting.
For the avoidance of doubt, (a) the 9-year period for
determining the eligibility of an non-executive directors
(including a retiring Government Appointed Director
who opts for election) for nomination by the Board to
stand for election at a general meeting would count
from his/her date of first appointment as an non-
executive directors until the date of the forthcoming
annual general meeting when his/her current term of
service will expire at the end of that meeting; and (b)
an non-executive directors who has been serving on
the Board for a period of 9 consecutive years or more
may continue to hold office until expiry of his/her
current term.
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2.3 Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the

2.4

necessary personal information in a prescribed form,
together with their written consent to be appointed
as and executive directors or non-executive directors
and to the public disclosure of their personal data
on any documents or the relevant websites for the
purpose of or in relation to their standing for election
as executive directors or non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates
to provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.

3. Nomination Procedures

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call
a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if
any, for consideration by the Nomination Committee
prior to its meeting. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated
by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing
candidates to stand for election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to
the Board for its consideration and recommendation.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the
nominated persons shall not assume that they have
been proposed by the Board to stand for election at
the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the Board to stand for election at a
general meeting, and to invite nominations from
shareholders, a circular will be sent to shareholders.
The circular will set out the lodgment period for
shareholders to make the nominations. The names,
brief biographies (including qualifications and relevant
experience), independence, proposed remuneration
and any other information, as required pursuant to
the applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the
proposed candidates will be included in the circular to
shareholders.
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3.5 A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidate
at any time before the general meeting by serving a
notice in writing to the company secretary.

3.6 The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for election at any general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the
Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

2 meetings of the Nomination Committee were held in
the year to review and discuss the structure, diversity,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and to assess the independence
of independent nonexecutive directors of the Board. The
Nomination Committee considers that all Board members
possess the relevant skill and knowledge in the area of
the business operation of the Group. The Nomination
Committee also considers that an appropriate mix of skills,
experience, knowledge, expertise and diversity on the
Board is maintained and therefore no measurable objectives
were proposed to the Board.

Attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee
at meetings during the year is as follows:

3.5 REAFRBRERARGEITAH ET—JEH
fREARMEE L EEBAR

3.6 EFETHNEEBREAERERX
CLE2ENMEEEAREBAT
7 o

REZEEERINRBBRCRERB
MME)  RERABEZER - 125
ZEEREIREMATEAFELNE
o BRMEZESRBETNEREE
MHEESZERIE

REZEERNFABH2AZH  UE
BRFImEFEHNER - £k - XN
AP (B IEHREE - A R EE) « I
HEEEMNBIIFNITESNELIE -
REZEEREMBETENEHLE
(5] 5 7% 2 0 (B AL AR R B iir SR A o
REZEENREBESERF[BEENHHE
iy - &% - M BEERZITE - Bt
WERNESSREAUFTE8E -

%(ZZDT -

Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
541 : %1 HEEERRE
Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman) EOW(EZEEEFE) 2/2
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony R85 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIBAZ 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe HmEMELT 2/2

Shum Chun, Lawrence 298 2/2
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company’s corporate governance policy is formulated
with an emphasis on transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
our operations with applicable laws and regulations.

During the year, all members of the Board have discussed and
reviewed, among other things, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. They have also reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional development
of directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as well as
its disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. A code of
conduct applicable to employees and directors setting out the
standards of behaviour that the Company expects from them and
the guidelines on how they should handle different situations in
business dealings with the Group were formulated and adopted
by the Board. The board also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Model Code for dealing in the Company’s
securities by employees of the Company, or directors or
employees of the Company’s subsidiary or holding companies,
who are likely to possess inside information of the Group.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness and for this
purpose has maintained an internal audit function which is
internally resourced and forms part of the Group’s permanent
establishment. The management of the Company has established
a set of comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in
areas of operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding
assets against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of
financial information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance
against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
is conducted by the internal audit function on an on-going basis,
and the responsible personnel will directly report to the Audit
Committee on any significant finding on internal controls.

The Board considered that throughout the year 2019, the
Company complied with the code provisions on internal controls
as stipulated in the CG Code. During the year the Company
conducted a full review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group and discussed the assessment bases with
the management. The Board considered that the existing internal
control systems of the Group are effective.

Inside Information

The Company adopted a policy for disclosure of inside
information which sets out guidelines for the release and control
of inside information to ensure that the Company, its directors
and employees meets the obligations for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. A framework has been
set up to assess whether any particular information is inside
information, to ensure that any information considered to be
inside information should be kept confidential before the relevant
information is fully disclosed to the public, and to coordinate the
disclosure of the information in accordance with the requirements
of the Securities and Future Ordinance and. The Chairman, the
Managing Director, executive directors responsible for the control
of the Group’s operation and the Head of Investors Relations are
authorized as spokespersons of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Rights of shareholders of the Company are provide under, and
are subject to applicable laws and regulations (which include
the Bermuda Companies Act and the Listing Rules) and the
bye-laws of the Company. Set out below is a brief summary of
certain rights of the shareholders of the Company, which is for
easy reference only. The relevant laws and regulations and the
byelaws of the Company should be referred to for a full account
of such shareholders’ rights.

Convening Special General Meeting on Requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to require an special general meeting (the
“SGM”) to be called by the Board by written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholder(s) making the requisition and stating
the purposes of the requisitioned SGM, deposited at the
registered office of the Company.

If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to convene
such SGM, the shareholders making the requisition, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene an SGM, provided that
the SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 2
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Proposal may be made by shareholders in the form of resolutions
proposed at an annual general meeting, or in the form of
statements circulated to shareholders with respect to matter(s)
referred to in any resolution or matter to be dealt with at any
general meeting. Shareholders, representing at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders, may by written
requisition request the Company to: (a) give to shareholders
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved at the
next annual general meeting of the Company, and which the
requesting shareholders intend to move at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the next general
meeting.
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In the case of shareholders requesting the Company to give
notice of a resolution, the written requisition must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office not less than 6 weeks before
the date of the annual general meeting. In the case of any other
requisition, the written requisition must be deposited at the
Company’s registered office at not less than 1 week before the
date of the annual general meeting.

In order to notify the Company at the earliest opportunity of
the deposit/intended deposit of a written requisition referred to
in the above, a copy of the requisition may be delivered to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 23/F.,
The Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong or email to cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.

Proposing a Person for Election as Director

Procedures have been set up by the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws for shareholders of the Company to propose
a person for election as a director. Details of the procedures are
available on the Company’s website.

Contacting the Board for Enquiries

Shareholders may contact the Board for enquiries in respect of
the Company’s information, to the extent such information can
be made available to the public. Shareholders may at any time
make enquiry in respect of the Company in writing at our head
office in Hong Kong by post or facsimile via the numbers and
email address provided on the Company’s website or email to
cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.

Investor Relations

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy. The use and effectiveness of such policy will be
monitored and reviewed regularly by the Board. The Company
recognises the importance of shareholders’ privacy and therefore
will not disclose shareholders’ information without their consent,
unless required by law to do so.
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To achieve equal access to information on the Company’s
latest major development, measures have been taken to ensure
all necessary information and appropriate updates are made
available to investors in a timely manner through corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company’s website under the column of “Investor Relations”.
Corporate communications required to be given under the
Listing Rules, any applicable laws and corporate procedures
will be provided to shareholders in plain language and in
both English and Chinese versions to facilitate shareholders’
understanding. Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 54/F., Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. For enquiry about
the information of the Company, shareholders may contact the
company secretary.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in the Company’s
general meetings. Members of the Board will attend to answer
their questions.

The Company has also posted its constitutional documents on
its website and there was no significant change in them during
the year under review.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is set out as follows:

Services rendered
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Fees paid/payable

AR5 12 fit 2ft EEA

HK$’000

FEIT

Audit services EBi R 3,800

Non-audit services FEFFT RIS 1,517

Total &5t 5,317
Accountability and Audit BEAEREZR

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the EERRRAREARNEET ZHBERE - TIER

financial statements of the Group and ensuring that the financial RS RFEEICERREMB @58 A

statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and EERZEE o YNEEAZEED 2 Bk S &t

applicable accounting standards. The statement of the external
auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 58.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was
principally engaged in the sale and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”) and natural gas (“NG”), oil/chemical
products business and sales of electronic products.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business and the analysis using the
financial key performance indicators are set out on pages 8 to 26
of the annual report under the heading “Management Discussion
and Analysis”. In summary, the Group’s revenue from operations
for the year was down by 7.38% reflecting the increase in sales
volume but the raise was set off by the relatively lower price
of energy products compared with last year to approximately
HK$27,792 million. The total sales volume of energy products
increased by 13.09% to approximately 7,465,000 tons. The
gross profits decreased by 4.31% to approximately HK$1,882
million with gross profit margin slightly increased from 6.55% in
2018 to 6.77% in 2019. The profit for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company from operations decreased by 15.40%
to approximately HK$642 million mainly due to (i) the decrease in
gross profit especially the drop in auto gas sales which used to
generate lower profit margin and; (i) the expansion of overseas
operation resulted significant raise in selling and distribution
expenses, administration expenses and finance costs, etc. The
basic earnings per share from operations decreased by 15.38%
to HK$0.44. The equity attributable to owners of the Company
increased by 7.29% to approximately HK$8,010 million.

There are a number of principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group as follows: (i) the recent global economy is gloomy due
to the trade war which has slowed down the economy growth
in China; (ii) the fluctuation of the oil and LPG price in the global
market; (iii) PRC government’s policies in promoting green energy
such as NG and electricity; (iv) the substantial fluctuation in RMB
exchange rates; and (v) the implication of coronavirus in the PRC
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and overseas. The above are not intended to be an exhaustive
list of all principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group. These
may change over time as new risks and uncertainties emerge
and others cease to be of concern. Looking ahead, the global
economy will remain uncertain. However, as necessity goods,
the rigid demand for energy products will continue to exist, thus
LPG and oil products are still the core business for the Group. In
order not to over concentrated on one single market, the Group
is actively expending the sales network of our existing products
in other countries i.e. Singapore and Malaysia.

Particular of the major suppliers and customers of the Group
are set out on page 48 of the annual report. The Directors are
satisfied with the relationship with customers and suppliers.
The Directors recognize the importance of having good working
relationship with its staff as staff is the key assets to the Group.
The Group has not experienced any significant problems with
its staff nor significant labour disputes or industrial actions. The
Group did not experience any significant staff turnover especially
for the management level. The Directors believe that the Group
has good working relationship with its staff as a whole. In
respect of corporate social responsibility, our target is to commit
to motivating the low-carbon growth of the industry, providing
green energy for the developing of the whole society and taking
into account the needs of our stakeholders, including impact
on the environment and the communities in which we operate.
The details of the above are set out in the Environmental Social
and Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2019
published on the Company’s website www.newoceanhk.com.

Save and except for one deviation from the Corporate
Governance Code as set out under Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the details of the deviation are set out on page 27 of
the annual report), the Company has complied in all material
respects with all relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group.

Results and Appropriation
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income on pages 66 and 67.

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend and
propose that the profits for the year be retained.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company, provided that
the Group records a profit after tax and that the declaration and
distribution of dividends does not affect the normal operations of
the Group.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of
final dividend will be subject to the approval of the shareholder.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s operations, earnings, financial
condition, cash requirements and availability, capital expenditure
and future development requirements and other factors it may
deem relevant at such time. Any payment of the dividend by the
Company is also subject to any restrictions under the bye-laws
of Bermuda, the memorandum of association of the Company
and the shareholders.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there
is no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in
any specific periods.

Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 216 of
the annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spend approximately HK$8,430,000
(2018: HK$116,424,000) on property, plant and equipment
to expand and upgrade its LPG and oil plant. Details of the
movements during the year in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company

during the year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Reserves of the Group and the Company
Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves during the year
are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity”

on page 70.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2019 were as follows:
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Contributed surplus BB 1,667 1,667
Retained earnings {RE8 & ) 133,044 357,846
134,711 359,513

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest customers accounted for approximately 7% and 30%
(2018: 10% and 32%) respectively of the Group’s total turnover
for the year, including discontinued operations.

The largest supplier of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 16% and 55%
(2018: 16% and 42%) respectively of the Group’s total purchase
for the year.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

Charitable Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$301,000.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)

Cen Ziniu

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond (retired by rotation on 5 June 2019)
Wang Jian (resigned on 1 October 2019)

Independent non-executive directors:
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

In accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s bye-
laws, Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony and Mr. Chan Yuk Wai,
Benedict, both are independent non-executive directors, shall
retire by rotation from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. All directors retiring at the annual
general meeting have offered themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office for each non-executive director is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2019, the interests of certain directors and chief
executives and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of
the Company
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Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 90,714,358 6.18
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Notes:

1. These represent the block of 490,779,280 shares beneficially
owned by Uniocean Investments Limited (“Uniocean”) which
were held as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, and
were the same block of shares as referred to in note 1 in
the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders” below.
Uniocean is owned as to 70% by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, 15%
by Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence, and 15% by Mr. Shum Ho,
Neo, both are sons of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

2. These interests reflect 15% proportional interest of Mr.
Shum Chun, Lawrence in the 490,779,280 shares held by
Uniocean.

Other than disclosed above and nominee shares in certain
subsidiaries held by certain directors in trust for the Group, none
of the directors, chief executive nor their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2019.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

Details of related party transactions during the year are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director or a connected entity of a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly in any contract,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Annual Report 2019 —Z— N FEE#H

HieE -

1. ZEBRDIESBIERERARE
EﬁH)Ea%ﬁﬁZ@mm%Oﬂxﬂx
B WTARSDELEENRNRESE
B HETRIEZREINEHER <8
BORIRSLHERE  BEEERS
EEE(RERZIBEEZRTIE
BH70% - 15% N 15% ©

2. HEEREIEZALERLOIESE
BT #5 /8 490,779,280 f% f% 17 7 H) 15%
)f /\ °

BREXFHEEER G TESREAEEUE
AEAMRETHBATHEZREARS
Gh o A2019F 12831 SFEFF - T E17
BMABRBEEZEACHBBATUEREERR
AR BHE RA cBHERIRE °

MERMNBRFZRHE
B EXPIREESN - ARA] - REBEAAH
HEMMERRRNFAETMERESEILE

Mz EARAEZAHRRBARARAE
A H A A B R 2 B RESF MG & o

EE RRERREXGHZER

FRAZBEE
44 o

R BELERNERA W BERRM

B EXPTREESN - ARA] - R AR SE
EMEMBARYEZ2EITYARAESEK
EXECHECEXBERAAEREPERERK
) 25 1 20 A 4F 2 AR A B S A2 F (Rl B FEl Y
BRZEARS ~ RHEREH)

51



52 |

NewQOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1582 REBHR Q5

Directors’ Report

—

=

R

Connected Transaction

The Group had the following transactions during the year ended
31 December 2019:

(A)

(B)

Connected transaction

On 6 September 2019, NewOcean Fuel (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. (“NewOcean Fuel”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company had entered into two bareboat charter
agreements with Rise Harvest Enterprise Pte. Ltd. (“Rise
Harvest”) and Win Harvest Enterprise Pte. Ltd. (“Win
Harvest”), both are companies incorporated in Singapore
and wholly owned by Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence,
managing director of the Company, for the lease of two
oil tankers under the names “New Navigator 2” and “New
Navigator 3” at the monthly rate of hire of US$90,000 each
(equivalent to approximately HK$700,200 per month) for
a term of 24 months commencing from 20 September
2019 (the “Transaction”). The value of the right-of-use
assets recognized under the Transaction is approximately
HK$29,881,000.

Continuing Connected Transaction

() On 18 December 2013, Sound Management Services
Limited (“Sound Management”) had entered into a
first tenancy agreement with Ever Lucky Limited,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong and wholly
owned by Mr. Shum Ho, Neo, for the use of office
premises owned by Ever Lucky Limited located on
23/F., The Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong at HK$380,000 per
calendar month for a period of one year commencing
on 1 January 2014 and expired on 31 December
2014 (both days inclusive). Since then, both parties
entered into several renewal tenancy agreements to
extend the lease of the office premises annually. On
17 December 2018, Sound Management entered
into a lease agreement with Ever Lucky Limited, for
renewal of the tenancy agreement at monthly rental
HK$398,000 for another one year commencing from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (both days
inclusive). For the year ended 31 December 2019,
the aggregate amount of the rental paid or payable to
Ever Lucky Limited was HK$4,776,000.
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(i)  On 2 November 2018, Baifuyang Macao Commercial
Offshore Limited (“Baifuyang”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company had entered into a
bareboat charter agreement with Link Harvest
Enterprise Limited (“Link Harvest”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and wholly owned by
Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence, managing director of
the Company, for the lease of a very large crude
carrier (“VLCC”) under the name “Astro Chorus”
(subsequently changed the name to “New Global”) at
the monthly rate of hire of US$290,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,256,200 per month) for a term of
36 months commencing from 1 December 2018. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate
amount of the lease paid or payable to Link Harvest
was US$3,480,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,074,400)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued
his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the Group’s continuing connected transaction as
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange. The independent non-
executive Directors confirm that the continuing connected
transaction has been entered into by the Group in the ordinary
and usual course of its business, on normal commercial terms
and in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement
governing such transaction that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2019, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors and chief
executive, the following shareholders had notified the Company
of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company:

Long/Short
Name of shareholder positions Capacity
BERER we %e S
Uniocean Long Beneficial owner
piskiie S EmERA
Tong Shiu Ming Long Family interest (Note 1)
& /INEA TE Kz (et 1)
Long Family interest (Note 2)
HE Kiktgss (Mat2)
Yam Tak Cheung Long Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 3)
FEE S RGN AR (HE3)

Notes:

1. These represent the same block of 490,779,280 shares held
as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms.
Tong Shiu Ming as referred to in note 1 under section (a) of the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and were deemed to be the
family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.

2. These represent the same block of 90,714,358 shares held
beneficially by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms. Tong Shiu
Ming as referred to in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and
were deemed to be the family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.

3. 83,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Integrated Asset
Management (Asia) Limited (“Integrated Asset”). Mr. Yam Tak
Cheung owned 100% of Integrated Asset and was deemed to be
the controlling shareholder of Integrated Asset.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules

On 25 August 2016, the Company entered into a facility
agreement for a term loan facility of US$150,000,000 for the
purpose of refinancing of any existing indebtedness of any
member of the Group and financing the general working capital
requirements of the Group. The loan to be made to the Company
upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in four instalments,
10% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which
falls 30 months after the date of first drawdown, 10% of the
utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls 36 months
after the date of first drawdown, 10% of the utilized amount is
repayable on the date which falls 42 months after the date of
first drawdown, and the remaining 70% of the utilized amount is
repayable on the date which falls 48 months after the date of the
first drawdown.

On 26 April 2017, Sound Agents Limited (“Sound Agents”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into the
facility agreement for a revolving short term advance facility
up to HK$150,000,000 or the equivalent in other major foreign
currencies for financing the Group’s general working capital
requirements. The loan advance to be made to Sound Agents
upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in six months and
the loan advance is subjected to revolve for another six months
upon each repayment date.

On 28 May 2018, the Company entered into a facility
agreement for a term loan facility with two tranches:
tranche A of US$145,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,128,000,000) and tranche B of HK$195,000,000 for
the purpose of refinancing of any existing indebtedness of
any member of the Group and financing the general working
capital requirements of the Group. The loan to be made to the
Company upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in four
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instalments, 10% of the utilized amount is repayable on the
date which falls 30 months after the date of first drawdown,
10% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls
36 months after the date of first drawdown, 10% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 42 months after the
date of first drawdown, and the remaining 70% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 48 months after the
date of first drawdown.

On 30 August 2018, the Company entered into a facility
agreement for a term loan of HK$130,000,000 for the purpose
of financing the general working capital requirement of the
Group. The loan to be made to the Company will be repayable
in four instalments, 25% of the utilized amount is repayable on
the date which falls 15 months after the date of first drawdown,
25% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls
18 months after the date of first drawdown, 25% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 21 months after the
date of first drawdown, the remaining 25% is repayable on the
date which falls 24 months after the date of first drawdown.

On 18 December 2019, the Company entered into a facility
agreement for a term loan facility of US$23,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$178,940,000) for the purpose of financing
general working capital requirements of the Group. The loan
to be made to the Company upon utilization of the facility will
be payable in five instalments, 10% of the utilized amount is
payable on the date which falls 12 months after the date of
first drawdown, 20% of the utilized amount is repayable on the
date which falls 18 months after the date of first drawdown,
30% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls
24 months after the date of first drawdown, 30% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 30 months after the
date of first drawdown, and the remaining 10% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 36 months after the
date of the first drawdown.

Under the above facility agreements, in the event the Shum
Family (comprising certain family members and relatives of Mr.
Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company as set out in the
facility agreements) cease to remain as the largest shareholder
and maintains less than 30% shareholdings of the Company,
the facilities available to the Company will be cancelled and all
outstanding amounts will then become immediately due and
payable.
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As at 31 December 2019 the Shum Family beneficially own
approximately 43.53% in aggregate of the issued share capital of
the Company.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 April 2020
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWOCEAN ENERGY
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 66 to 215, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
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these matters.

Key audit matter
Impairment of goodwill

We identified the impairment of
goodwill as a key audit matter due
to the involvement of significant
judgments, estimations and
assumptions in determining the
recoverable amounts. As at 31
December 2019, the carrying
amount of goodwill is approximately
HK$766,973,000 as disclosed in
notes 4 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Goodwill has been allocated to
individual cash-generating units
(“CGUSs") relating to the sales and
distribution of LPG and oil products.
Impairment of goodwill is assessed
by comparing the recoverable
amounts of CGUs to which the
goodwill is allocated with their
carrying values at the end of the
reporting period. As at 31 December
2019, the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs have been determined
with reference to the value in use
of the relevant CGUs, which require
assumptions about suitable discount
rates, growth rates, budgeted
sales and gross margin in order to
calculate the present value of the
estimated future cash flows.

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the
impairment of goodwill included:

J Understanding the Group’s
impairment assessment
process, including the
impairment assessment model
used and key assumptions
used;

o Assessing the reasonableness
of the assumptions made
by the management by
comparing the historical
forecasts to the actual results;

o Testing the discount rates
applied in the forecasts by
comparing them to externally
available data;

o Challenging the growth rates
used by comparing against
historical data to assess the
reliability of the management’s
forecast; and

o Comparing the budgeted
sales and gross margin
against historical performance
and the directors’ strategic
plans in respect of each CGU.

RBEHER
HERE

R E R e B & B
BREERESREX
FlE R RS BRI
HERERBREH
EF MR EYK
& K F4RA9F F
B R2019%F12 A31
A BECRAENAR
766,973,000/ T

BREERDERIER
Lhfm HEEARER
BRlzReEEEN
((ReELEM]) - @
ERENEBREEEM
ARZACELBENL
AU B & %8 £ 1 3R 45
FREAEELRMED
e R2019F12 A
H BeELENZ
ARESEL2ERER
CELBNZFERERE
MET ERFEED
EHERUEXR R

X EEHEREFE
ZBRE - TERRR
ﬁ//lL;E_ZﬁEﬂ/QJ °

BRmEHmAsme
EHEHETRE

BEERABREIRER
B

o THREEZHE
AR B
Pt PR B RY 45 1R
ARFATER

YL, o
B

. BROIMERE
RZELEA
R E B E fF
HeBELAE
/|\$ c

o  FEBABEAMA
2 B3 K E AN
ARHEEL
B AR
&

e HURBEEE
BAAZERE
e EE R DAY
HERBRAZ
gL R

EEEREEL
BEUZBEHE
REMEEBE
ZEREERE
STEIELLE -

59



60 |

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #7/Z8REBAER A A

Independent Auditor’s Report

Bz B E

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

We identified impairment
assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the
significance of trade receivables
to the Group’s financial positions
and the involvement of subjective
judgement and management
estimates in evaluating the expected
credit losses (“ECL") of the Group’s
trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 31 December 2019, the
Group’s net trade receivables
amounting to approximately
HK$4,778,317,000 which
represented approximately 28.7%
of total assets of the Group and
out of these trade receivables of
approximately HK$76,671,000 were
past due.

Our procedures in relation to
impairment assessment of trade
receivables included:

o Understanding key controls
on how the management
estimates the loss allowance
for trade receivables;

o Challenging management’s
basis and judgement
in determining credit
loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 31
December 2019, including
their identification of credit
impaired trade receivables,
the reasonableness of
management’s assessment
of internal credit risk grading,
and the basis of estimated
loss rates applied (with
reference to historical credit
loss experience of the
debtors and forward-looking
information);

J Testing the accuracy trade
receivables ageing analysis
as at 31 December 2019,
on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in
the analysis with the relevant
sales agreements, sales
invoices and other supporting
documents;
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Impairment assessment of trade receivables (Continued)

As disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements,
the management of the Group
estimates the amount of lifetime ECL
of trade receivables individually with
outstanding significant balances and
collectively using a provision matrix
for the remaining balances, which
is grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the historical
observed default rates adjusted for
forward-looking estimates that is
available without undue costs or
effort. The Group applies internal
credit rating for its customers. The
debtors are assessed individually
with significant balances by reference
to aging, past default experience
and current past due exposure of
the debtor, and an analysis of the
debtor’s current financial position.
Estimated loss rates are based on
possibility of default and loss given
default with reference to an external
credit report and are adjusted for
forward-looking information.

As disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements,
the Group recognised an additional
amount of HK$8,000,000 of
impairment of trade receivables for
the year and the Group’s lifetime
ECL on trade receivables as at
31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$38,000,000.

Testing the reasonableness
of internal credit rating given
to each type of debtors by
checking trade receivables
aging analysis as at 31
December 2019, repayment
history and past due status of
respective trade receivables
by comparing individual
items in the analyses with the
relevant invoice and other
supporting information, on a
sample basis;

Testing the estimated loss
rates by checking the external
credit report for probability of
default and loss given default,
on a sample basis; and

Evaluating the disclosures
regarding the impairment
assessment of trade
receivables in notes 4 and 38
to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Tsang Yiu Chung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

8 April 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeaBmEMTEEG

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F 12 31 HI-FZE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
izt F#&iT FEITL
Revenue WA 5 27,791,913 30,007,805
Cost of sales SHE RN (25,909,656) (28,040,808)
Gross profit EF 1,882,257 1,966,997
Other gains and losses HA PSR EE 7 (80,551) (194,308)
Other income H At A 7 62,450 113,519
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RS HY W (529,277) (504,903)
Administrative expenses T H (393,628) (349,657)
Finance costs BB KA 8 (358,485) (284,525)
Impairment losses on trade and other  JEUWE 5 BR 71 K& E th flE U =X
receivables 82 REEE (8,000) (50,000)
Share of profits of joint ventures DihEERFERF 2,091 1,967
Share of profit (loss) of an associate 1 — B A &) A
(E18) 358 (419)
Profit before taxation F 5% Al A 10 627,215 698,671
Taxation I8 9 (20,105) (28,215)
Profit for the year F A A 607,110 670,456
Other comprehensive (expense) income E fh 2 & (3% 1) Yk A
ltem that will not be reclassified to TgEHRHHEIBERRZ
profit or loss: BHAE :
Exchange differences arising RmE LS|REEES
on translation to presentation 2 [ H R
currency (203,182) (246,229)
ltem that may be reclassified to profit (& E#FHHIERIBERZ
or loss: BA
Exchange differences arising on g EINH R EE 2
translation of foreign operations PE =58 105,228 80,904

Total comprehensive income for the FAREE K
year 509,156 505,131
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBmMEMIT G

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F 12 31 HI-FZE
2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 FRET FEr
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: {5 4E A% A (E538) -
Owners of the Company PiN/NGIEZZEWN 642,175 759,042
Non-controlling interests JEFEHIRE (35,065) (88,586)
607,110 670,456
Total comprehensive income (expense) MGz (SZH) ¢
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PiN/NGIEZZEWN 544,192 597,933
Non-controlling interests JEFEHI R (35,036) (92,802)
509,156 505,131

Basic earnings per share GRELREF 14 HK$0.44 HK$0.52
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“ra SRR

At 31 December 2019
A Z2019F 12431 H

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HteF T FET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - HEs R EE 15 2,254,174 2,407,720
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 16 559,486 =
Land use rights o+ 3 {55 PR A 17 - 382,845
Prepaid lease payments for coast HEREMNHEERE 18 - 4,523
Goodwill (RS 19 766,973 742,051
Other intangible assets HitEmHEEE 20 178,202 222,360
Interest in an associate —XME AR Em 21 6,689 6,483
Interests in joint ventures BEMEER 22 19,265 27,995
Deposits paid and prepayments Eﬁﬁz%&]’ﬁﬁ%ﬂlﬁ 23 693,407 245,956
Deferred tax assets BRI E E 35 821 1,231
4,479,017 4,041,164
Current assets N EE
Inventories FE 24 1,410,456 1,720,504
Trade receivables EULE S BR 7K 25 4,778,317 4,726,261
Other debtors, deposits and ﬁﬂﬂ)ﬂﬁzﬁﬁm Re Rk
prepayments TEfT IR 25 2,429,078 2,232,484
Amount due from an associate JE U — %Hﬁ UNEIF/ Q] 26 6,716 10,821
Amount due from a joint venture JEY — %é‘ém%ﬂ 26 - 2,036
Derivative financial instruments PTHEKT A 46 6,606 4,886
Land use rights T fE A 17 - 19,087
Prepaid lease payments for coast BETRNEER 18 - 783
Properties held for sales REGEYE 146,841 150,274
Properties under development for HEERBPME
sales 27 766,253 724,928
Pledged bank deposits BRI ER 28 360,218 243,095
Bank balances and cash IRTTEH MRS 28 2,288,684 2,295,797
12,193,169 12,130,956
Current liabilities E R
Trade payables F%Hféi%ﬁfm 29 974,192 858,439
Other creditors and accrued charges Eﬁﬂﬂﬂ% KX & FEETE A 29 211,974 328,646
Contract liabilities AHEE 30 78,909 149,776
Lease liabilities %EE\,\L 31 57,868 =
Amount due to an associate A — SR Bt */&T%(IE 32 9,480 14,530
Amount due to a joint venture B —REE D EFKIE 32 5,576 8,674
Derivative financial instruments PITEMIETA 46 9,787 9,912
Tax liabilities MIBEE 117,100 105,206
Borrowings secured by pledged bank EEIE?RTW?E T RIEIRAY
deposits — repayable within one & /T>)\ — BAR—FR
year (=% 33 328,487 227,347
Borrowings secured by other assets Elﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ*%ﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁ =
— repayable within one year AR — iﬁqfa}a 33 12,529 20,575
Borrowings unsecured — repayable ERERAOER — AR —
within one year FREE 33 5,340,256 4,537,417
7,146,158 6,260,522
Net current assets MBS ERE 5,047,011 5,870,434
Total assets less current liabilities REERTEAE 9,526,028 9,911,598
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A IR R
At 31 December 2019
A2 2019F 12431 H

2019 2018

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HteF F#ET FET
Capital and reserves BEE R R
Share capital N 34 146,812 146,812
Share premium and other reserves RS A7 Y55 18 N EAth & 7,862,866 7,318,674
Equity attributable to owners of the RAGHEE NERRER
Company 8,009,678 7,465,486
Non-controlling interests FEVE I (35,554) (23,604)
Total equity b s 7,974,124 7,441,882
Non-current liabilities ERBAME
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEE B 35 64,280 81,684
Borrowings secured by other assets B E b EEERNER —
— repayable over one year AR —FRER 33 21,302 33,832
Borrowings unsecured — repayable EIERER — BER—F
over one year BIERE 33 1,351,836 2,354,200
Lease liabilities HEaE 31 114,486 =
1,551,904 2,469,716
9,526,028 9,911,598
The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 215 were BEEE D RN2020F4 A8 HEH MK
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on FOOE2I5B 2 HE - WAHTNIE
8 April 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: FERREE
Shum Siu Hung Shum Chun, Lawrence
HOH =W
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

2O EREHR
N

For the year ended 31 December 2019
EIE 2019 12 A 31 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
FLACHRAR

Contributed
surplus
accounts
BAERE

HK$ 000
TEL

Non-
controlling
interests

b
HK$ 000

Statutory
surplus
Teserves
ERBRER
HKS 000

Capital
redemption
reserve

Ao
HK$ 000

//u/u

Share
capital

Share
premium
RiaR

HKS 000
TET

Other
reserve

Retained
profits
REan
HK8 000
FAT

Special
reserve

Exchange
reserve
ERE

HKS 000
FAT

Total
#1e
HK8 000

=

TAT

s
HKS 000

HK$ 000 HKS'000
AT 7

HK$'000
BT 7

A1 January 2018 (restated)  W2018%1 A1E(EF]) 147303 1423025 122,085 59,488 14510 1,667 (127 181 5106662 6,875,350 69198 6944548
Profit oss) for the year - - = = - - - - 759,042 759,042 (83,086) 670,456
Exchange differences arisng on A%

franslation to presentation

currency - - - - - - - - (19n) (4318 (246229
Bxchange dfferences arsng ~ EAEA \i%izﬁ

on translation of foreign Bz

operations - - - - 80,802 - - - - 80,802 102 80,904
Total comprehensive income ~ ERZERE(L L) 8

(expense) for the year - - - - (161,109) - - - 759,042 597,983 (92.802) 505,131
Appropriations M - - - 9,035 - - - - 9,039) - - -
Repurchase of ordnary shares - BEEERA (491) (7,306) - - - - - 491 (491) (1797) - (1797)
At 31 December 2018 EA2018$ zﬁs 146812 1415719 122,085 08,523 (146,599) 1,667 (121) 1228 589,178 7,465,486 (23,604) 7,441,882
Proft (loss) for the year i - - - = - - - - 642,175 642,175 (35,065) 607,110
Exchange differences arising on

franslation to presentation

currency - - - - (204,729) - - - - (204,729) 1547 (203,182)
Exchange differences arising

on translation of foreign ERER

operations - - - - 106,746 - - - - 106,746 (1518 105,228
Total comprehensive income iméﬁ]% i)

(expense) for the year - - - - (97,983) - - - 642,175 544,192 (35,036) 509,156
Appropriations wﬁ B - - - 3,578 - - - - (3578) - - -
Ceptal contbuion foma~ ~ZHEA T35

non-contraling interestofa BRI

subsifary - - - - - - - - - - 23,086 23,086
At 31 December 2019 1019%12A518 146812 1415719 122,085 00 (244582 1,667 (121) 1,228 6494775 8,009,678 (35,554) 7,074,124
Notes: K1t -

()  The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between i) AEEZFRFEEEROBRIARBRND

Z A B AT & AR A B Z AN~ BiAn i (B

the share capital, share premium and capital redemption reserve of

the Group’s former ultimate holding company whose shares were
exchanged for the Company’s shares and the nominal amount of
the share capital issued by the Company pursuant to a scheme of
arrangement dated 14 April 1999.

NEREEGFEE  BAREIRIE1999F 4 H
14 BRI 2 BHEE L PRt 8l 21T m 2
EEZZEHE -

(i)  The statutory surplus reserves represent enterprise development (i) ZEERBREHEEBBEPEARLMBE(H
and general reserve funds appropriated from the profit after B 1) 2k AR 1o B AR 37 2 B BB A R BR B
taxation of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic BRFMORZCEERER —REGES -
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the PRC laws and
regulations.

(i)  The Group has no material non-controlling interests and therefore (i) ANEEIWESERFEG RS - UL ERE

the relevant information is not disclosed.

HEEE R -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
I\‘/\ Eﬁi//lbiéé

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F 12 31 HI-FZE
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#&IT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERY
Profit before taxation B4 A a2 627,215 698,671
Adjustments for: .
Share of profits of joint ventures DL EEREERF (2,091) (1,967)
Share of (profit) loss of an associate 15— Bt < A7 G A))
g (358) 419
Finance costs BLE B AR 358,485 284,525
Interest income A B U A (20,697) (62,203)
(Gain) loss on fair values changes of T4 B 7% T B A F(EE
derivative financial instruments Z(Fﬁ’%)l@ﬂé (9,561) 73,432
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - MR KRBT E
equipment 151,641 139,830
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 57,888 —
Loss on disposal and written off of HE M MEE Y - eSS
property, plant and equipment R AE B 10,303 18,021
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEW B QRIS - (2,819)
Gain on deemed disposal of a joint WREHE—REEDE
venture F1g (9,218) —
Impairment losses on RIEBE
— trade receivables — EWRE FERK 8,000 20,000
— other financial items subject to — xi‘ﬁﬁ}ﬂmﬁﬁﬁ? 2R
expected credit losses Hihgh&EIBEE - 30,000
Allowance for inventories FERE = 120,000
Amortisation of land use rights o i {58 R R A 5H - 10,791
Amortisation of prepaid lease B TEA T S SR IE
payments for coast - 808
Amortisation of other intangible Hofh A A B B
assets 40,170 48,245
Operating cash flows before LEECEIPRICLERS
movements in working capital e 1,211,777 1,377,753
Decrease (increase) in inventories GFERPGEM) 309,445 (432,594)
Increase in trade receivables JiE U & 5 B B 3E n (67,542) (1,178,936)
Increase in other debtors, deposits EmEWRR « e RTEN
and prepayments FIEH N (211,809) (239,707)
Decrease (increase) in amount due FE UM — SR B A B IR A
from an associate (3%Ehn) 4,105 (7,126)
Decrease (increase) in amount due B —FK & & EFIER D

from a joint venture (3Em) 2,036 (689)

Increase in properties under HEBRERYELEN

development for sales (56,839) (98,145)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables JEfTE SEEFIL IR L) 124,609 (437,150)
Decrease in other creditors and Ha R IERTE A

accrued charges N (111,667) (44,121)
(Decrease) increase in contract BABECED)EBIN

liabilities (67,987) 10,614
(Decrease) increase in amount due to  JE{f — Bk & A B FUA

an associate O )3g (4,782) 14,630
(Decrease) increase in amount due to B —R A& S EZIE

a joint venture OB A ) 180 (2,939) 5,578
Decrease (increase) in derivative TR RE T R A (380)

financial instruments 7,517 (61,110)
Cash from (used in) operations gy **EE(FﬁﬁH VIRE R 1,135,924 (1,091,103)
Income tax paid ﬁﬁﬁﬁ S (22,709) (47,179)

NET CASH GENERATED FROM EEXEEE(A)
(USED IN) OPERATING H&SHE
ACTIVITIES 1,113,215 (1,138,282)
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FARTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F 12 31 HI-FZE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B2t F#ET FET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest received B U H 2 20,960 60,930
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash UWEEHT B AR (EHKRIR S

and cash equivalents) FERRELIER) 36 (18,086) —
Proceeds from disposal of intangible i@ H &l B A 7 H & 7

assets through disposal of BEMS(EHNRES R

subsidiaries (net of cash and cash ZRI[LER)

equivalents disposed) S7 - 98,588
Purchase of property, plant and BEYWHE  #BEREE

equipment (97,067) (126,223)
Payments for right-of-use assets S REAE (1,390) —
Payments for rental deposits Y ek e (3,783) —
Placement in pledged bank deposits ~ 7FR 2 KR 1T EK (124,343) —
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWZ « #eS NBREHE

plant and equipment 51,356 781
Increase in deposits paid Bffike 2 m (458,096) (216)
Deposits refunded REH® 7,981 113,600
Loan advances to independent third MBI H = ER

parties (3,501) (28,136)
Repayment of loan advances from BUE=FEEER

independent third parties 6,034 36,570
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BERH(FRAEE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES bR R d ] (619,935) 155,894
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Al EE
Interest paid EAIFE (364,155) (282,801)
New borrowings raised ELIENR 24,160,395 22,051,848
Repayment of borrowings BEER (24,276,596) (20,225,863)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEBE (42,205) —
Payment on repurchase of ordinary A O] B8 X 5B AR 1D

shares - (7,797)
Capital contribution from non- — KB R AR IEFZE IR R

controlling interest of a subsidiary & 23,086 —
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM i EE (BT EE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES e (499,475) 1,635,387
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN HeREFERHALEEHGRD)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS |hnRE (6,195) 552,999
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE /MSESE#EZHE

RATE CHANGES (918) (46,393)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNReRERTRLER

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,295,797 1,789,191
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FXASRERARLER

AT END OF THE YEAR 2,288,684 2,295,797
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HR&REFRHA&IEH KR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SR
Bank balances and cash RITER MRS 2,288,684 2,295,797
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1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate holding company
is Uniocean Investments Limited (“Uniocean”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate
controlling shareholder is Shum Siu Hung. The Company
acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are the sales and distribution of
liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) and natural gas (“NG”),
oil/chemical products business and sales of electronic
products. The address of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“BMB”), the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Group operates. For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements and convenience of the
financial statements users, the results and financial position
of the Group are expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”),
the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 —
2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

—REH

ARR R BRETMK Lz EHR2E
REMERR  ERNETEBARZM
BERAR(BRA]) Ed - E&K K
BEEERARRBEBHMERARAR(E
1) —ERRBRELXESEMKILZ A
Al - RREEBRER RS D - KRRATY
BREBBE AR - AEBZ T EXB R
SR HREAmR(RIER]) RRA
RARARD B M TRERER
MHEBFEM  AARZEMMRAE
it R F 2 EEMIERFRAL A A
BERPRE -

ARAZNEEESARBEIAR
%) RAKBERLEMETIELBERE
ZE - RIREEAM BRI LT B
BHREERE - ARE 2 X8RP B
AR T T ) (AR & B B MR DI Bk
BEIRTE -

ERHITREESTERMBERESE
R(TEEMBREERN])

REFEEFHERDMITREESTEE
MEEREER

AR - ARG BRI T A
BHBAE(EERHAAE EHZ
BBETE W LT RIS A

BENBRSENR 165 g
BE(ERYHRERE SRR M
289)- 2%

ERMBASENFOR ARAREZRNRR
TR
BROHEAF10R BTN  FEET  BHAZRE
BROHEAEBELLIR  NBELAAARELELRY
a
BERMBREENCEIE  ROBFENTERSNLE
RHBRERA FRAE
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”
(“HKAS 17”), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which already existed
prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to
the related lease liabilities by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii)
transition. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated.

ERHIIREETEEMBREE
R(TEEMBEEEN ) (Z)

REFEEFHEVDMITREESTER
MIHWELER(E)

BR T XXRrAtsh - RN E R ET AT A&
BRI EBPBHRE LA HAEEAF
ERBEFENPFBRATMRE K
BREMBREAAEESALBERY

25,
2

FEMEREENE 165 AR

AEBERAFEERERETETER
EEAF16 - BRMBREERF
16 MR BB ST ERFI7THRIAE
(TEBGTENE17R]) REMERE -

HRHE %

AEEDEEEROBE 2 BEE
FA 75 S ZE RIS 16 SR B N SE AT 2 FERR
RERBER G ERFA7TRRETE(H
RUMBREREZES) — F4%RE
EXZHREREHE] - MU £ER
ERANZARERRTEEHENER
e Bt - ARERRERFERER
ERBHAEFENER -

FMPA2019%1 A1 B 2B L&k
MERME ' AEBERAREESH
BREERE16HHNRERBEE
HEE  UIHEARREREHEE -

EBRBEA

AEBBRBPERE BT IEREERE
1695 » W & X FEA B H (8120194 1
A1B)EREZFAFE -

R2019F1A1H AEBEEBRES
B 75 3R 5 22 B1| 5 16.C8(b)(ii) 57 3@ JE 1§ X
B R THEINEEaERERES
E cHEESERHEHEERE - VIRE
Az B EREREE BT RE ST
REER - WEAREFILLEER o
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

ERHIIREETEEMBREE
R(TEEMBEEERN ) (Z)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) FEEMBEREENE 16K AE (&)

As a lessee (Continued) EBRBA(E)
RBERERAEEVEHREEDNF 16
BRRETBYER REBFEAIUT
BEREEZA  RENEEEE B2
AR EBS S ELF 17RO B ALEE
AEMMEY - HEMEESRAER

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis,
to the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

FEREB QT ERIE 375 #E -
HRBERKABE FHEHER

()  relied on the assessment of whether leases are (i)
onerous by applying HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent

(i

Liabilities and Contingent Assets” as an alternative of
impairment review;

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease

(i

BEE - MERRERSNER
A

HEHRAEERERBH’E12E

liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12 ARERNIAE  IRIETHERAER
months of the date of initial application; BEENRHEERE

excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-
of-use assets at the date of initial application; and

used hindsight based on facts and circumstances
as at date of initial application in determining the
lease term for the Group’s leases with extension and
termination options.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application. The range of incremental
borrowing rates applied by the relevant group entities is
range from 4.35% to 6.72%.

(il

(iv)

EERERBBAMFEERREEE
o NEERERER &

REEXERERZEERBER -
HREEASBE AR MR LE
BENEEZHR -

RERTHOELSKEHENHERAR
- AREERBERERBHEREH

EqE]

ERMEEERNEX - HREEE

BORBERAEBEN F435%F
6.72% °
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERAHITREEITEEMEEREE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ([ EEMBHEEDN ) (E)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) FEEMBEREENE 16 AE (&)
As a lessee (Continued) EBRBA(E)
At
1 January
2019
20195
1818
HK$’000
F#EIT
Operating lease commitments disclosed R2018F 12 A31 HEER
as at 31 December 2018 (AT BRI 266,374
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental 78 & & &1L HE 1% & E X FI=RA5IH
borrowing rates 223,470
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases Ji : AR #A%e — SHAEE (36,166)
Lease liabilities relating to operating leases MR20196 1 A1 HERBE BT KR EE
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 as at A2 16 SRR E LA EHEMNTE
1 January 2019 S8E 187,304
Analysed as DT
Current mE) 32,863
Non-current IEME 154,441

187,304
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERFITREETEEMERESE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING R EEMBEEERD ) (&)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) FEEMBEREENE 16K AE (&)
As a lessee (Continued) EBRBA(E)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 January HZE2019F1 A1 HERAEEENERT
2019 comprises the following: BEEUT :
Right-of-use
assets
EHERE
HK$’000
FET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases R EFAE B ISR EEBIFE 16 SR FER
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 ML HERENFERREEE 187,304
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments (Note) {CTENFAERIBHR EH 58 (H17E) 407,238
594,542
By class: BoMR
Leasehold land HETHb 448,259
Coast psy== 5,306
Buildings B 1,374
Gas and oil plant and facilities RN E N R 68,316
Oil vessels yichiel 71,287
594,542
Note: Upfront payments for leasehold lands and coast in the PRC Kiit : mM2018F12A31H A B k& H
and Hong Kong were classified as prepaid lease payments MRS L REENTENRESBA
as at 31 December 2018. Upon application of HKFRS SEEDE IH - EREBMIEREE
16, the current and non-current portion of prepaid lease AlE165: 1% - ENHEEREN RS
payments amounting to approximately HK$19,870,000 K 3E 7 2B 19 9 5Bl & 49 19,870,000
and approximately HK$387,368,000 respectively were 75 7T N #) 387,368,000 7 TTH EHT

reclassified to right-of-use assets. HMAGRAESE -
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)
As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16, the Group is not required to make any adjustment
on transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor
but account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS
16 from the date of initial application and comparative
information has not been restated.

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental deposits
received were considered as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applied under trade and other
payables. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right-of-use assets and were adjusted to reflect the
discounting effect at transition. As at 1 January 2019, the
relevant adjustment is considered to be insignificant.

ERHIIREETEEMBREE
R(TEEMBEEEN ) (Z)

FEMBREENFE 16MBEI(E)
EBHEA

RBE B BRELEDNE 16 5 2 BIRF
X AREEBEARANEEESHEAZ
HEFHEERAE  BEEEAXREAZA
ERBEEEMBREERNE 16 KA
BHBEMALREET -

REABBMISREERE 1652 A1 -
BRI RERSRESWEAETES
FTERIZE 17 REE 5 R H AR BR IR
THEAMBEETHEER - BEREH
BRELEF16RNBEENKNER -
R WIERFERAREESBON
Ko W BHETT T TR AR MOE AT
HNE - R2019F1 A1 8 B@NFE
BWRBIERK -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

2. ERHMITRESTEEMERESE

R(TEEMBEEERN ) (Z)

FREMBREENFE 16MBEI(E)

R2019F 1 A 1 HH 4R E B 15K 3= 7
RS BEHATAE - RBEAXE
FEMIEE o

at 31 December

2018% 12 A31H

Non-current Assets

Land use rights (Note)

Prepaid lease payments for coast (Note)
Right-of-use assets

Current Assets
Land use rights (Note)
Prepaid lease payments for coast (Note)

Current Liabilities
Lease liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

FRDRE
TIEREMN L)
BFBENHEETEWZ)
ERELE

RYRE
T REA L)
BEBABREFENZ)

REBRR
HERE

FRBMAR
HEAR

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
December 2019, movements in working capital have been
computed based on opening consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed above.

Based on the assessment of the directors of the Company,
the application of HKFRS 16 as a lessor has no material
impact to these consolidated financial statements as at
date of initial application, 1 January 2019 and for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under HKFRS 16
reported at 1 January
2019

2018 ®2019%€1A1H
PARTER SR EERH
Adjustments  $REEHERISE 16 5%

ZERA(E THE BTRREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET
382,845 (382,845) -
4,523 (4,523) -

— 594,542 594,542

19,087 (19,087) -
783 (783) -

— 32,863 32,863

- 154,441 154,441

Hiat : BEE2019F 12 A31H IEFE N
BT ARECEEHNRESREM
T EBESHNEFHIRE E AT
BEH20194 1 A1 BB S B
HRRRETHE ©

BEHARRESHTG - ERABEH
HREEAE16HIEADTAAR BN E
FHE - 1201941 A1 H k20194
12A31BIEFEHZERE M BHRE
WESATE -
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®
and HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39

and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform?*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

ERHIIREETEEMBREE
R(TEEMBEEEN ) (Z)

ERBERRENZHTRIESTER

MIHEER

AREBEWEREFRAL T2 R/MERAK
ERMZHIRBETBRARBREE

Al :

EANBREENE TR RRAN'
BEUBRTENEIH  EHOES’
CHES
ERMBREEANE0R REERAMELAR
REEGHENFE28E  AELRHENE
LR AEE®
EAGENE 1 RREE EAMER
ERREIEL) A HEN
BEMBREENLOR - MEEEYRE
ERERHERIE 30N R
BRMBREENATR
AL

! R2021FE1 A1B 2 BHBZEE
BRI AE SR o

2 I % B H1 5202041 A1 8 52 &5
A EEEEHRES 2% REBA
BB E W RT R -

¢ RBRREZ AHRERABNFE
HARI AR -

¢ R2020FE1 A1BR 2 B HBENEE
BARAERK o

RETVBREBRSIERD R 20184
i o RRBIEFIKE B M5 M E %R
o 3 S AE 2R B9 R OB BT )8 R 2020
F1A1BAZRABZFRERAMES -

BT Al RRIERT 2 BB M IR E £
AN RARIEETRHAEAEMITR &
BEANEEMBREENHIEHAE
BrAIBRE R 2 EEMBREREERT
@,
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Definition of a Business”

The amendments:

o add an optional concentration test that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The election
on whether to apply the optional concentration test is
available on transaction-by-transaction basis;

o clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired
set of activities and assets must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs; and

o narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs
by focusing on goods and services provided to
customers and by removing the reference to an ability
to reduce costs.

The amendments are applied prospectively to all business
combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with early
application permitted.

The optional concentration test and the amended definition
of a business are not expected to have a significant impact
to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of
Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgments. In particular, the
amendments:

o include the concept of “obscuring” material
information in which the effect is similar to omitting or
misstating the information;

ERHIIREETEEMBREE
R(TEEMBEEERN ) (Z)

FEMBEBEENEIMZ BT 5
B E 8% |

e SIATEEMSHERG - Ut
SEFTESH — RN E REE
LIRS © 2 Lﬁpﬁﬁm
SHEAFHDEZAINEER HiEE

GE

s ERHRBF-REBN-—RBER
BREEMS HBEAELBER
KRG EEELNENMEEARR
BB AERLEEEERE K&

s EEBHBIRHKGEEPHNEMNL
AR - I MBR 5 P (AR AN BE T 9 4
ERMENEBMELNES ©

Z S 1&5] 18 21 B 7 Wi B B & 2020
F1A1BS 2 ERBENEEFERSE
B 2 BT B X546 T E E WS -
I 72 AR BTER A o

EENEPEASMEBNET ER
BRI T EHAKREELEATE -

FREERAE1RZBIISRERS
FHERISE SR EXMESR

BEERT 28 DA B & T 1 B K 4 7 s 9 2R
SMEBR G HERNERREMRTH
# o BERLHE

e BRIEMIEXERENER  HX
RBPURERIEREM
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of
Material” (Continued)

o replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather
than simply referring to “users” which was considered
too broad when deciding what information to disclose
in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all
HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application
of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “New Framework”) and the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards

The New Framework:
o reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

o introduces a new asset definition that focuses on
rights and a new liability definition that is likely to
be broader than the definition it replaces, but does
not change the distinction between a liability and an
equity instrument;

° discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

° states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or expenses
that arise from a change in the current value of an
asset or liability; and

ERHIIREETEEMBREE
R(TEEMBEEEN ) (Z)

FREEMS1RZEBISRERE
HHERIES M EXMER I(F)

s BRERPNEZMUIARFE]
BHRIAILGEBEEHZE] &

s BREERIEERFI—F  MmIkH
BRI R ] REELREENT
HRPREEBLEMEFRRBRERN
Bz e

ZEERNFAME R BN SRS ER
HEE @ WAERAEER2020F1 A 1
AFRBHFE RS T LK - TBEEA
RS CHEN =N A b S N E
REEEAVE  BREFERAVS
HEZ 2T RIFERE -

2018 FBREMSER(HER DR
REF BN R EERSHEROERD

HHER -
o« EFSAEEREELZIE
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “New Framework”) and the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards (Continued)

o discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of
account, the reporting entity and combined financial
statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to
the previous versions of the framework. These amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020, with earlier application permitted. Other
than specific standards which still refer to the previous
versions of the framework, the Group will rely on the
New Framework on its effective date in determining the
accounting policies especially for transactions, events
or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the
accounting standards.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

ERHITREESTERMBEREE
R(TEEMBEEERN ) (2)

2018 FMBREBMSER(HER DR
REFRMBGREENRSEROERT
(%)

e HmTHEEREER - KRILER - &5t
B REERRAFUBHRE -

HEETEEL  BUEE@EE THBH
BREEAFNIRLAEETEFAIIE
R RS BEBTHRELENNZEZ
HEZRH S RTAR AR » ZHEFTH 2020 4F 1
A1HSZ2BRAAMNFERREER - I
AIREER - BID2ZEZERLERRA
B E ZERISN - ANEEE R H A A 8
RHERRESHEER  LERgR%E
AR ERENR S « BHIEMH -

FEEMHBE

RAMBRERTDREELEMAER
2 BB BRELERNRR - I - &R
MBI AMRMES TR
(TEMRA) REBRBERPIREZE
AEERR -

REMBHRRIVIRELRAEERE
MO T PR @ ETBURFAAREE - B17%
TADREREPRZATFERE -
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) HKAS
17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories”
or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its return.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see
the accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with
market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9
would be accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the previously
held equity interest.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets
or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
the financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective
fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is
then allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities
on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill
or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see accounting policy above) less any
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

3.

FEEBREE)
meRE(E)

MR EBAHFEENBRERR - A6
BRFAEMNARTEK ARBANLHF
BERTKAENIEE - EFFEHR
(W EBRBYEREFENFTHLIER
MEFHEN  MRZFEMSNEWE
HERRHEE  RBEVNSHESHE
HEPUENHE  LEERBINEE
KAIME °

Wr kB —RIPH B A R A F IR — IR

AEBWBE—BITEKR—BEKZE
ENBER AESRATESIEREER
BEMBHEENMMB A BB RER
BEUNBZEABNEERERESR
B MBEEZHRBEERERANEER
BE SR FESREEMER R H
BIEERARE AHRZATEELR
ENREBE RS -

[} 4

WEXBELEZBEDENBBERE
B (R Bl &5t BOR ) HESL 2 AN R E fA]
REtREBEIE )R

SUREREME  BEIDKIEDAE
BExReELBU(RRSELEUL
M) - FFHEERS G2 15 R BE T
Xuo YWRRTAANBEENERHE
HREKRF - MAPAARREEDNHE -

I 89



90 |

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #7/Z8REBAER A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
r e R

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F 12 A31 HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill, and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit (“CGU”) or
any of the CGU within the group of CGUs, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within
a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed of
is measured on the basis of the relative values of the
operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of the
CGU (or the group of CGUSs) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in an associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

3.

FEEBREE)
[} 16V

EESEREZREELEU(ZRE
ELBEUZARN)SFARENME A&
3R BB 2 B 5% B BB 4R 3 HE 1T R (B R
Ao RREEEZHRM WBRELZRA
BME HEBECEIKCRESELENM
(FRSEEEM AR RZ2RAR
ZABETTRERR - BRI E S E DR
ZBMzEREE AREBEELHSD
i - WHIR D BB e REE -
HEUNBM(HBEEEEEM 2ER)E
BEZEEEARERLIIDRRZE
Iz HMEE -

HERBERSELBEN(REELE
2 DR EEBMARAEMNIR
TELBNE BECRHSHEEET
HEBRRZ SRR EER - EXER
ReELBM(HReELBMARNR
Z—BREELBM)ALE -BEK
B EHENBESBEIREMHESR
B(SRSELELML) MR EERMARF
BRcELBM(IREELEN A
BB EBAFHE o

AREEBKE - RBEATRA B
AMELEZ B2 BT -

RARBELRRSELR

BERRAAKEAHETEEATE
NZBR -BEAFERARZESKE
S R EERE - ME IR B
R4 Il % IR R



Annual Report 2019 =Z— L FEF#H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre M E R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F 12 A 31 AIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in an associate and joint ventures
(Continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the associate or joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in an associate and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Principal versus agent (Continued)

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods
or services to be provided by the other party.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

3.
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EE2019F 12 A 31 AIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of certain properties that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets, the Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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EE2019F 12 A31 HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability; and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the condensed consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.
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EE2019F 12 A 31 AIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs (see the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered
as integral part of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases. Amounts
due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as
receivables at commencement date at amounts equal to
net investments in the leases, measured using the interest
rate implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct costs
(other than those incurred by manufacturer or dealer
lessors) are included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value
model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

3.

FEEBREE)
HE (&)

EEFEBABA(R2019F1H1H
ZHi) (&)

HQLHER BOHEERBE R
EMENROERED - BEE R AR
WaiR B AOEER AR IR D

FREFEBHBEA
HESERiTE

AEBEESEEANEESBELREN
ERKEHE - BHENKEREE L&
EARRE ERT B AR ATE AR KR
MEZmeAEAR - ZRABHOERGER
REHE AL HERRERKE
HE - EHEE T RUEEANREAR
Fts B HIER SRR HEBER
MEFRE  TEASEHRETRESH
FRTE - A EZAAN(RERHE
HELEAEENERRARIN) B
EHEFRENRTES - FBUEA
DhRESHHE URRAEESFHEE
ENREEFRENE T EHWEE

REMENHEHS R AERBESEHRA
RIREREER QAR - B R THER
EHERELNTIRERKATARE
BEMNKEE ARAKNAREEHAR
EREERSAX(REBEQFEREG
ENREWERIN) ©

HASE -RETBBETEENES K
ATI2IIBEA -



Annual Report 2019 =Z— L FEF#H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre M E R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F 12 A 31 AIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease
by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, not with reference to the underlying asset.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purpose other than
construction in progress, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

FEEBREE)
HE(#)

EREEBHBA (ZEME2BRERH
BFEUBHELERFE165#%)

DEREZEE AL E S

EEARKBREEENRIEHEERD - &
SERRERVH RS EF 16RO
REEZEANTNHEHENIFHEER D - 3F
HEAKE D RIZEARE B HEER
A EEKED D °

RENHER T

BERHARERERSREFT MR
HEEAFEI|AR - XN FRAFEE
E - R PHERH R FEELHABK
BRREABANBEIMEERNK

2

EAKEATHLOEAR  ©REEE
MABIERMEEBNSRETEE
BH2RIZHEELNEREEE -
MmARHEEEE " HESREHENK

LHE -
HEE

AEESKEREEHBERERBH
RRIERFMEEANRR  MERESHBEN
AN REAEENK  ERHHEE
R ES D FHE IR °

WX WBREME

BRERTRIN W% BEERRESE
MEE RREEXREHREMSIRS
FEITHRETRR BT IRES MG
RARERANENRERRAFERR
FORERE (B AR -

99



100!

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #7/Z8REBAER A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ira ISR M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F 12 A31 HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as “right-
of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or “prepaid
lease payments” (before application of HKFRS 16) in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation are recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets, other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis. For vessels, the residual value of each
vessel is equal to the product of its light weight tonnage
and estimate scrape rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building
(Continued)

Vessel components costs include the cost of major
components which are usually replaced or renewed at dry
dockings. The Group capitalises dry docking costs as they
are incurred and depreciates these costs using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Properties under development for sales

Properties for/under development for sales which are
intended to be sold upon completion of development
and properties for sale are classified as current assets.
Except for the leasehold land element which is measured
at cost model in accordance with the accounting policies
of right-of-use assets upon the application of HKFRS 16,
properties for/under development/properties for sales are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure incurred
and where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
the properties less estimated cost to completion and costs
necessary to make the sales.

Properties under development for sales are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful live less
impairment losses, if any (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or the group
of CGUs) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or the group of
CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the year, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of the
exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences relating to translation
of the functional currency of the foreign operation to RMB,
the functional currency of the Company, accumulated
in equity attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
Company’s functional currency, RMB, to the presentation
currency, HKS$, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate). Such exchange differences accumulated
in exchange reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
before 1 January 2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign
currency items of the acquirer and reported using the
historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the other
comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
For properties under development for which revenue is
recognised over time, the Group ceases to capitalise
borrowing costs as soon as the properties are ready for the
Group’s intended sale.

Effective 1 January 2019, any specific borrowing that
remain outstanding after the related asset is ready for its
intended use or sale is included in the general borrowing
pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

3.

FEEBREE)
S (&)

BARRABNEEBARBRERZINE
BARTAEENELZRNE M2 EK
SRR URBREFHER TAERET
Rt RBN IR ) (RIFRAME)
ZERELFRETOHELRFZETE
EEREBEHOME -

M E200551 A1 B Z Al W8 & sb
EHMELNABHIEENEEMAF
BERABRERBRETONIFEEEINEIR
B WRAUWERNRITELKARET

HE -

720054 1 A1 B pI R W& I R i
EEZBRAMKRBARANEEZHER
RNPERBIESZBINMEERE 2 E
ENBERE YERNRZBHKRZES
ERETHE EEZERERINE
fib 2 W e A RERR, ©

ERAE

AREE RERLEESREREE M
ZEEFTE BRBRNERTEEDH
B AERHENE - HEERRET2E
ERA YREMMCGHARBEFIEEK
Ko BHEZFEEAY LCEEHEMER
RE S HEMRER - ZEEERAER
BIEEREEA -

BH2019F1 B1HEMR  EHEBEE
EDEEHARR L ERERTDAESR
RIE(THFE 3R - ¥ ET A — R fE 50 A
ATE-REFNERE - BFEEEE
BRBEEMBZIRERAERER
BEEZHEAINAREENMCZEER
AHG ©



Annual Report 2019 =Z— L FEF#H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre M E R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F 12 A 31 AIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the
lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised

when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers, including trade related amounts
due from an associate and a joint venture, which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, loan advances, deposits paid
and other receivables, amounts due from an associate and
a joint venture, pledged bank deposits and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and
collectively using a provision matrix for the remaining
balances based on its historical observed default rates
which is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i)

(i

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i) ~ Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the

FEEBREE)
MBIRE)
MEBEZE(E)

R EEBE (RIEHT AL 2 628 R 1XX T
[EEER 5 ERIE 9% ) (&)

(i) (EEREMNMEEEE)
(© EREMERANR AR

MEBERAHIER - BRA
B PR A T £ SR 3R H R

(iv)

borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at
a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(iv)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade and other receivables are each assessed
as a separate group. Loans advances are
assessed for expected credit losses on an
individual basis);

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

3.

FEEFRBRE)

MBIRE)

MEZE(E)

R EEBE (RIEHT AL 2 6728 R 1EX T
JEREER 5 ERIE 9% ) (&)

v)

BHEEBRNERER

BEHMEEEENETROMSEX -
BABRR(AIEEKREBRHNE
JB) KB X R H) KB - B AR
KEXBRRRIBEREIEE R
ErBEBRETHHE - BHEER
EIRE AT AR CAZE A Y% BER
Jea\ Bz VE 75 N BU(EL T i 5E B R AR
RINETH °

—RimE  AREEEREIERIE
BHRNASENMEENERESR
HEAKERHBWERNAERER
BEZRNERE  WIRVTHRRE
ERBERRFEREE o FEWATHIR
ERMEFZEMERSEHT LA -

IR E R BRI R AR
EXESER TENKFER TR
AEBNAE  AIMBTAZAT
-

%)

M TANLEE (BAKEH
& U5 5 5 B 7 e L A W R
BHRIFERBILAR - &
RERENEEFERMER
BR)

o BHBUR

e ERAME - - ARREITE:
&

o INEMEERIR(INA) o



Annual Report 2019 =Z— L FEF#H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre M E R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F 12 A 31 AIFFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables, contract assets and where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii)
held for trading or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial liabilities)
including trade payables, other creditors and accrued
charges, amounts due to an associate and a joint venture
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the management of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill relating to the sales and
distribution of LPG/oil/chemical products business are
impaired that requires estimation of the recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less cost to sell and value in use. The Group performed
impairment assessment by estimating the value in use
of the cash-generating units in which the goodwill are
attributable to. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The
discount rate represents the rate that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow
estimates have not been adjusted. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected or where there are
revision in future estimated cash flows due to unfavourable
changes in facts and circumstances, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying
amounts of goodwill are approximately HK$766,973,000
(2018: HK$742,051,000). There was no impairment loss
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018. Details of the goodwill are disclosed in note 19.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Trade receivables have been assessed individually with
outstanding significant balances and collectively using
a provision matrix for the remaining balances, which is
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the historical observed default rates adjusted for forward-
looking estimates that is available without undue costs
or effort. The Group applies internal credit rating for its
customers. The debtors are assessed individually with
significant balances by reference to aging, past default
experience and current past due exposure of the debtor,
and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position.
Estimated loss rates are based on probability of default
and loss given default with reference to an external credit
agency and are adjusted for forward-looking information.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. The provision of ECL is
sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about
the Group’s trade receivables and the ECL are disclosed in
notes 25 and 38 respectively.

4.
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5. REVENUE
Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received
and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less sales related taxes.

A. For the year ended 31 December 2019

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

5. KA
WA EAEERIINAREHEERFT
WER & IR 2 R8Ol B BT IA) °
A. BE2019F12A31HILEE

FKEHEHEFBIKA B

customers

Type of goods and services
ARREEES

Sales and

distribution

of LPG

HERSBALE

HK$°000

Oil/chemical
products
business

10
LIGEHE
HK$’000

Sales of
electronic
products

HEETER
HK$°000

FET FET FET
Sales and distribution of LPG HERDHRIER
Wholesalers B3RS 2,960,096 - -
End users #im A P 4,559,130 - -
7,519,226 - -
Oil/chemical products business m@m/ EIRES
QOil products il
Sale of oil products HE M - 18,838,892 -
Provision of agency services RUERE AR - 12,724 =
- 18,851,616 -
Chemical products {tIdn - 438,335 -
- 19,289,951 -
Sales of electronic products HEBETEM
Integrated circuit RAERIR - - 842,703
Mobile phones Fi - - 140,033
- - 982,736
Total B&f 7,519,226 19,289,951 982,736
Geographical markets, based WETE  BEM
on shipment destination Byt
Mainland China F B K 5,768,379 6,780,893 982,736
Hong Kong &5 28,270 4,567,109 -
Singapore and Malaysia g & 5 R an - 6,859,173 —
Others (Note) B (fiz) 1,722,577 1,082,776 =
Total A&t 7,519,226 19,289,951 982,736

Note: Other countries represented mainly countries in the
Asia Pacific (excluding Singapore and Malaysia) and
United States.

Wi EBERERRTSRMECTE
FEFTINR K TR ) ]k E -
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B.

“E-NEFR

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA#E)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B. EFX2018F 128 31HILLEE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with KEBHEFBIRA DT
customers
Qil/chemical
Sales and products Sales of
distribution business electronic
Type of goods and services ‘ of LPG B/ _products
78 m & i i 8 HERDHRIER Tt ImEB HEBTEM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT FAET
Sales and distribution of LPG HE R HRIER
Wholesalers iR 3,815,088 - -
End users #m M P 6,142,700 - —
9,057,788 - -
Oil/chemical products business Wi/ L TRER
Oil products Hm
Sales of oil products HE = 13,638,648 =
Provision of agency services RERIE AR = 14,213 =
- 13,652,861 -
Chemical products tIm — 5,698,117 -
— 19,350,978 —
Sales of electronic products HEBTEM
Integrated circuit RABEIR - — 553,500
Mobile phones Fi - - 145,539
- - 699,039
Total & 9,957,788 19,350,978 699,039
Geographical markets, based MESRH  BEY
on shipment destination eyl
Mainland China F B R e 7,992,154 7,256,743 699,039
Hong Kong B 863,370 3,436,872 =
Singapore and Malaysia T ANYE K 55 2R A o - 3,821,775 -
Others (Note) ity (Hzt) 1,102,264 4,835,588 -
Total Gl 9,957,788 19,350,978 699,039

Note: Other countries represented mainly countries in the
Asia Pacific (excluding Singapore and Malaysia),

United States and Australia.
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REVENUE (Continued)

5.

C.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018

Performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group recognises revenue from the sales and
distribution of LPG, oil/chemical products and
electronic products in the period that the performance
obligations are satisfied which refers to delivery of the
goods to the destination specified by the customers.
The destination may be vessel on which the goods
is shipped or destination port or the customer’s
premises. Performance obligation are satisfied at a
point in time once control of the goods has been
transferred to the customers and the customers
have obtained control on the goods through their
ability to direct other use of and obtain substantially
all the benefits from the goods. Transportation and
other related activities that occur before customers
obtain control of the related goods are considered as
fulfilment activities. The payment of the transaction
price for the sales and distribution of LPG to certain
end-users is due immediately at the point the
customer purchases the goods. Other than that, the
credit period granted to customers is ranged from 30
to 180 days upon delivery for the revenue streams of
sales and distribution of LPG, oil/chemical products
and electronic products.

The Group recognised revenue from provision of
agency services when the Group satisfies its promise
to arrange for the goods to be provided by the
suppliers to the customers and in the amount of any
fee or commission to which the Group is exchange
for arranging the oil products to be provided to the
end customers. Performance obligations are satisfied
at a point in time once control of the goods has been
transferred to customers.

Contracts with customers with unsatisfied
performance obligations, including sales and
distribution of LPG, oil/chemical products and
electronic products, have original expected duration
of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

5.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Chairman of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on nature and location of
the goods being sold. These revenue streams and the basis
of the internal reports about components of the Group
are regularly reviewed by the CODM in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.
No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

The Group currently organises into the following major
operating segments, each of which represents an operating
and reportable segment of the Group:

1. Sales and distribution of LPG — This segment derives
its revenue from selling of LPG to various customers
including industrial customers, auto-gas operators,
overseas wholesale customers, bottled LPG end-
users and auto-gas end-users.

2. Qil/chemical products business — This segment
derives its revenue from selling of oil/chemical
products, including revenue from oil products in which
the Group acts as an agent.

3. Sales of electronic products — This segment derives
its revenue from trading of electronic products such
as integrated circuit and mobile phones.

4. Sales and distribution of NG — In prior years, the
Group began to venture into sales and distribution of
NG industry, but still in preliminary stage, the segment
information reported below includes assets related
to the sales and distribution of NG business. The NG
business is still in development stage and no revenue
is contributed during the year. Thus, the segment
information reported below only includes assets and
liabilities related to the sales and distribution of NG
industry.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. SEMEHEE)
Segment revenues and results FRB AR R
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and NTARZRERSEREENEEH 2K
results by reportable and operating segment. EBUWAREEDT ©
For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHFE2019F 12831 HILFE
Sales and Oil/chemical Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products Consolidated
HERSH i e
RILE tIRER BEFER o]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FEIT FETT FETT
Segment revenue L LON 7,519,226 19,289,951 982,736 27,791,913
Segment profit DR 523,905 413,889 80,994 1,018,788
Share of profits of joint ventures D EA & EEH 2,091 - - 2,091
Share of profit of an associate D E—FEH LR A
A 358 - - 358
526,354 413,889 80,994 1,021,237
Other income HabUg A 22,003
Central administration costs R REIE AL AR (56,286)
Directors’ emoluments EE5Me (10,815)
Changes in fair values of TEPBIAATE
derivative financial instruments 2 2t 9,561
Finance costs BB AR (358,485)

Profit before taxation BR A Al V4 A 627,215
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EE2019F 12 31 HILFZE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. HEBEHE)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) SRk AREREZ)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 EFE2018F 12531 HILEE
Sales and Qil/chemical Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products  Consolidated
HE KD H i, HE
RIER E T RER BEFEM e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue DU A 9,957,788 19,350,978 699,039 30,007,805
Segment profit D48 F 835,310 188,780 39,420 1,058,510
Share of profits of joint ventures & & & > %% Fl 1,967 - - 1,967
Share of loss of an associate DE—FREE R A
& 419) = - (419)
836,858 183,780 39,420 1,060,058
Other income HAb A 55,746
Central administration costs HRREIRRK AN (48,941)
Directors’ emoluments =G (10,235)
Changes in fair values of THEMBEIARTE
derivative financial instruments 2 2% (73,432)
Finance costs BB AR (284,525)
Profit before taxation PR A A 698,671
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are 2o 2 g 5T B SR M RE 3 B A
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in AEE S BEKRAR - EXFAE®m
note 3. All of the segment revenue reported above is from FTESEIWABREINBES - 640
external customers, joint ventures or an associate. Segment ¥ —REERA - DB RANEZSHEE
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without AOBMETAER BULA ~ RREFERAK -
allocation of certain interest income, central administration EEME  TTEMBITEAFEZNE
costs, directors’ emoluments, changes in fair values of K&K o

derivative financial instruments and finance costs.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6.

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

The Group has a subsidiary engaged in the property

investment and development in the PRC and the revenue

generate from this business is included as the consolidated

revenue of the Group. There was no property sold for
the two years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. The

operating result and other financial information of this

subsidiary are not reviewed by the CODM for the purpose

of resources allocation and performance assessments.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by operating segment:

Segment assets

SEEHE)
SEBMARETE(EZ)
HFE2018F 12831 HILFE(E)

AEBZ —HHBARRTEREEE
RERERE  LWEEBAEENRAR
BREAAEENLGES KA - HZE2019
F 2018412 A 31 H IFREFE I £
HETADE - LB ARZ EXEE
REMMEER T ELEBLERESE
H6 - MEB RSB KRR -

SERERAR

UTAREES RS 2 ARBEE R
B EH -

PHEE

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$’000

F&IT FAETL

Sales and distribution of LPG HE R HBRIER 4,122,900 4,725,085
Sales and distribution of NG HE R D HRAR 47,549 46,771
Oil/chemical products business M b TR 7,676,846 6,636,396
Sales of electronic products HEBTFEM 456,622 603,500
Total segment assets ROBREE 12,303,917 12,011,752
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 821 1,231
Pledged bank deposits SRR ITER 360,218 243,095
Bank balances and cash IRTTEH MRS 2,288,684 2,295,797
Derivative financial instruments PTEMKITA 6,606 4,886
Properties under development for sales {F&E2ERER Y% 766,253 724,928
Properties held for sales RERFEME 146,841 150,274
Other unallocated assets B ARDEEE 798,846 740,157
Consolidated assets mERE 16,672,186 16,172,120
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment liabilities

SERHEE)

PWRERARE)

DEAR

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Sales and distribution of LPG SHE RO HBRIER 717,687 408,528
Sales and distribution of NG HE R DHERKAR 5,576 14,417
Oil/chemical products business s b T RmER 676,065 909,431
Sales of electronic products HEETEM 114 8,568
Total segment liabilities rBoBAaE 1,399,442 1,335,944
Derivative financial instruments PTTEFKT A 9,787 9,912
Tax liabilities =N 117,100 105,206
Deferred tax liabilities BB EE 64,280 81,684
Borrowings EE 7,054,410 7,173,371
Other unallocated liabilities EtRpELEaE 53,043 24,121
Consolidated liabilities REAE 8,698,062 8,730,238

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable segments
(other than deferred tax assets, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, derivative financial
instruments, and certain deposits paid, certain other
receivables, properties under development for sales,
properties held for sales and certain property, plant
and equipment); and

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
(other than current and deferred tax liabilities,
borrowings, derivative financial instruments and
certain other payables).

The Group has allocated goodwill to the relevant segments
as segment assets.

oif &

MEEDBRALRR D BEESEERM

BEEDNNEEZEE2H/OB(RIE
BB EE - CEMRITERK - |7
EMERE  TTEMBIARET
BEfEE - BT HEMEEKIER
EERTYE FBEREVERE
THWE  WBERRERIN - R

BERBEDNAEZEZ2%RD BB
MEEHRBERE - B ITEME
TARETHMBEMNERRERIN) -

AEBERHBIEEAROBEIERD
BEE -

129
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. SEMEHEE)
Other segment information Htt &
For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHFE2019F 12531 HILEE

Sales and Sales and  OQil/chemical Sales of
distribution distribution products electronic
of LPG of NG business products Unallocated Consolidated
HERNE HERSH 1Y #e
.14 4 AR LIREE TTER xR &8
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the SENERNRNE
measure of segment profit BERGTAZE
or segment assets: B
Addition to non-current assets K BIEREARE
(Note) (Hiit) 33,818 - 505,100 - 56,726 595,644
Addition of goodwil REHE 32,108 - - - - 32,108
Depreciation of property, plant 1% « KR RRE
and equipment il 100,684 - 50,177 - 780 151,641
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FAEEE 2 E
assets 14,045 - 34,357 - 9,486 57,888
Amortisation of other intangible  E- AT A7 % &
assets 23,050 - 17,120 - - 40,170
Loss (gain) on disposal and HE R %
written off of property, plant ~ RRREZER
and equipment (F53) 29,107 - (18,804) - - 10,303
Impairment losses on REER
— trade receivables — ERESER - - 8,000 - - 8,000
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EE2019F 12 31 HILFZE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Amounts included in the measure
of segment profit or segment
assets:

Addition to non-current assets
(Note)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of other intangiole
assets

Amortisation of land use rights

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments for coast

Loss on disposal and written off of
property, plant and equipment

Allowance for inventories

Impairment losses on
— trade receivables
— other financial assets

subjected to ECL

AENERNENREE
Bt AZ2E:

RERYEE
(#it)
nE BERRENE

Rt EVEEAR

HbERERE
BFEFEENA
2]
HERMBNE - BER
R BR
FREH
AEBR
- EUESER
- RYEERRET
LB
EE

Sales and
distribution

of LPG

RERDE

RIER

HK§'000

TET

124,308

83,882

24129
2,474

808

Sales and
distribution
of NG
HERAH
AR
HK$'000
AT

6.

Oll/chemical
products
business

i/
[ ANGES)
HK$'000
AT

11,860
54,142

17,120
861

5,490
120,000

19,302

30,000

Annual Report 2019 =& —
SHREHE)
HthaEEHEE)
#HFE20185F 12531 HILFEE

Manufacturing
Sales of and
glectronic  distribution
products  of charcoals  Unallocated
HE R
STED AKX AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT
- 3,198 99,899
- 383 1,428
- 6,99 -
- - 7,456
- - 353
124 - -

NEFH

Consolidated

fa
HK8'000
123

239,255

139,830

48,245
10,791

808

18,021
120,000

20,000

30,000

131

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.

Mg SERBEENBITELENIREE °
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B E 20194 12 431 A1EFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. SEMEHEE)
Geographical information HmEZHE
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (country AEBEBZREEBMNEB(EELE
of domicile), Macau and the PRC. HlE) RFIRAFE -
Information about the Group’s revenue from external AEBEIIBEFUWAERAEY B Hit
customers is presented based on shipment destination. 25 REBEFERBEECERNEE
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is WIBAEZ50F
presented based on the geographical location of the
assets:

Non-current assets

Revenue from (Note a)
external customers ERENEE
SPEBERIA (Htita)
2019 2018 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET FETT FET
Hong Kong BB
(country of domicile) (FELEMRR) 4,595,379 4,300,242 681,761 724,001
The PRC =8
(excluding Hong Kong) (T EIEES) 13,532,008 15,947,936 = 3,642,232 3,271,200

Singapore and Malaysia 03 & 55 AR P g 6,859,173 3,821,775 150,636 42,371

Other countries (Note b) ~ HABEXR(A/z#b) 2,805,353 5,937,852 3,567 2,361

Total aEr 27,791,913 30,007,805 4,478,196 4,039,933

Notes: Bia -

(a)  Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. (@ ERBEETCRREEEMBEE -

(b)  Other countries represented mainly other countries in the b) HBERFEARDAMECTEIET
Asia Pacific (excluding Singapore and Malaysia), United N3 KBS 2k hen ) « £ KIBNBEER o
States and Australia.

Information about major customers FREEERZEH

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the REZE2019F 12 A1 HIEFER © I

customers (2018: one) contributing over 10% of the total 2018 1A BEFEMASBEHERZ

sales of the Group. F10% A EZIA o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Information about major customers (Continued)

Revenue from a customer contributing over 10% of the
total sales of the Group in year 2018 are as follows:

SERHEE)

FRERERZAHE)

—E-hFFH 1133

R2018% U THEFPEMAKEIHE

HER10% LA EZ WA -

2019 2018

Customer A (Note)

EPAKE)

HK$°000
FET

HK$°000
FET

3,065,812

Note: Revenue from oil product business. It contributed to less
than 10% of the Group’s total revenue for the relevant years.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES AND OTHER 7.

INCOME

Bt mmEHZWA - HIEBEFEEE R

WARIEL BTN Z R 10% °

HtiFf s REBRREMUA

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000
F&iT FEIT
Changes in fair values of derivative PTHEMBITARNTE 2 RE
financial instruments 9,561 (73,432)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE W B QRIS - 2,819
Gain on deemed disposal of a joint HEREE—REEDLEMS
venture (note 36(ii) (K7 36(i) 9,218 —
Net exchange loss i 5 H AR (49,330) (123,695)
Other gains and losses HAFT1S K EE (80,551) (194,308)
Interest income on pledged RMB bank 2 A R¥ERITIER
deposits F B WA 2,265 8,164
Interest income FLEWA 18,432 54,039
Interest income for financial assets at  REBEK AT ERN K EE
amortised costs F B HA 20,697 62,203
Income from provision of transportation 21 & # AR 75 2 Ug A
services 11,305 20,076
Government subsidy BT fE 2,495 13,797
Others Hih 27,953 17,443
Other income H A A 62,450 113,519
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EE2019F 12 31 HI-FZE

8. FINANCE COSTS

8. MBEEE

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Interests on bank trust receipts loans RITERWIRE R R E MM ER
and other loans Z A8 154,949 108,546

Interests on bank loans pledged with IR IR T RIRIE 2 IR1T
RMB bank deposits Bz A E 10,149 18,228
Interests on other bank borrowings E b IRIT1E A B 185,167 162,756
Interests on lease liabilities HEAEFE 8,220 —
358,485 284,525

9. TAXATION 9. MEXH

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

represents:

RS EEE

RiFeBRaEME2ERERATNRZ

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000
F&iT FET
Current tax B EAR 18

Hong Kong &% 11,499 12,886
Other regions in the PRC r 20 L i 3 [ 24,459 23,040
35,958 35,926

Deferred tax (note 35) BIETIE (A7 35)
Current year REFEA (15,853) (7,711)
20,105 28,215
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9. TAXATION (Continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “‘Bill’’) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018
and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from 2018, the Hong Kong Profits Tax
of the qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the
first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and
at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25%.

MIAZH (&)

R2018F3H21H ' AL EZZRB
T2017TFEBBUSET ) (BTHR)IEHE
R(MEHMEZR]) - ZIEHMERSIATE
EBREHRESE - ZARKNK2018F 3
H28 BEFBXRERE WX BEER
TZ - BREBEEEFNEHHE  AEKSE
EEEMNE2B8 8B EH%Z8.25%
R mHBB2 788 ThFEA AR
16.5% B H - TR & & E 1S H L &
ENSEEBHNFBEEEIZ16.5% K
(& 7E Bt R EF o

Bt - #2018 F Mt AEREEE
BHFENEHREFERTENOE
2HBBITIE8.25% tE « Ml EtER
BB 2 BEETIZ16.5%:TH °

BIEREARLMBECERSHFE(D
EREHEDRCEMESHIEEHIE
B PEEARBERAZEAE25% °
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EE2019F 12 A31 HILFE
9. TAXATION (Continued)

9.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

2019 2018

MIAZH (&)

AREFZRAX A BGEEE KA
EHEHKERZFHADENSRAT

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Profit before taxation R B A& A 627,215 698,671
Tax at the domestic tax rate 25% BAHF R 25% 5T E 2 Bl 156,804 174,668
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ TR I X 2 B2 2
for tax purpose 113,474 140,380
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax HERF WA Z TS £
purpose (44,479) (44,377)
Tax effect of profit which are exempted %%t Hll 2 i 75 57 28
from tax (224,244) (256,134)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  KRIERFIEEIE 2 TS5 2 40,903 37,129
Utilisation of deductible temporary &) A 5% Bl AR FE R 2 T H L B
differences previously not recognised = %8 (3,171) (1,400)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B SERTARMER 2 FiEE 8
recognised (11,468) (33,286)
Effect of different tax rate of group ZFE@E‘EEFEP B PASN 2 Bty
entities operating in jurisdictions other RCE 2 PRIBER 2 28
than PRC (7,879) 11,070
Income tax at concessionary rate HEBEWMEGTE 2GR 165 165
Taxation for the year REFZHIA 20,105 28,215

The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC enterprise income
tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group

is substantially based is used.

Details of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are set out

in note 35.

ERAZHERARE TR EME E1E

A2 AN B =R (BN Ap B0 b 2 pT 1S R B
K)o

EEMRBEEN ABFBHNMESS
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10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRRAIEF

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Profit before taxation has been arrived B %A K 2 Hk (5T A)
at after charging (crediting): THIER -
Amortisation of land use rights 4 {5 PR A 4 5H
(included in administrative expenses)  (BIEEITEZ ERA) - 10,791
Amortisation of prepaid lease B ETENEE IR
payments for coast (included in cost  (BIEEEEKAA)
of sales) - 808
Amortisation of other intangible assets H iz & FE#E i (B IEE
(included in selling and distribution HERDHZHA)
expenses) 40,170 48,245
Allowance for inventories (included in ~ FE#1{&E
cost of sales) (BIEEHERANA) - 120,000
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z S A B & 5,196 4,498
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - MR RRETE
equipment 151,641 139,830
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 57,888 —
Loss on disposal and written off of e KRS - ek
property, plant and equipment RiEZ BB 10,303 18,021
Minimum lease payments under WAE Ry HELTH
operating leases for offices, oil TR b R 48 & 2 &K
vessels, leasehold land and LPG e
station - 123,056
Gross rental income from leasing of HERE B BHEE
warehouses and oil vessels A (12,063) (16,778)
Less: Direct operating expenses JB EEEEET 4,296 6,679
(7,767) (10,099)
Staff costs EE KA
Directors’ fees (note 11) BEEwe(WE11) 390 330
Directors’ other emoluments EEHMIE (HET11)
(note 11) 10,425 9,905
Contributions to retirement benefits % 88,0007 7T (2018 :
schemes excluding HK$88,000 108,000/ 0) B 5t A
(2018: HK$108,000) included in EEM e 2 BRRERE
directors’ emoluments I 10,906 11,936
Staff salaries and bonus BIfHehEe 150,436 157,858
172,157 180,029
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EZ2019F 1231 HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 11. EFERFETHARMS
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2018: 9) B ERFONMN(2018: 9 ) EE R
directors and chief executive were as follows: AZBEIAT -

Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive Directors
UiEs BUFUES
Chiu
Sing Cheung Chan

Shum Ka  Chung, Wang Kwan Yuk
Chun, Fai,  Raymond Jian Hung, Wai, Xu
Lawrence Brian  (Mr.Chiu) (Mr.Wang)  Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe
it 4 Ig
£ BRA (8%%) (IZE) %8R WER  Rait
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
T fET FET TE#r FEr  FET  FET  TET  TET TP

(Noteg) — (Noteb)
(Wa)  (Wib)

Fees e - - - - - - 150 120 120 390
Other emoluments Efpiie
Selares and other benefis Ho RAER 3000 1420 1605 2200 1740 562 - - - 03
Contrbutions to refirement RIVEHFTEIRS
bengfits scheme 18 18 18 18 8 8 - - - 88

Total emoluments [ 3,018 1,138 1,628 2,308 1,748 590 150 120 120 10815
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EE2019F 12 A 31 AIFFE
11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

11. EFERFETHRARMEE)

Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive Directors
8% BUjHES
Chiu
S Sing Cheung Chan
Shum Shum Ka  Chung, Wang Kwan Yuk
Sy Chun, Cen Fa,  Raymond Jin Hung, Wai, Xu Total
Hung  Lawrence Zini Brian  (Mr.Chi ~(Mr.Wang)  Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe 018
A I8 fir
205 28 21+ ExE (ErE) (FfE) SB% REE f4 2018
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKSO000
tr AT #Er i fEr T TEr T TEn
Fees e = = = = = = 130 100 100 330
Other emoluments Effe
Saares and other benefis B RERER 3000 100 130 232 150 63 - - -9
Contrbutons to retrement RINEAE SR
benefits scheme 18 18 18 18 18 18 - - - 108
Total emoluments iz 3018 1,08 1338 2320 1518 653 130 100 100 10235
Notes: Bt

a. The disclosed emoluments for Mr. Chiu represents the
emoluments received and receivable before his retirement on
5 June 2019.

b. The disclosed emoluments for Mr. Wang represents the
emolument received and receivable before his resignation on
1 October 2019.

No director or chief executive waived any emoluments
during both years.

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration
shown above were mainly for their services as director of
the Company.

Mr. Shum Siu Hung is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

a HEENBEEBEHMN HREKRER 2019
6 A5 HERATE M EWRAE -

b. IhAEMNEEEFHIIAKRER2019
F£10 A 1 BEEATE W R U Z B

KRRFATEEENEEMAHE

BB CHTESHEETEBAR NS
EEARRA R ANEEER R

PR EZ BN TEEHEEERM
RIEFERARRESR ZIRF

SOERENBARAB ZEEITHA
B EEABRECHEC BREFERE
ETBA Bt 2 IR -

1139
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EZ2019F 1231 HIEFE

12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEM&
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the REBSHRHALTEIEIAM(2018 :
Group, three (2018: three) are directors of the Company M)A RNRIESE @ EfeE SN Ll
whose emoluments are included in the above disclosures. FERRN - Hegr2((2018 : 2147 ) {E 5
The emolument of the remaining two (2018: two) individuals ALTZMEEELT :

are disclosed as follows:

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Salaries and allowances e KRR 4,435 3,975
Contributions to retirement benefits RIREAIFT B 5K
scheme 36 36
4,471 4,011
2019 2018
Their emoluments were within the HMS N F AT EE
following bands
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 2,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 2 2,500,000 8 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 2 3,000,000/8 7T 1 —
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors AREEWERESY LMEARA LTI
or the above individual as an inducement to join or upon M - ERBEEMASIMAREERR
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. ZERE - SERKREBL 2 FHE -
13. DIVIDEND 13. BR
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders R 2019 F AL £ | AR 7 T @A 2 &
of the Company during 2019, nor any dividend been RKBEBHEZRRERE  BBERS
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2018: HiXK MEREIEZZRZETHEHEKE

HKS$nil). (2018 : £E) o
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EE2019F 12 31 HILFZE
14. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. HSEEXERF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable KRB 2 HEANELHERERBT T
to the owners of the Company is based on the following THEEE -
data:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFEIT FET
Earnings a2%
Earnings for the purposes of basic STEERERBRTMEAZ
earnings per share (profit for the B F (KR RS ARG
year attributable to the owners of the FRm=A)
Company) 642,175 759,042
2019 2018
Number of shares EHn#AE
Weighted average number of ordinary — stE&REARZFFEHEHE 2
shares for the purpose of basic AR INAE T 5 £
earnings per share 1,468,124,216 1,470,288,232
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there are no RE E20194 2018412 A31 8 I
potential ordinary shares in issue during the years ended HARS - R EAE RNEBEITBERD

31 December 2019 and 2018. WEZ | GRS AT o
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EE2019F 12 A31 HILFE
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BB REE

Pumpsand  Furniture,
Gasand ol equipment fixtures
Construction Leasehold  Plantand  plantand for gas and [0 0il

inprogress  Buildings improvements  machinery facilities andoil  equipment vehicles vessels
fERHE  WRwAC  WOKE
ERIE B% HEWRKE HEREA R RRREN i | i | il
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET T FET FET FET T

COST WA
At 1 January 2018 R018F1 A 1A 467,348 41,845 15,162 5136 1505,048 399,171 2,199 61,796 640744 3,159,349
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR

(note 37) i) (708) - - £209) - i {4 (19 - (£.9%)
Additions HE 103,890 294 20 2429 107,803 il 1492 8,219 6,297 239,055
Disposals and wrte-of B R 6699 - - B e B 05 BT BB Pees)
Exchange ezignment Ej58 %) (174 (134 oo XY (1558 662 (61 (208 (108408
At 31 December 2018 R018%E12A318 542,880 40,395 15,238 3,061 1,561,639 384,222 22,660 62,533 623,952 3,256,580
Acquisiton of a subsidiary WE-FHEAA

(note 36) Hi%) 143 409 - - 3,159 578 2 157 - 4,467
Additions HE 76,731 - 136 - 1,803 6,627 1,511 4,808 4,851 97,067
Disposals and write-off HERAE (2,064) - - - (25,046) (40,490) (765) (8915) (34,494) (114,774)
Exchange realignment EiE% (23,626) (928) ) (10) (15,087) (1,784) (135) (682) (8,625) (57,208)
At 31 December 2019 12019 12A318 594,064 39,876 15,903 2,991 1,526,468 343,153 23,292 57,101 585,684 3,189,132
DEPRECIATION AND FEREE

[MPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2018 R018E1A1A — 26,040 8,997 1474 392,756 222,091 16,436 37,600 40910 746,354
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR )

e ) - - - %) - - - 0 - 671)
Provided for the year Ene = 2,654 1978 543 64,566 21,120 1,601 8,512 38,261 139,830
Eiminated on disposals and.~~ ANHE R EH

write-off - - - (78) (613) (3,218 (66) (5,576) (404 (9,955
Exchange eaignment E - ) 04 I I ] 6O (19 (189 6%
At 31 December 2018 #0184 123318 - mEm %6 16 M3TH M3 ;A M T69B  BAGRN0
Provided o e year R R TR R T N Y A 31 R Y
Eiminated on disposalsand ~~~ FNHERsAEE 54

write-off - - - - (18,071) (20,565) (130) (4321) (6,428) (50,115)
Exchange realignment EiAE - (666) (15) (36) (7,505) (4901) (296) (677) (1,332 (15,428)
At 31 December 2019 019 12A318 - 29,650 13,265 1,614 488,407 236,112 19,548 41,387 104,975 934,958
CARRYING VALUES FAE
At 31 December 2019 019 12A318 594,064 10,226 2,638 1311 1,038,061 107,041 3,744 16,314 480,709 2,254,174

At 31 December 2018 Ro018%E12A318 542,880 12,862 429 1,565 1,117,006 162,908 5,249 23,069 546,994 2,407,720
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except
for construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum.

Buildings Over the term of the lease
Leasehold 20% to 33'/,%
improvements

Plant and machinery 4% to 33"/,%
Gas and oil plant and Over the shorter of the lease
facilities term of coast use right and
land use right, or 25 years

Pumps and equipment  10% to 33'/,%
for gas and oil
Furniture, fixtures and ~ 15% to 16%/,%

equipment
Motor vehicles 16%/,% to 33"/,%
Oil vessels 3% to 11%

The buildings are situated outside Hong Kong, in the PRC.

The gas and oil plant under construction are situated
outside Hong Kong, in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2019, oil vessels with carrying values
of approximately HK$89,880,000 (2018: HK$143,514,000)
have been pledged as security for bank borrowings (note
33).

15. W% - WRBR M (L)

BREZTRI - Lilix  #ERRE
HE - RTNFMEUERENE -

EF LR LT

HEYEEE 20% %= 33"/:%

W23 K 5 4% % 33'/,%

RENHENEZE REFERAERT
H{sE R HEAR 40
HAgk 25 FHA 2 8
BE

REEmzREN 10% Z33":%
BIg
i~ HENERE 15% % 167/:%

YRE 16%/:% = 33"/:%
S 3% & 11%

BF NP B (FBRIN)

EERENHEDURF BE(EER
Bh) e

MR 20194 12 A 31 H -+ BREEAY 89,380,000
7 (2018 : 143,514,000 7T ) HY S
MERBERRITEENIKE R E
33) o

1143
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Leasehold
land Coast

HALH B

16. {EHEEE

Gas and
oil plant

EN] Oil

Buildings facilities vessels
AER

#F hERRNE ik

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2019 1201951810
Carrying amount FEE 448,259 5,306 1,374 68,316 71,287 594,542
As at 31 December 2019 #2019 12A31H
Carrying amount RmEE 416,879 4,420 2,039 61,016 75,132 559,486
For the year ended 31 #BE2019F12A 31
December 2019 ALEEE
Depreciation charge FEXIL 16,972 775 1,603 9,019 29,519 57,888
Expense relating to short- ~ EEHHEREMA
term leases and other BEERERABN
leases with lease terms BlEEAE 165
end within 12 months ZBE12E /AR
of the date of initial IEMBERTMAE
application of HKFRS 16 BHENER 83,089
Total cash outflow for leases TAEBR & RLAE 133,514
Additions to right-of-use NEFRERE
assets 40,481

For both years, the Group leases offices, leasehold land,
coast, buildings, gas and oil plant and facilities, oil vessels
and LPG station for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 5 months to 15 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

EMEFES  AEREHHEERAE
HELH  BF BF RELHEBER
ARG M R ABCRUGEITRE o FRET
HESHNEERRASEEAEIF -
HE BRI RBERIE R e fEE - &
REE SR TENGRRREE - NEH
FEREE A & HAR S fF 5 T R EH A B R
B SRAA AN ER LT A KRR
HMITHHARR -
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 16. (EFHESEEZ)
The Group has obtained the land use right certificates AEEBCRSEMBHRE LA 1
for all leasehold lands except for leasehold lands with F#% - BIRMEE A 169,521,0007% 7T
carrying amount of approximately HK$169,521,000 (2018: (20184 : 169,739,000/8 L) M E +
HK$169,739,000) in which the Group is in the process of BRI o
obtaining.
The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for REBTEHANAE « Mfs KRR
offices, oil vessels and LPG station. As at 31 December IR HATEE - M 2019F 12 A31H -
2019, the portfolio of short-term leases committed is similar EAGENERESREHESE Pl AT
to the portfolio of short-term leases entered to which the BNERESSI Ty RAEPHEER
short-term lease expense disclosed as above. BHEMEM -
17. LAND USE RIGHTS 17. TibfERE
2018
HK$’000
TFET
The Group’s land use rights comprise: REE 2 THERESRE:
Land use rights in Hong Kong REB 2 b (F AR 23,906
Land use rights outside Hong Kong, in the PRC ~ RAFE (FHBEIN) 2 + s 378,026
401,932
Analysed for reporting purposes as: ZE2FHRE DT
Non-current asset EMBNE = 382,845
Current asset MENE E 19,087

401,932
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EE2019F 12 A31 HILFE
17. LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued)

18.

In December 2016, the Group acquired a land in the PRC
from the PRC Government for construction of LPG bottling
plant. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying value of
these land use rights in respect of which the Group was
not yet granted formal title of ownership amounted to
approximately HK$169,739,000. In the opinion of directors
of the Company, the absence of formal title of these
land use rights does not impair the value of the relevant
properties of the Group. The director of the Company also
believe that formal title of these land use rights will be
granted to the Group in due course. The land is carried
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses items.

The Group acquired a leasehold land in Zhuhai (the “Land”)
in year 2011. The size of the Land is 15,750 square meters.
The Group is developing half of the Land to construct a
property for owner-occupied purpose and the remaining
half for properties for sales. The detail of the properties
under development for sales is disclosed in note 27.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR COAST

17. T fEREZE)

R2016F 12 B - ANEEHK R RETE
A — B8 i B A+ DA B 2R (R R R
B > R 20184F 12 B31H » AEEE K
ERTEAEARE T FEAEMNET
{E#9169,7839,00087TC - N AR EHR
B RELIERETAESEAES
B SBEAEBABYENEE -
AABEERE  ZELEREMNIE
ANEERBEREREETAEE - %
T HB IR B K AR R AT 8 K REDRE
E518IE B FIER o

ANEER2011FWE—RBURKEZ
MEL([ZLH])  c ZELHEEA
15,750 F 5K o REFEEERZ LM 2
—HEE-HEFTAAYE BT —
FHIZERIERFENMSH - SEZEHRY
EZEBRMFE27 #EE -

18. BEMAMEART

2018

HK$’000
FET
The Group’s prepaid lease payments for coast REBEZBFENHEERBERRE :
comprise:
Coast outside Hong Kong, in the PRC R (BEEINTEZ 87 5,306
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RE2FHRE DT
Non-current asset EmENE 4,523
Current asset MENEE 783
5,306

The prepaid lease payments for coast represent the rights
to use coast in Zhuhai ranging from 20 years to 28 years,
starting from 1 January 1999.

BEEMBERBNIERKE 2 BRI
F# - #199941 81 Bm% @ HEH
NF20FE284F -



Annual Report 2019 =Z— L FEF#H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire B RaR M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019

B E 20194 12 431 AIEFE
19. GOODWILL 19. BHE
HK$'000
T/ET
COST BN
At 1 January 2018 7K2018F 1 A1 H 751,948
Exchange realignment b H (9,897)
At 31 December 2018 7K2018F 12 A 31 H 742,051
Exchange realignment PE 5 AR (7,186)
Arising on acquisition of a business through FHRIBA—RKE & FE AR IME R M UE
purchase of additional interest in a joint venture — — I8 2751 2 4 (f1:7 36)
(note 36) 32,108
At 31 December 2019 MR20194F 12 A31 H 766,973
CARRYING VALUES AREE
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 A 31 H 766,973
At 31 December 2018 R 2018 12 A 31 H 742,051

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out
above has been allocated to eleven (2018: ten) individual
CGUs in segments in relation to the sales and distribution
of LPG and oil products segment.

SRERAMS - EXAHEZEEE D
o= 111{E(2018 : 10fE) B RAHE K5
HEREREEmO BEMNREELE

fiz o

I 147
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The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering 5-year period,
and discount rates at average 13.0% (2018: 11.3%) for
LPG segment and average 14.7% (2018: 16.5%) for
oil products business segment. The cash flows for the
financial budgets are using zero growth (2018: a steady
decline/growth rate in sales ranging from -20% to 3%) for
a 5 year period. The cash flows beyond this 5-year period
are extrapolated without any decline/growth rate. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations related
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which included
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is
based on the unit’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. During the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the management
of the Group determines that there is no impairment on
LPG segment and oil products business segment. The
management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amounts to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amounts.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A\ & =3

‘ra BT
For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F 12 31 HI-FZE

19. GOODWILL (Continued) 19. B8 (&)

NEREELBU  AINESEEE
KREEEHEBERRBALIT

hERSEE BN A E S ETIRE
FREBEFEAET LB ERAT
BEEEHEZSFHUEEERFT ZH
eREFBARRIERDEITIRE13.0%
(2018 : 11.3%) * MM EBSH EFE X
14.7% (2018 : 16.5% )5t & - B 15T E
RZBRERENSFE T K(2018 :
BETKR/BEENT-20%E3%)H#
B o 5 FHBR 2 REATHEER
HE - BRAGRERA S REERE
B E A EMFERSBEEFHEE
REFE  ZhFrEREBEEM 2 BEZE
BREBEEEG < MBERMEL -
H Z20194F N 2018412 A31 B It F
B AEBEEEBRRARNRERDER
HMmEBLERLERE - EEER
B AAZERENEMNESIEAEE
BT e EHARMERBINEAS
B o
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20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. HtiEEEE
Customer
Distribution Business Leasing  Technical relation-
network license agreements  know-how ships
SHRR BRUE HEkhE 3 ] EFRME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHAT FHT FHET FET FET
COST KA
At 1 January 2018 R2018%1 810 346,625 28,084 14,474 105,924 102,722 597,829
Exchange adjustments 5 AR (14,372) (1,021) (600) (4,315) = (20,308)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
(note 37) (B:#37) - - - (101,609) - (101,609)
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 332,253 27,063 13,874 - 102,722 475,912
Exchange adjustments & 1 3 (7,589) (539) (317) - - (8,445)
At 31 December 2019 2019612 A31H 324,664 26,524 13,557 - 102,722 467,467
AMORTISATION AND B MoRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2018 20181 /10 138,229 15,827 14,474 - 51,360 219,890
Charge for the year FATH 22,794 1,335 — 6,996 17,120 48,245
Exchange adjustments 5 AR (6,433) (554) (600) (158) = (7,745)
Eliminated on disposal of HEKBD AR H S
subsidiaries (note 37) (Hi##37) - - - (6,838) - (6,838)
At 31 December 2018 R2018512 A31H 164,590 16,608 13,874 - 68,480 253,552
Charge for the year FRX 21,769 1,281 - - 17,120 40,170
Exchange adjustments 5 AR (3,823) (817) (317) - = (4,457)
At 31 December 2019 R2019512 A31H 172,536 17,572 13,557 - 85,600 289,265
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2019 R2019512 A31H 152,128 8,952 - - 17,122 178,202
At 31 December 2018 2018612 A31H 177,663 10,455 - - 34,242 222,360

I 149
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20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The distribution network, the business license, the leasing
agreements, customer relationships were acquired from
third parties in business combinations. The technical know-
how was acquired through purchase of subsidiaries.

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the following periods:

Distribution network
Business license
Leasing agreements
Technical know-how
Customer relationships

10 to 15 years
5 to 15 years
5to 10 years
10 years

6 years

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

20. RfhiERRE(Z)

DHEPBE  EXAR  HEHBBLEP
BEDEXRBAMHTAF=ZTBA - &
MAEAE BRENB AR MERS

i3

LB EEEBRAERFY - ZF
BIEENEAEA T BN

7 EH AR A 10E 154
SEEalic 5FE 154
MHE W= 5 & 1045
B il 0 38 104
PR 6 4F

21. BELATESR

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Cost of interest in unlisted associate IF L THEE N A RE RS AR AN
At 1 January ®1A1H 6,483 7,188
Share of net profit (loss), other S EM(ER)FE - &
comprehensive income (expense) EERE (S H) KRS
and dividend 206 (705)
At 31 December m12 431 H 6,689 6,483
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 21. BiBLARES(2)
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had interest R20194F K2018F 12 A31H » K&
in the following associate: ERUATEZHEAEFAER

Proportion of
Principal nominal value of
Country of place of Class of issued capital Principal

Name of entity Form of entity registration  operation shares held held by the Group activity
Rl ERps BEREIER IEEINE AEROER FRAMBERTRFAMELS FEED
2019 2018

EREER Incorporated ~ PRC PRC Registered 50 50 Sales and
BRAR("HE capital distribution
wB#a") (Note) of energy

products

NNt (bt A B Al HE HE T EA HER AR
BRAR(%E Em
B (fit)

Note: Bk/E7%3% is established on 5 February 2015. #1888 (Fk st . BRBEFIBR2016F 2 A5 BRI °
7§ )AMR AT, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, AR ZEHE 2K B A BFERER
owns 50% of the ownership interests in ZX/&&F1E and the (%B)BRATF HAKEETHE
remaining 50% is owned by IS M EBRRAR QR ("I 50% 2 #Ezx + &R T 2 50% # & B
BT EE"). However, according to the memorandum and KR T EERRER AT (G
association of FREBHE, HEMMEE has the right to MEEFFE - A - BEBEHRGEH
appoint 3 out of 5 executive directors, and major decisions B2 ER  RERTEBAEEEDS
about the relevant activities are determined at board level HITEEFNEP SN - BRESHZ
through voting by simple majority, thus, X8 mE# has BEERTHESSEEDRBEREND
over 50% voting power and thus has control over the board HRIEZEEL - FL - HWEHME
of directors in ¥K)& 7 ¥ /8. Accordingly, )88 8 is EREESRATHEBESHRELBR
treated as an associate of the Company. 50% =W ME B KRG BINEGE

FE 2N - BRSBTS
BARTZBEAT -

151
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21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 21.

Summarised financial information of an associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associate is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. The associate is accounted for using the
equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

BEARER(Z)
BEATCHMBRAEE

AEBEBERR LMBERBZER
TX > TR HENBRE SIREF B
Es SRk oL vl NI by e Ea
SIRZ R - FIALEHERTEHRA
B AR FHR A M RRAR -

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$°000
FEIT FETL
HRENS BREAWS

Current assets mBEE 59,938 69,196
Non-current assets IEMBEE 110 156
Current liabilities nRBBE (46,670) (56,386)
Revenue WA 859,857 858,290

Profit (loss) and total comprehensive AFEREN(ER) RE2mEK
income (expense) for the year A(FZ ) 4azs 412 (1,410)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

P B ERE BN RS M REAT
BRZEE R R REE 2 &R
T

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$’000
TFET FET
Net assets BEFE 13,378 12,966
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBFEIREEIE L
interest in BRAEHTE B ERE L) 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest AEBERIKEBHEZ
in BB IS S AREE 6,689 6,483
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22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22.

SELRER

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ELEMEEREREKA
ventures
At 1 January ®1A1H 27,995 26,760
Share of net profits and other D1 R F e A & E A
comprehensive income for the year 2HE A 1,623 1,235
Deemed disposal upon acquisition of RE—REEREN
additional equity interest in a joint FINR D R R AR B
venture (note 36(ii) & (f172 36(i) (10,353) —
At 31 December ®12 A31H 19,265 27,995

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had
interests in the following joint ventures:

Form of Principal Fully paid
business Country of place of up registered

Name of entity  structure incorporation operation capital

REER RERMEA HRSIEE FEBERE CHRERRE

BNTEHMAE  Incorporated  PRC PRC RMB2,250,000
BAR(CEH")

(Note a)

ENmR#HMaE Bafiky @ E il 2,250,000 AR ¥
BAR([HH])

(ffita)

BMEREFEE Incorporated  PRC PRC RMB10,000,000
BRAR(FE
J&") (Note b)

BMERETER CEMAy G 10,000,000 A R

BRAR(EE
NG

R20194F K2018%F 12 A31H - KX &
BRI TEECEREER :

Proportion of nominal value
of registered capital held  Nature of
by the Group business
FREMGESTRIEELS REHE
2019 2018

- 49%  Sales and
distribution of
LPG
HERDHERILR

30% 30% Sales and
distribution of
NG
HERD HRAR
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

22.

Notes:

(a)

The Group’s entitlement to share in the profits of its joint
venture is in proportion to its ownership interest after the
subcontracting period mentioned in the following paragraph.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Qing Yuan
Shi Qingxin District Bai Fu Yang Petrol Chemical Company
Limited (“BFY”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the joint venture partner of %% on 3 November 20086,
the operation of & #1 has been subcontracted to BFY with
a subcontracting period of 8 years until 2015. On 8 June
2015, both parties entered into another agreement to extend
the subcontracting period for another 3 years to 2019. Under
the terms of subcontract agreement, major decisions about
the relevant activities must require unanimous consent by
the Group and the other shareholder. Thus, #&#fis classified
as joint venture of the Group. #&%7became a wholly owned
subsidiary from 31 May 2019 onward, the details of the
acquisition of a business through purchase of additional
interest in a joint venture are set out in note 36.

50% interests of registered capital of 5E}% is owned by ER
NEEFRRERAR ("ERIVEHEF") in which 60% of
ownership interests of ER#FT /& HF is owned by &I E &
MRE AR AT a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Thus,
the effective ownership interests of the Group in % is 30%
(2018: 30%). Under the terms of memorandum and articles
of association of 2}%, major decisions about the relevant
activities must require unanimous consent by the Group and
the other shareholder. Thus, BE}&is classified as joint venture
of the Group.

22.

RERRER (W)
() AEESHEEEREZEFDEMN

Z
TBERRR ARG EMEZ
B HEAEESLLOIGE -

BERARRZ2EREZHBARBR
MBEHEBEFABELIERA A
(BEEF D EEHEEBHR 2006
F11ASHEI ML 2% B2 X
BEANAITEEFE - INHEZE2015F -
B HI8E - N2015F6A8H  #
BRIV S —hinESINHBERIER
2019%F ° RIEA B & 2 65K BBR
AR ZERNRAETESIAER R
HMBR—BEE - it - BHHET
BAREEZEEMLE - R2019F5 A
31BRA BHEKAEEEHEE WK
BAR BBBA—REELENE
IMEZTUREE —THEBMEE 2 F15
BB MIFE36 ©

BERFEHEFERERAR(ER
EEF B EERS0% NAMER -
MERHFEFTE0% NS A AEE
2EBBZHBRARFITEBRR
BRAREE U AEEEREF
BEEME 2 HE25 A 30% (2018 : 30%) °
BIEEEARZRELMEZIER - B
RBBEHZERAESBEAER
REMBE—HREE - St - EEW
NAREEZEERE -
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EE2019F 12 31 HILFZE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 22, SERLERER (A
The summarised financial information in respect of the AEBNEGZESTEARZAE D ERE
Group’s interests in joint ventures which is accounted for mABERBEFHINAT o Tl %E
using the equity method is set out below. The summarised MEEAREEEVERSENRR 2
financial information below represents amounts shown BEDEMEHRERMINRZ EFE °

in the joint venture’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

B BH
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Current assets mEEE — 25,495
Non-current assets EMBEE — 5,659
Current liabilities MENE & = (6,862)
Revenue WA 15,482 16,033
Loss for the year FREE (15,823) (72)

Other comprehensive income (expense) R E L 2 EU A (ZH)

for the year 19 (305)

Total comprehensive expenses for the FRA2E X H 4258
year (15,804) (877)
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EZ2019F 1231 HIEFE
22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 22, EBLERE(E)
BEfE BERE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Current assets mBNEE 42,891 28,809
Non-current assets ERBEE 918 2,041
Current liabilities mEaE (4,415) (10,400)
Revenue WA 52,698 70,371
Profit for the year F N 19,655 4,079
Other comprehensive expenses for the FRH M2 FE ST H
year (711) (855)
Total comprehensive income for the FAZEM =BT

year 18,944 3,224
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EE2019F 12 31 HILFZE
23. DEPOSITS PAID AND PREPAYMENTS 23. BEffReRAFNRIA
The amount included deposits of approximately hEeHEAERBEEAEERBENKRE
RMB79,971,000 (equivalent to approximately H B Y N 779,971,000 A & ¥
HK$89,186,000) (2018: RMB79,971,000 (equivalent to % (M £ ® #489,186,000/& JT )
approximately HK$91,270,000)) paid for several potential (2018 : 79,971,000 A R HER L
acquisition of investment projects. The Group applies 91,270,000/ 7C) - AEEEA 128 A
12-month ECL basis to measure the ECL of these balances NIEEEBEBEENGTEZEHRE 2
and there had been no significant increase in credit TEHEEEE  BXREAURIT EEE
risk since initial recognition. The Group has not entered EINEERR - R2019F12 A31 H X
into any formal sales and purchase agreement as at 31 2018 12 A1 B » "EBEWEE T
December 2019 and 31 December 2018. The remaining MEXNEE R BRBEEFTERRES
amount mainly represents the deposits paid for purchase of VI MR RREMSZARES -
property, plant and equipment.
24, R
24. INVENTORIES
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
LPG BALR, 63,106 69,692
Oil products il 1,068,350 1,327,312
Electronic products BEFEM 279,000 323,500
1,410,456 1,720,504
The cost of inventories charged to the consolidated FRNAGSBEEEREMEEKE R
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive & 2 17 & B AN 49 & 25,909,656,000 7
income for the year amounted to approximately (2018 : 28,040,808,0007 7T ) o R
HK$25,909,656,000 (2018: HK$28,040,808,000). As at 2018 12A31H ' AR BB AE T
31 December 2018, there was a significant decrease in BB EUH S 2 Al IR F(E AR Nk o i
the net realisable value of oil products due to decrease It - 232 120,000,000 7T HY 17 & £
in international oil price. As a result, an allowance for & TEEEHZ20184F 12 A31 B 1k
inventories of HK$120,000,000 had been recognised and FEREHERAA o

included in cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2018.

1157
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER DEBTORS, 25. EWEZHER HUEKRER - &
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS &RRMARIEA
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHETT TET
Trade receivables — contracts with EUE SRR — BUKERERER
receivables 4,778,317 4,726,261
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 180 NEEBHEEWERZEHEZER A
days to its trade receivables. The following is an aged 30AE 180K - RIEHIKR 2 EINE 5
analysis of trade receivables at the end of the reporting R OIMIEREGHKE RN A
period presented based on the invoice date or good (MW AEZBE) 25|00

delivery date, which approximated the respective revenue
recognition dates:

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 0ZE 30K 1,831,419 2,382,179
31 to 60 days 31 260K 1,441,278 1,390,245
61 to 90 days 61 290K 1,172,028 752,436
91 to 180 days 91 £180k 295,969 190,983
Over 180 days BB 180K 37,623 10,418
4,778,317 4,726,261
Bills amounting to approximately HK$29,782,000 (2018: NE B 55 4929,782,000 7% 70 (2018 -
HK$80,400,000) are held by the Group for future settlement 80,400,000/ 7)) 2 ZEIABIER KR E
of trade balances. All bills received by the Group are with a SERER - AEEBEBE WA A RI&

maturity period of less than one year. BHER—FRRNM
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EE2019F 12 A 31 AIFFE
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER DEBTORS, 25. BE ZIER - HMtEWRRR - 2

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$76,671,000 (2018:
HK$286,769,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date. Out of the past due balances, approximately
HK$50,110,000 (2018: HK$51,015,000) has been past
due for 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default due to the management’s historical experience on
the settlement pattern or record from these debtors are
satisfactory and the good business relationship with these
debtors. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables, there are HK$nil
(2018: HK$42,971,000) denominated in RMB, which is not
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities.

Included in other debtors, deposits and prepayments,
there are advances payments to suppliers of approximately
HK$2,138,870,000 (2018: HK$1,867,676,000) in relation
to the purchase of LPG and oil products which will be
delivered within one year commencing from the date of the
signed purchase contract.

As at 31 December 2019, other debtors included loan
advances to independent third parties of approximately
HK$62,117,000 (2018: HK$64,754,000). The loan
advances are carried at fixed interest rates ranged from
4% to 13% per annum (2018: 4% to 13% per annum) and
repayable within one year. Except for those which had been
determined as credit-impaired, the Group applies 12-month
ECL basis to measure the ECL of these balances as there
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018 are set out in note 38.

ERAFMKRIERE)

MR2019F 12 A31H » AEEz EWE
SRR - LR {E4 76,671,000
# 7£(2018 : 286,769,000 JT ) 2 &
WEEFRNRELAEAE B - REB
HiR R EE R - E A 4950,110,0007% JT
(2018 : 51,015,000/ 7t ) B 1B HI90 X
REZRI0K ' BEELR=ZEZEESA
HEEANERLERBRBELES AR
EMEZEEEAZRITEERRKR - I
TREBERLBEYN AEBUERHE
EAIERZERE RS ©

AEB ZEWE SR KB I & T
(2018 : 42,971,000/ 7T ) B A R F
B ARBUFEHEEER ZIEE
ﬁ,ﬁgo

HEWER - ke MM KBS 8F
BEfNHERNE SI%EE 4 2,138,870,000
7 (2018 : 1,867,676,00078 7T ) * &
FEERIEAEHRITRETEESLD
BET—F AR o

MR2019F12 A31 8 » E 1th & U BR X
BREREMETEIE =7 462,117,000
7 (2018 : 64,754,000/ 7T ) 2 &
Ko BFRUBETEFMENT4%ZE13%
(2018 : FEFET 4% E13%)EL » TR
—FREE - AEBEA 128 ATEH
EEEBREENGEZSHEZEBHE

518 BRERARL EBREIRINGE
R -

#H E220194F k2018512 A31H I F
JEREWE 5 BR 3 % H b 8 Uk BR OB E AT
HZHFBERKMIEISHFHE -
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26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE AND A
JOINT VENTURE

Amounts due from an associate and a joint venture are in
trade nature aged and within 90 days based on invoice
date as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. A credit period of
90 days is granted to an associate and a joint venture. The
balances are neither past due nor impaired at the end of
the reporting period.

27. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR

26. BEl—RBELFIR—REELE
o]

EW —REE N R N —REEDENRE
2B S HEEREE 20194 £ 20184 12
A31HIEZz#E A B EMERER & 90
KUAK - REER—REE AR R —RK
AEDPERTIORZEE - FTB&H
MRS BRI R EI kA o

27. HEZERYME

SALES
HK$’000
FEIT
COST BN
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1 H1H 653,896
Additions NE 98,145
Exchange adjustments PE I 5 2 (27,113)
At 31 December 2018 R20184F 12 A31 H 724,928
Additions = 56,840
Exchange adjustments PE 0 5 = (15,515)
At 31 December 2019 R20194 12 A31 H 766,253

The Group is developing half of the Land into properties for
sales. The details of the Land are set out in note 17. In the
opinion of the management, around half of the properties
under development for sales are expected to be realised
within twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The properties under development for sales is situated in
the PRC.

Effective from 1 January 2019, the carrying amount of
leasehold lands is measured under HKFRS 16 at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The residual values are determined as the
estimated disposal value of the leasehold land component.
No depreciation charge is made on the leasehold lands
taking into account the estimated residual values as at 31
December 2019.

AEBEREBZ I M2 ¥ REEY
X RIHMHBHNME7 - EEE
R N—FNEFERRTYERSE
SERSHRR1I2EARNER - FEH
RAYEREEVAREZ L1 -

E2019F1 A1 AR BELHWHER
BRI B S B 75 3R & 2 B 5516557 LAAK
IR AT RETITE RERDRER KA
2 FREEETAHE LIPS MG
FTHEEEE ZEEIEHZ2019412 A
31 BT RIREE - AEHELHE
HIEER -
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28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES 28. EEARTHER #BITRERRAS

AND CASH

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The deposits
have been pledged to secure short-term bank loans, and
are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged
bank deposits carried at fixed interest rates of 1.65% (2018:
1.65%) per annum and will be released upon settlement of
the relevant bank borrowings.

The bank balances carried interest at market rates which
ranged from 0.001% to 3.45% (2018: 0.001% to 3.51%)
per annum.

As at 31 December 2019, the pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$1,716,557,000 (2018: HK$1,232,561,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible into
other currencies. Included in the Group’s pledged bank
deposits and bank balances, there are approximately
HK$83,552,000 (2018: HK$12,623,000) denominated
in USD/HK$ and approximately HK$4,529,000 (2018:
HK$172,462,000) denominated in RMB and approximately
HK$7,181,000 denominated Singapore Dollar (“SGD”)
(2018: HK$21,459,000), which are not the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities.

Included in bank balance of approximately RMB11,518,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$12,845,000) (2018: HK$
nil) are deposits received from pre-sale of properties which
can only be applied in the development of designated
property project.

ZREEERTRITIEASNEERER
TRMEZERZER - ZEGFREEA
ERRHRITERZER  MHBEAR
BEE - CIEBRITERIZEE FF X
1.65% (2018 : 1.65%):t B @ TR A
RASRITIE RS ERFMRE -

iR 17 & % & M T0.001% £3.45%
(2018 : 0.001% £ 3.51%) 2 ™ 15 F
KB o

MR2019F12 A31H ' E A RITF
I RTT 4 8 KR IR € #91,716,557,000
7 75(2018 : 1,232,561,0007%8 7T ) A A
RETE WA EREHRAEME
B AEBZERBRITFRKEIRT
4 #4 1 - 4983,552,0005 7£(2018 :
12,623,000 7T ) A ET, BT EE -
#34,529,0007% 7£(2018 : 172,462,000
BIL)AARKERE  &47,181,000/8
J0(2018 : 21,459,000 JT ) BA ¥ A0 3%
T[T ) EE - ZEE MW IER
HAEEERE 2 IEER -

RIOTERTEEREVEMNSEN
#711,518,000 A R MM £ »® %
12,845,000/870)(2018 : )&% R
ARARBEREEMHRER -
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29. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER CREDITORS AND
ACCRUED CHARGES

The aged analysis of trade payables is as follows presented
based on invoice date:

FEST SR B ARTR « it FE Ut AR ¥ e P
irRA

EREZERERDTIREZEHHES
L

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

0 to 30 days 0% 30K 866,247 766,932
31 to 60 days 31 260K 86,927 24,250
61 to 90 days 61 290K - 37,103
91 to 180 days 91 180K 73 —
Over 180 days HBiE 180K 20,945 30,154
974,192 858,439

The credit period of trade payables is ranging from 90 to
180 days.

The remaining balances mainly represented the other tax
payable, construction payable and amounts outstanding for
daily operation costs.

Included in the Group’s trade creditors, balances of
approximately HK$nil (2018: HK$171,157,000) are
denominated in USD, which is not the functional currency
of the relevant group entities.

ENESERZEERNTFI0XRE180
K o

HREETEAREMENRE  BHRE
FEANMBEBEERANHREHE

AEBEZEMNEZ SRR B I EMT[
(2018 : 171,157,000 JT ) 88 58 A 3= 7T
EE ExLFEREEERZ2GES
mé}o
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. A¥RAR

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$’000

F#&iT FEIT

Sales and distribution of LPG SHERDHBRIER 18,727 28,387

Oil/chemical products business e ML TRER 30,625 121,389
Pre-sales proceeds received from sales ¥)EHE R ESHTBE K

of properties 29,557 —

78,909 149,776

As at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities amounted to MR2018F1A1H & B EHNA

/

approximately HK$133,036,000.

The amounts as at 31 December 2019 relate to contracts
in which the related goods are expected to be transferred
within 12 months and hence classified as current liabilities.
The Group typically receives a deposit ranging from 10% to
20% of the contract value for the sales and distribution of
LPG and oil/chemical products when the sale and purchase
agreement is entered into, while the amount of deposits
may be varied depending on the business relationship with
the customers. Pre-sale proceeds received are expected to
be recognised as revenue in the coming year.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

133,036,000/& 7T °

HE2019F12 831 B2z & 3EAT AR
NZHEBEEREBEHEI2ABAAR
- BoEARBBEE ANEEEES
BEEWZERN  BEERIGEE D HR
fEm M, ML T REHEENTF10%
E20%WE £ - Mel e |AIKTEER
FREAEMBR - Err BN TEE W
TERFERER BN o

TREFAFERRZ MATES A
GHAREEEN -

Sales and QOil/chemical
distribution products
of LPG business
HER m&
SHMIER tIZES
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # = 20194 12 H31 A i F/ZF
Revenue recognised that was included #RERABIEEFVINE L)
in the contract liabilities balance at BEMREET
the beginning of the year 28,387 121,389
For the year ended 31 December 2018 ZtZ 20184 12 A 31 Hil F/E
Revenue recognised that was included FERHWA BIEEFHHE L
in the contract liabilities balance at B EREET
the beginning of the year 45,018 88,018
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EZ2019F 1231 HIEFE
31. LEASE LIABILITIES 31. HEA®R
HK$’000
F#ETT
Lease liabilities payable: EREESE:
Within one year —FRN 57,868
Within a period of more than one year but not HBiR—FEAZRME 2 HR
more than two years 49,296
Within a period of more than two years but not  FBMEETZRAFE 2 HRE
more than five years 28,465
Within a period of more than five years B3R T F 2 HAR 36,725
172,354
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months & - RBIEEE N2 @A RN EEE
shown under current liabilities HE &5 (57,868)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months IEmBBFEET 12@ K EEEN
shown under non-current liabilities i & 114,486
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other THAEBEEEE AN EE NG
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities EEAB2HAEERTR
are set out below:
Malaysian
Ringgit
SGD ("“MYR”)
BRAGSH
AN =)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
As at 31 December 2019 HZE2019%12 A31H 583 30,786
32. AMOUNTS DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE AND A 32. Eff—RBELFIR—KRSELE
JOINT VENTURE =IR
The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable SRARKR 2ERARZKESR

on demand.
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33. BORROWINGS 33. f&®
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRET FEr
Bank trust receipts loans RITIEFEBUIEE K 3,158,688 3,604,590
Bank loans (pledged with RMB bank RITER(AARBIRITER
deposits) {EHEHR) 328,487 227,347
Bank loans (pledged with other assets) #RTTER (AR EEEEM) 33,831 54,407
Bank and other loans HRIT R E At B 3,533,404 3,287,027
7,054,410 7,173,371
Repayable within one year shown under REIBEHE FFAIRBER —FA
current liabilities B
Borrowings secured by pledged bank B2 EIRIRITERIERDE R
deposits 328,487 227,347
Borrowings secured by other assets E & EERAER 12,529 20,575
Borrowings unsecured EEREOER 5,340,256 4,537,417
5,681,272 4,785,339
Repayable over one year shown under JERBIBEIE NATRER —F
non-current liabilities ‘IEE
Borrowing secured — more than one EREROER — BR—F
year, but not exceeding two years B Z M F 12,145 12,623
Borrowing unsecured — more than EREROER — BB —F
one year, but not exceeding two (RS
years 264,620 1,130,910
Borrowings secured — more than EREROER — BBME
two years, but not exceeding five BFRZRASE
years 9,157 21,209
Borrowings unsecured — more than EERNER — BRAMRSF
two years, but not exceeding five BRZRAE
years 1,087,216 1,223,290
1,373,138 2,388,032

7,054,410 7,173,371

1165
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Bank borrowings of approximately HK$652,443,000 (2018:
HK$457,274,000) carry at fixed-rate. The remaining bank
borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which carry annual
interest rate at 1 month to 3 months London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus certain basis points or Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus certain basis
points.

As at 31 December 2019, other loans of approximately
HK$33,832,000 (2018: HK$54,407,000) are secured
by four (2018: six) oil vessels owned by the Group with
carrying value of approximately HK$89,880,000 (2018:
HK$143,514,000) and guaranteed by the Company.
Included in total borrowings of the Group, approximately
HK$6,583,215,000 (2018: HK$6,809,980,000) is
guaranteed by the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal
to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are
as follows:

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 31 HI-FZE

33. BORROWINGS (Continued)

fE®,E)

iR 17 £ I B 49652,443,000/8 IT
(2018 : 457,274,000 7T ) A E B ° £
THRITEREZEER FARE1E
AZEIEABABBRTRAEREMNE TE
PR BB IRITRIERE NS TEE -

M2019F12 A31 8 H b & 3 4
33,832,000 7£(2018 : 54,407,000
JL) AR & B 15 A AR E (B 49 89,880,000
B JT(2018 : 143,514,000/ 7T
R4/ (2018 : 648 ) B fin 1F ] # W
BARAEER NEB 2 BHRE
¥ #76,583,215,000/8 (2018 :
6,809,980,0007&0) B AR A K& 5k
LB A RIHELR o

AEEERZEBFEGEERS BF
=) HEMT

2019 2018

Effective interest rate: BEEAIE
Fixed-rate borrowings TE BAE
Variable-rate borrowings F BB

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies
which are not the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

As at 31 December 2019
As at 31 December 2018

R20194F 12 A31 H
M2018412 A31 H

2.51% to 5.35%
2.47% to 6.35%

3.17% to 4.27%
2.98% to 6.19%

AEEZERAFHEEREERBIIEES
K ERER  #HIWT

hu

USD/HK$
En/ AT
HK$°000
FET

2,766,540
2,896,290

r©
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34. SHARE CAPITAL

34. BF

e

Number
of shares Amount
BiHEAE &8
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRXEE0.10/8 T 2 TimARk
(2018: HK$0.10 each) (2018 : ®J%0.10%7T)
Authorised share capital: EERRA ¢
At 1 January 2018, 31 December R20184%1 H1H 20184
2018 and 2019 % 2019412 A31H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capital: BBEITRBERAE
At 1 January 2018 RK2018F1 A1 H 1,473,030,216 147,303
Less: Repurchase of shares (Note) JH o B B (B AE) (4,906,000) (491)
At 31 December 2018 and 2019 72018 F K 2019 4
12 H31H 1,468,124,216 146,812

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
repurchased its own shares through the Stock Exchange as

follows:

EIfA 17

Month of repurchase

June 2018 201846 A

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

T

No. of
ordinary
share of
HK$0.10 Price per share
0.10#TZ
HiEREAE SRES
Highest Lowest
BE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
4,906,000 1.59 1.58

Kzt : R2018F 12 A31HIEFE AR » K
N EIE A AT R H AR

=15m

Aggregate
consideration
paid (excluding
transaction
costs)

B #ERR
(FEHE
RHEEF)

HK$'000
FAIT

7,756

Eit B ER EIB R R o

I 167
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION 35. EERE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) REARBEEZRFE  A5EEER
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during ZBERNELEHRSABE(EE) RIEEAE
the current and prior year: wm

Accelerated Other
tax intangible
depreciation assets
mERBFTE HttEREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FBET FET TET
At 1 January 2018 Mm2018F1H1H 38,100 (1,953) 54,825 90,972
(Credit) charge to REARBR(AK) (1,754) 76 (6,033) (7,711)
profit for the year B
Exchange adjustments [& 5, 58 %& (1,352) 646 (2,102) (2,808)
At 31 December 2018 72018412 A 31 H 34,994 (1,231) 46,690 80,453
(Credit) charge to REAEz(ARR) (10,090) — (5,763) (15,853)
profit for the year R
Exchange adjustments [E i, 5% (555) 410 (996) (1,141)
At 31 December 2019 74201912 A31 H 24,349 (821) 39,931 63,459
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances AT ABIEMKZRAS ZELEREEHS
for financial reporting purposes: SHT
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FEIT
Deferred tax assets BT EE 821 1,231
Deferred tax liabilities BLERBEE (64,280) (81,684)

(63,459) (80,453)
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 35. RIERTE(E)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$455,165,000
(2018: HK$337,425,000) available for offset against future
profits. Deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$3,284,000 (2018: HK$4,924,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
remaining balances of approximately HK$451,881,000
(2018: HK$332,501,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$4,456,000 (2018: HK$2,433,000) will be
expired before year 2022 (2018: year 2021). Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$40,220,000
(2018: HK$52,904,000) in respect of mainly accelerated
accounting depreciation. No deferred tax liability had
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it was not probable that taxable profit
would be available against which the deductible temporary
differences could be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$807,779,000 (2018: HK$769,797,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

REFRE AR - A EE AT K
AREBEFZABDARBEEBEEN B
455,165,000 75 (2018 : 337,425,000
7)) ° B 8h 43,284,000 £ (2018 ¢
4,924,000 870 ) ERELEHBEE - B
R B & 25 R SRS A TER - B
£ N 45 £2 49451,881,0007 7£(2018 :
332,501,000 7T ) IERIEIE RIS EE ©
494,456,000 7T.(2018 : 2,433,00075 7T)
2 ARMERTRIEEE AR 2022 (2018 :
2021 4F )BT EIH o H {th /&518 Bl A] £ R HA
ihE o

HZEZ2019F12A31H B MR
ETERF  AEBEBAHREREEDY
40,220,000 7T (2018 : 52,904,000 %5
JC) ° ARZA R B A F AR 0 B by =
RELAKSH B 18 138 2 FER B R A 2 Al g
MRK - MW ERZE NG SR =5
TERIRETIEEE ©

BIEFRREAELRE - 200841 H1H
B PREMNBARERZEFmE
&K 2B S BB IEM - AEBEI &
MEFAFEMNBRARZEF AT Z
R 2 58807,779,000 7 7T(2018 4 ¢
769,797,000 %8 7T ) N AR & A TS ¥R R AT
RIEEF SR - It TR A S B Al
IO TR EE R AR =R
AIRE TR AT R A% 2R e o
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PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A
JOINT VENTURE

On 2 April 2019, BFY, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a Sales and Purchase Agreement,
pursuant to which an independent third party agreed to sell,
and BFY agreed to purchase additional 51% equity interest
of % (the “Acquisition”). The principal business of 1&#t
is sales and distribution of bottled LPG. The consideration
for the Acquisition was RMB18,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$20,373,000). The directors of the
Company considered that the Acquisition will expand the
Group’s bottled LPG business in the Guangzhou province.

The remaining 49% equity interest of #&%7 is owned by the
Group through BFY. The acquisition was completed on 31
May 2019, on which date control in &% was passed to
the Group. Since then, &#7 ceased to be a joint venture of
the Group and become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=AN £ 2
iRE ISR M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 31 HI-FZE

36. ACQUISITION OF A BUSINESS THROUGH

FBWMA—RSELENWIMER
iR — IR R

R2019F 4828 A QA & &
EWNBARBEFIL T —MEEW
FoB " BYF=ZHFREHER
BEFREEARHEINA%D K
HEZ(TKE] BINEZEKAL
HERDHEBRERER - ZBKREZ
K {& 518,000,000 A R (i ZE R 4
20,373,000/870) - AR RIESZR AU
AR R A A EBEEMNENIRER
{ERET -

BEER T RO 49% RN HEm R AR BEIE B
BEARA ZBABRBER2019%5A
B1HZHK » RE A AKBEFRBHE
BHE o MU B RAKEZAERE
BERARRZEREZWBAR] -
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36. ACQUISITION OF A BUSINESS THROUGH 36. EBMA—RSELEMRINER
PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A mikiE— A% (Z)

JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at RUEER - NREERRESEE RAE
the date of acquisition recognised by the Group: BEMNATE:
HK$°000
FEIT
Non-current assets BB E
Property, plant and equipment Wz - R RH 4,467
Current assets TEEE
Inventories e 1,353
Trade debtors FEUE 5 BR X 714
Other debtors, deposits and HEMEWERER - EE& &k
prepayments (Note i) TE A FRIE (K 72 i) 108
Amounts due from the Group FEW A& @] 2 3R 2,932
Bank balances and cash IRITEH IS 2,287
7,394
Current liabilities BB &
Trade creditors FESE 2 RN 171
Other creditors and accrued charges H b RER R N FEET B A 1,280
Amounts due to the Group e AREE 2 FIE 2,674
4,025
Net assets of Acquisition Date WeiE A FEE 7,836
Goodwill on Acquisition (Note i) WEER R (A aEi) 32,108
Fair value of previously held 49% equity JEBl# A 18 49% BN #E 25 89
interest of & %7 (Note i) NFEEHEFi) (19,571)
Consideration transferred HBERE 20,373
Satisfied by: IATRF AR EZAT
Cash consideration paid EfRENRE (20,373)
Cash and cash equivalent acquired KSR RESERER 2,287
Net cash outflow in respect of the ERBERN RS RLFRE

Acquisition of 15 ¥t (18,086)
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PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A
JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Notes:

(i) None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax
purpose. The goodwill arising on the acquisition of &1
was attributed to the anticipated profitability of its sales
and distribution of bottled LPG business. No identifiable
intangible assets acquired and recognised separately from
goodwill at the acquisition date.

(if) The gain on deemed disposal of previously held 49%
equity interest of 1B #r of approximately HK$9,218,000 was
remeasured as the excess of the fair value of the 49% equity
interest of & #¥7 of approximately HK$19,571,000 at 31
May 2019 over the carrying amount of 49% equity interest
previously held in #8 %7 of approximately HK$10,353,000
at 31 May 2019 in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised)
Business Combination. Pursuant to agreements entered
between BFY and the joint venture partners of &% in year
2006 and 2015, the whole acquisition of ##7 has been
subcontracted to BFY till the Acquisition Date.

(i) The receivable acquired (which principally comprised other
debtors) with a fair value of approximately HK$108,000
at the date of acquisition had gross contractual amounts
of approximately HK$15,599,000. The best estimate at
acquisition date of the #&%7 cash flow not expected to be
collected amount of approximately HK$15,491,000.

(iv)  The acquisition cost is insignificant.
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 is approximately HK$1,631,000 attributable to the
acquisition of & ¥r. Revenue of #& 7 included in the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately HK$18,337,000.

Had these business combinations been effected at 1
January 2019, the revenue of the Group would have been
approximately HK$27,795,319,000 and the profit for the
year would have been approximately HK$591,342,000. The
directors consider these ‘proforma’ number to represent an
approximate measure of the performance of the combined
group on an annualised basis and to provide a reference
point for comparison in future periods.

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A\ &= =3
RE ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 31 HI-FZE

36. ACQUISITION OF A BUSINESS THROUGH

FBWMA—RSELENWIMER
MU —IRRE (&)

Hat

() BEABBLISZABBKBEOMAR - W
BRNELNBEDHRNEHEEMS
B BR(CREBHBRARNE DT
EE-NWEBRH  WEEHESH
Yo iE N HERR RO Rl BB Bl BT B E

(i) ABIELE ZATF B BN 49% K17 &
2 W2549/59,218,000/8 7T + JhiRiE
BRI R R 3R (ER] ) ¥
A Bt R 20195 A 31 H 18 #149% %
DiEss 2 AFEH 19,571,000 T
£ 2019F5 831 H » ZRIHHBH
B9 49% % 19 4 25 49 10,353,000 7 JT °
1R #% 2006 FF % 20154F B &+ L3

NEEDENERI L 2 BFH
BELECHHFEEF E2KE
BHik -

(i) RUWER: FRESHERZKIEE
ZEEEMBEKER)NRAFEED
A108,0008 L A S BH A
15,599,000/ 7t ° NUEH - B 1R
EHRENREGATERITSRE - 4
715,491,000 7 o

(iv) WERALNER -
BHARERRZIE

HE2019F 12 A31 HILFE 2% A8
R BN U EETE#T491,631,00078 7T °
SHAREBEZ2019F 12 A31 B L4
5 W 2= 1) 18 3 W 2= 49 /318,337,000 78

JG ©

W % & ¥ 5 & #F RN2019F 1A
1HES AEENKABNA
27,795,319,000 78 7T + 1M F W 71 #5 4
£591,342,0008TC - EERABZEE
ZHFRREHEBUFEAER X
WAL LG E - A B RBERES
ZhUATELL R ©
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

In December 2018, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent party to
dispose the entire equity interest in the subsidiaries (the
“Disposed Subsidiaries”) that engaged in manufacturing
and distribution of charcoals. The disposal was completed
on 31 December 2018. The Disposed Subsidiaries were
acquired by the Group in late 2016, however, the Group
had not commenced any formal manufacturing of charcoals
up to the date of disposal. The net assets of the Disposed
Subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows:

Consideration received:

Cash received sz R e

37.

HERBELAR

R2018F 12 A » AEEE B FE =
F ot E R FRERRHE QR ([
ENRBAR]) 2 2R mERE] L —
MEEWZE - ZBELEER2018F 12
A 31 BT « N&E B 2016 F R UHE
ZEHENWB AR - A - AEBR
& B BT R IF = 5 46 BE [ AR K o
ZHENKBARRNHER ZFEEDN
T

gz :

HK$°000
FET

98,607

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was

RERFENEEMABE 2O

lost:
HK$’'000
FET
Intangible assets mEE 94,771
Property, plant and equipment L E T TS 4,564
Other receivables o fE U BR X 2,439
Bank balances and cash RITEERR NIRE 19
Other payables Hfh A AR X (5,943)
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE 95,850
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HE B A RFTE
Consideration received and receivable B e 2 KB 98,607
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE (95,850)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of MR RF & ER RETHE A% -
the net assets of the subsidiaries reclassified PRI A A 2K = 12 il i s
from equity to profit or loss on loss of control HEmDEEER
of the subsidiaries 62
Gain on disposal & 25 2,819
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: AHEMEEZRESFER
Cash consideration ReERE 98,607
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of B MEZRITEGBRIRS (19)
98,588

Since the Disposed Subsidiaries do not commence any
productions in years 2018 and 2019, there is no significant
impact of the Disposed Subsidiaries on the Group’s results
and cash flows.

A & BT B A F R 2018 4F & 2019
FEANWARFAREMLEE WL HED
WBRAREASEE 2E KRR E
BEATE-
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INSTRUMENTS

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt and
reserves, which includes lease liabilities and the borrowings
as disclosed in notes 31 and 33 respectively, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, share premium, reserves and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issues, payment of dividends and the raise of
bank borrowings or the repayment of the existing bank
borrowings.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during the
year.

Categories of financial instruments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=AN £ 2
iRE ISR M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 31 HI-FZE

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL 38. RFAREERMBIRA

REERER

AEBEANEE B RERERAEEN
RERBUNSESALE  AREE
HEVTHAGERSERRRRT RS
REH o REE 2 BRRME FFER

AEBEERARBETRERAN BB
DRIRMESI RBEEZHERER
ER)RARAHEEARIEEDR(BTE
E#HTRA - BRDEE  HERMRE R
M) PrAEAX ©

AEEEEERFTNEAKRAREER
FRZEARFERNEARE - A&E
B BBITH - XIS RIBINERTT
ERXREEREZRITEFTATFEEE
BEARE -

6 YA B R R SRR T

MBEIAZEHR

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Financial assets BB EE
Amortised cost BEIHRR 7,737,840 7,621,064
Derivative financial instruments PTEMET A 6,606 4,886
Financial liabilities BBEE
Amortised cost BEEHRCAR 8,420,065 8,281,224
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBTA 9,787 9,912




Annual Report 2019 =Z— L FEF#H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre M E R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EE2019F 12 A 31 AIFFE
38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, trade
receivables, other debtors, deposits, amounts due from (to)
an associate, amounts due from (to) a joint venture, trade
payables, other creditors and accrued charges, borrowings
and derivative financial instruments. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

(@) Several subsidiaries of the Company have
foreign currency sales and purchases, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Certain trade receivables, trade payables, bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits,
lease liabilities and borrowings of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies as disclosed
in notes 25, 28, 29, 31 and 33 respectively.

38.

REEAREERMBIA(E)

MERRER B RRBER

AEEZTEMBTABRRITERK
Be BEARTER BURESK
R HEWERS R B N—
RBEARFE  BR/N—REEE
ERE - BNESERN - EMEMERR
REHER BREITEMBTE - &%
EMBTRAZHFBENEMERE - TX
YRR EM B TAARZ AR L
BREZFRBRIBR EEEEENME
R E R - ARELR K B A1 A RO SR EX
EE IR

EmEE
() EEER

(@) ARQEETHEBRFAELAI
BAEZEE  SAEEF
RINERR - AEEE TR
WESEZ BENE SR
FRTEHREERES  BE
HIRTTER  HEABRE
o AINEEE (FIBE 25
Mt 3525 2829 31 K%
33WEE) °

1175
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL 38. AFEARERRMBIAE)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies HMEREEEERREE(Z)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) HEmEE(E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EEEE(E)
(a) (Continued) (a) (#&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign REENINETE 2 EEE
currency denominated monetary assets and EREBEERE2RIBARZ
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting BREEMT

period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
"E AR
2019 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBEIT FET FEIT
USD (against ELRARK
RMB) T 83,552 12,623 2,766,540 3,067,447
RMB (against AR R ETT
USD) 5% 4,529 215,433 - —
SGD (against N TR ETT
USD) mE 7,181 21,459 583 —
MYR (against SHEHRETHE

USD) - = 30,786 =
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, the management has entered into several
derivative contracts to reduce the exposure
of currency risk. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group has outstanding foreign exchange
derivative contracts with an aggregate notional
amount of approximately USD309,000,000 for
HK$ (2018: approximately USD340,500,000
for HK$ and approximately USD20,000,000
for RMB). The details of the derivative financial
instruments are disclosed in note 46.

In addition, as at 31 December 2019, a number
of subsidiaries of the Group with USD/HK$
functional currency have intragroup balances
that are denominated in RMB and RMB
functional currency have intragroup balances
that are denominated in USD/HK$, with a net
debit balance of HK$446,943,000 (2018: a net
credit balance of HK$435,896,000) or vice visa,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

“E-NEFR

38. REARETERMBIAE)

MERREEARRBE(E)

mEmE(E)

() EEmEE(E)

(@)

(&)

B E20194 K& 2018412 A
S1TALFE  EBEEFZ
R PTEAR L ARIE &=
% o R2019F12A31H -
B #4572 ¥8#9309,000,000
FICZ MAEEETT(2018 ¢
#7340,500,000 3% 7T Z M &
4 8% 7T )2 #920,000,000 3
TLZ MAREE AR ) 2 INE
PTEARY - TTEMBIAZ
FBEERMIE 46 H5E o

SN - 72019412 A31 8 -
AEBETFUETL/ BT
B EENHE QA -
HEEBRNEHAAREFE
B RUAAREAEGEE
MZHEBAREEBR&
BUNET / ATEE-"
F 8 %8446,943,0007%8
(20184 : F E & B &
435,896,000 7T ) 3k #H [k & &
EE FAEEARZINER

o8 o
N

1177
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

(a)

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged
with USD, the currency risk is mainly arising
from exchange rate of USD against RMB or
USD against SGD and vise versa. The following
table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in USD against RMB
and USD against SGD, and a 5% increase and
decrease in the RMB/USD and SGD/USD spot
rate and forward exchange rate. 5% represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in the RMB/USD and SGD/USD
exchange rate and the RMB/USD and SGD/USD
forward exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis
below did not include the derivative contracts
of USD for HK$ as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 because the management expected any
reasonable possible change in the USD/HK$
forward exchange rate would be immaterial. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and derivative financial instruments and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates
or their fair value at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% change in forward exchange
rate. For monetary assets and liabilities, positive
number below indicates an increase in post-
tax profit where RMB and SGD strengthen 5%
against USD. For a 5% weakening of RMB and
SGD against the relevant currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
and the balances below would be negative.
For derivative financial instruments, a negative
number below indicates a decrease in post-tax
profit where RMB strengthen 5% against USD/
HKD. For a 5% weakening of RMB the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and the balances below
would be positive.

38. REARETERMBIAE)

MERBREEARRME(Z)

mEmE(E)

() EEERE)

BURE DT

(@)

7B JT 2 BB 2 B 3 T B
i EBEREZREE
TC R AR K ZE TT 53
TC 0 RZ IR o TRFFIA
SEEETHEARKSEET
HEmE o EART%5%
M AR /370 K ik oo
SETREBRRMER
F R TEE% 2 HEEE ° 5%
REEEEBEUARE ETT
KET T, ELER R A
R¥& /&t RFE T,/
TR HAIE R 2 A1 0] g &

e MR EREEREHET
SABTTEBER 2 AR A B
FEEAT - AN B EUK
EAMURBIEABTEE
ZETRERHE #2019
F K2018F 12 A31H - &
REDMEBIEREHE Z M
INETIEEBIEE RITEH
BWITE: WAZWmMAREE
BEEHS%IEREE 2 A
BN EFRBRGEAF
BEEH 5% &R HERE S 2
AR -GEEKEERAREM
T WARB RN TR
ET EF5% 0 Blan N IESR
TR EEFIG M o AR
MEFIETEEBREET
#55% + Al g EEEE
FHRRzEE BUUT&E&
BEEH - ITEMBTA
mE - AR RIS T
HET,/ Bt EFA5% 8l
I B R RBR B & & FR
Do i AR RTINS TR
BEAEETES% » & i
MNEEESEERERZZE -
BUATHEREBIES -
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

(@)  (Continued)

USD against
RMB impact

RTRARBEE

38. REARETERMBIAE)

MERBREEARRME(Z)

mEmE(E)

(1)

RMB against
USD impact
ABRRETINE

E¥mg (&)

BREDWT (&)

(@)

(&)

SGD against MYR against

USD impact USD impact

AMETRRTHE SERRTVE

2019 2018
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET

FET  TEL
Increase in profit for the ERERE1N
year (Note) (fit)
— monetary assets  — EMAE
and liabilties keg 100,269 126,824
— derivative financial ~ — STAEBHTE
instruments I8 - 6,430

2019

195

2018
HK8'000
TAT

10,737

2019
HK$'000
FET

2018 2019 2018
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AT  TET  TET

275 891 1,278 =

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on bank balances, payables, lease
liabilities and borrowings denominated in USD,
RMB, SGD or MYR and derivative financial
instruments as at year end.

(b) The following table details the sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in USD/HK$ against
RMB in respect of the Group’s foreign currency
exposure on intergroup balances. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used by the management in the
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding intra group balance
denominated in RMB between subsidiaries of
the Group and adjusts its translation at the year
end for a 5% change in RMB rates. A positive
number below indicates increase in post-tax
profit for the year where RMB strengthens 5%
against USD/HKS.

TERRFREE
CARE FNE T
CEHEMBZREER
& RN R
BERERARITE
BIAGRZER -

Hiat -

hEd

[

T A

m 2 2 dl i

0
&

Ay

RASE 2 S EFEASRAT
ZINERBME - TR
XL/ EBTEARBLEAR
TR5% 2 BEE - 5% RE
BEMEEXSGEREED
FERZHEREL R - GRE
DITEBREAEENE R A
ZEUAARBEEBZRER
EHREeR URNFREHK
BEHEN ARKEXRZESH)
ZHEMARBHETL
BT LT 5% @ RN IEBR
RN i Tlb il
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)
For a 5% weakening of RMB against USD/HKS,

there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the post-tax profit for the year below:

38. REARETERMBIAE)

MERREEARRBEZ)
HmEmEE (E)
() EEERE)
HREE DN (&)
L) (&)
HARMEEET BT THR

5% - RIl& H LA T F AR
BEMNEERFRERZF
2 .

=

2019 2018

Increase (decrease) in post-tax ;
profit for the year CR)

F BRI IE A0

HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
49,108 (9,351)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s bank loans have exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on variable-rate bank
loans which charge interest at prevailing market
rates. In addition, the Group has exposure to fair
value interest rate risk through the impact of the rate
changes on pledged bank deposits and borrowings
which are at fixed interest rates. As at 31 December
2019 and 2018, the loans receivable included in other
debtors exposed to fair value interest rate risk as
the loans receivable bore at fixed interest rate. The
Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
fixed-rate borrowings (see note 33 for details of these
borrowings), loan advances included in other debtors
(see note 25 for details of these loans advances) and
derivative financial instruments including pay fixed
and receive floating interest rate swaps (see note 46
for details of these derivative financial instruments).
The purpose of the Group to enter non deliverable
Cross currency interest swap is to reduce the cash
flow interest rate risk but does not fulfill the hedge
accounting requirement.

(i)

BEEERS  ARFERER
WARBRERNZER - 88
R JE D A7 I AR BB HME
N

ETL

A LARITH S FIEGT B 2 F BRTT
BRZTGHNEEE - NEBEZ
RITEREEREREFEAR -
BESN - F R E B 2 B AR IRER
THERRERERTE B ASE
BaEEERAFEFERR - KX
20194 K 20184 12 A31H * M
REWEFIZEEFIEETE - G
A E b W AR 3k 2 B W S SR U I
AEEFERR - NEB 2 AFE
MERREZSRTEBERZSE
B IERm RHIEES3) 5T AHE
HEKERZER(GZEERZH
BERMEL) ROTET KT A -
BIETE B R F B W ER 5 (7%
EMEMBTAZFHER R
46) c REETITAIRE XX E
BREEH 7 BHERERESRE
MEER  BETFEE hEtE
jzo
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

In the opinion of management of the Group, the
expected change in interest rate will not have
significant impact on the interest income on bank
balances, hence sensitivity analysis is not presented.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
LIBOR and HIBOR arising from the Group’s variable
rate borrowings and partially set off by the derivative
financial instruments including pay fixed and receive
floating interest rate swaps.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate borrowings, excluding the exposure from the
bank borrowings offset by the derivative financial
instruments including pay fixed and received floating
interest rate swaps. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of outstanding balances at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2019
would decrease/increase by HK$26,728,000 (2018:
HK$26,416,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank borrowings, excluding the exposure from
the bank borrowings offset by the derivative financial
instruments that pay fixed and received floating
interest rate swaps.

38. REARETERMBIAE)

MERREEARRBE(E)
mEmE(E)
(i)  FIFEmEE(E)

AEBERERS  AHFEEH

“EHIRITARNTEMAELS
B WA EZIGRE T
RNEE 2 BB ENERBEFER
RAKFRDECRREE —5 -

AEBEZHHERENRRERFER
RAWMZERBE AR EE— ’éﬁ s
AEB B RENEER
*E@K%i?@%?&%iZfﬁ%@E
TREKELRBBRITRAEREZ
KB WRITEMBTE(BREE
BN RF BB H) K 8H

SURE DT

SA T GURRE 2 4 TH 1 0% BB RN =&
Rk (T REEITEME TA(RE
EBXMNRF BB = HY) 31 2
RITERAREE - DM IHERR
RE iﬁﬁﬁﬂiiﬂaiaz ERETBRNE
Ei’ﬂi EEMmEL - 501EER 2

ERAKREEBHN R AL
""""" BEEH 2 A -

M= R0 EEAR AFTA A
MR EEEEFTE  NEEEH
ZE2019F 12831 B IEFE 2%
) #5521 0 26,728,000 5% JT
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FlERRCrREFETEMBTE
(BIEE B X K% B UE R 8 ) 3K
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is engaged in the sale and distribution of
LPG and oil products and thus exposed to the risk
arising from the fluctuation of the commodities price
in the market. The Group entered into a number
of commodities swap contracts during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 to reduce the
commodities price risk. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group has outstanding commodities swap contracts
for LPG and oil products with aggregate notional
amounts of approximately USD1,840,000 (2018:
commodities swap contracts for LPG and oil products
with aggregate notional amounts of approximately
USD6,460,000) respectively. The details of these
derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note
46.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the outstanding commodities swap
contracts as at 31 December 2019. If the prices of
LPG and oil had been 5% higher/lower, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$598,000 (2018: HK$2,098,000)
as a result of changes in fair value of the commodities
swap contracts.

38. REARETERMBIAE)

MERREEARRBE(E)

mEmE(E)

(1)

B8/

REBFENEHE D HRE
REBM: L EEmEEMEY
MEREBMEEZRR - HZE
20194 K 2018 12 A31 H It F
B AEEEFVETRERESRE
A LARVE P SR (B A& R B o 742019
F12A31H BEXRESEN
1,840,000 2 7T /& /b & %O @@ A AR
HE 2 EREEE4(2018 : BF
% & F496,460,000 = TTRIL R K
MmZAmBEREL) - ZETE
B TAZFIEERME46 HE ©

BURE DT

AT 2 BRE o AT TR IR R
201912 A1 E M ARz E
mEBEHENETE - WERIERR
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598,000 7T(2018 : 2,098,000
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets, except that the credit risks associated with certain
loan advances are mitigated because they are secured
over a property and a cruise. The Group has significant
concentration risk on certain customers and the loan
advance to several entities.

Trade receivables assets arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring system
to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed twice a year. The Group only
accepts bills issued or guaranteed by reputable PRC banks
if trade receivables are settled by bills and therefore the
management of the Group considers the credit risk arising
from the endorsed or discounted bills is insignificant.
Under HKFRS 9, the Group applies simplified approach on
trade receivables to provide for ECL prescribed by HKFRS
9. To measure the ECL, trade receivables are assessed
individually for credit-impaired debtors and for debtors
with significant balance by reference to past default
experience and current past due exposure of the debtor,
and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position,
and collectively using a provision matrix for the remaining
balances, which is grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the historical observed default rates
adjusted for forward-looking estimates that is available
without undue costs or effort. As part of the Group’s credit
risk management, the Group applies internal credit rating
for its customers and the average loss rates for the year
ended 31 December 2019 ranged from 0.2% to 6.0%
(2018: 0.2% to 6.3%).

REEAREERMBIA(E)

MERBREEARRME(Z)

15 R MR ETFE
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL 38. BXABEEERMETIRE)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) SEmBRREFGE(Z)

Trade receivables assets arising from contracts with HEEET A A ELRERE S5 THE
customers (Continued) E(E)

As at 31 December 2019, the top ten largest trade MR2019F 12 A31H * H10 L & KN fE
receivables amounted to approximately HK$3,641,161,000 W& 5 Bk 3K 4 53,641,161,0007% 7T
(2018: HK$3,304,385,000) and comprised around 76.2% (2018 : 3,304,385,0007% 7T ) * 1h &
(2018: 71.1%) of the Group’s trade receivables. The SEMNEWKE FRFKAT76.2% (2018 :
following table shows the analysis of the top ten largest 71.1%) c TERB LB 10 EKE Z K
trade receivables by their business nature and location etc.: AR XTSI E K& 2 5T

Customers included in the top ten
individual largest trade receivables

BREETRBNRAELEAERCER
% of the total Locations
Number trade receivables HE
BE BENHBERESL 2019 and 2018
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 R 2018
Sales of LPG HERILE 3 4 26 314 PRC, Thailand,
HK and others
HE - RE - FERERM
Sales of oil products HEhm 6 5 42.9 33.7 PRC, Thailand,
HK and others
HE - RE - FEREM
Sales of electronic products ~ HEEFER 1 1 37 6.0 Thailand &E&
10 10 76.2 il
Most of the customers of the Group are large wholesalers REBARIMBHBRELARRH  FTE - FF
or trading companies in the PRC, Thailand, Hong Kong or KGN KBRS B FH RG] - AEE
overseas. The management of the Group considers that JEEEBRKEBERS AN BRALEER
the credit risk on amounts due from these customers is 8 EREERVEMRRE  REZS
insignificant after considering their historical settlement BEERSE I EERRITTEK

records, credit qualities and financial position of the
counterparties.
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Loan advances and deposits paid and other receivables

Before granting the loan advances, the management of
the Group has obtained an understanding to the credit
background of the debtors and undertaken an internal
credit approval process. The management of the Group
has taken into account the economic outlook of the
industries in which the debtors operate and reviewed
the recoverable amount of each loan receivable at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses was recognised for irrecoverable debts.
The management closely monitored the subsequent
settlement of the individual loan and assessed impairment
with reference to fair value of the collateralised cruise and
residential properties located in Hong Kong. Also, the
management might request for highly liquid collaterals in
order to minimise the exposure of credit risk. In this regard,
the directors considered that the Group’s credit risk was
significantly reduced. During the year ended 31 December
2019, an additional impairment losses of HK$445,000
(2018: HK$7,348,000) was recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Amounts due from an associate and a joint venture

For amounts due from an associate and a joint venture, in
order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group continuously monitors the settlement status and the
level of exposure to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In the opinion of the management
of the Group, the risk of default by this counterparty is
not significant and the Group assessed that the 12m ECL
on these balances are insignificant for the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2019 and thus no impairment loss
was recognised.

38.
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38. REARETERMBIAE)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) SEmBRREFGE(Z)

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash ERFIRITIZ A RIRTTAZ A R B 2

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances AL S5 H BEBEERIAMERTAER

is limited because the counterparties are reputable banks SERASERTEERIFMNRIT - MK
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit HIRTERERTERNEARRE
agencies. The Group assessed 12m ECL for pledged bank R o REBEIREINEHAFTRKEQ M

deposits and bank balances by reference to information MEANRER2EZLMERENE
relating to probability of default and loss given default of K HEEBRITERRBITERET
the respective credit rating grades published by external T 12 @ AR EEEETE -

credit rating agencies.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

AEBZABEE

PARBEEATER

Internal Trade receivables/  Other financial
credit rating Description loan receivables assets/other items
R BER HttpBERE
MBS H AR it B £ 3R HfttIH R
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
1 B RZFEHRBERIE - WA REEAEEE FEEHEEER - 12@ABHEEER
FEERE
Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
usually settle in full not credit—\impaired
b BEHRAKFEIHERESR BEg2HER FRBHEERR - 12@ABHEEER
FEERE
High risk There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

risk since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

not credit-impaired

not credit-impaired

=ER BERABRENESIINBER RERERANL HFEEHRGEEESE - GFEEHREEESE —
® o %EELIS%E%WH FEERE FEERE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired

B ARBRAZEECHIEERA FEEREEEE - GFEEHREEESSE -

EERE EERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

34 AREBRAGBARRTBRE AEERALE BHMEHESE EMEHE R

Al E &
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL 38. AFEARERRMBIAE)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies MERREEARRBE(Z)
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 15 m B R B EFE ()

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TRFINAEE W BEERBEBEE
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL BEEETEETAS 2 EERR
assessment:

External  Internal
credit credit

rating rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
SEHER  ABER
#& R 12@REFRARNGARER EmE
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
= T PEn
Financial assets at
amortised cost
BRSRFHECHERE
Trade receivables — 2% - (Note 1) Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired and assessed individually)
contracts with customers TR (1)  GERBEEBERGEEERERERTE)
EUESE - BEF ~ High risk 248,552 318,348
HRVEE) - mER
— Medium risk 8,868 118,203
— kR
— Low risk 4,552,759 4,313,062
- EEkR
4,810,179 4,749,613
2% - (Note 1) Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired and assessed in provision 6,138 6,648
TER (Wit matry) ‘
FERHEEFRGHEERERABRRETT)
2% - (Note 1) Credit impaired 27,000 27,000
MNER  (Bi#1)  GERE
Loan advances 2% - (Note 2) ~ 12m ECL (not credit impaired and assessed individually) 73,734 76,267
B MR (W#2) 12ERRREESR(EEERERERNNE)
2% - (Note 2)  Credit impaired 48,383 48,487
NER  (Wiz)  RERE
Deposits paid and other 23 and 25 — (Note 2) ~ 12m ECL (not credit impaired and assessed individually) 241,789 278,300
receivables 23R2 T@EB  (B#2)  12BABBGEERGEEERERERE)
BTSB!
Amounts due from an 26 - (Note 2)  12m ECL (not credit impaired and assessed individually) 6,716 12,857
assoclate and a joint TR (BE2) 12ARBREEBRGHEERERERE)
venture
RU-FEBERAAR-%5
EEE
Pledged bank deposits 28 Aal — 12m ECL (not credit impaired and assessed individually) 360,218 243,095
E?ﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁk TEA  12MIRRREEBRGHSRERERTE)
Bank balances and cash 28  Aa2toBaal — 12m ECL (not credit impaired and assessed individually) 2,288,684 2,295,797

RTEREAE A2ZBaal 7A  12EARBEEFRCEEERERERFME)
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

1. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. Except for receivables with significant
outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the Group
determines the expected credit losses on these items
grouped by internal credit rating and past due status.

2. For loan advances, deposits paid and other receivables,
amounts due from an associate and a joint venture, pledged
bank deposits, and bank balances and cash, except for
balances are credit-impaired, the Group has applied the
12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
credit loss experience of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information (for example, the economics
growth rates which reflect the general economic conditions
of the industry in which the debtors operate) that is
available without undue cost or effort. Such forward-looking
information is used by the management of the Group to
assess both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The internal credit rating
categories are regularly reviewed by the management of the
Group to ensure relevant information about specific debtors
is updated.

For loan receivables, the management of the Group
makes individual assessment on the recoverability of loan
advances to independent third parties based on historical
settlement records, any cash flows that are expected from
the realisation of the collateral and also forward-looking
information starting from 1 January 2018 and 31 December
2018 and 2019.

38. REARETERMBIAE)

MERREEARRBE(E)

ERERER R EFE(E)
Hiit

1. HREKESEFME  AKECER
BB P BIRELERSE 9L TR
EFERBEEERZEBERER B
BEARREREZEHESRAERER
EMERERIN  AEBREAE
EREEREAEEZSZIEA Z
HEHEEEE -

2. BER BENREREMEWFR -
W —KEERRRE - BB —RE
BREFIR - BEMBITHERMBRT
mHRkBEeME  KREGEREZE
BN AEBEEA12EABYES
FRBERAFERACEEBR(BRER
FERRERRBBEIE)

AErERETVIZREBANELERE
BRI - LARNBEEREHRE
(Blgn: AIRMEBAREEZTRZ
—REERA M EEERER) - UK
TREORARE S - AREZERE
ERZATEMEER AR ERE BNRN
RIATR - ARBEZERER S EH
ERAMEEFRER - UERENE
R EEHANBBEER -
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL 38. BEXEREERMBEIAZ)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) SEmBRREFGE(Z)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TRETRBEE(EATEE BRNEWE
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the FERCFEEREEEEES -

simplified approach.

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
FETEH TFETEH
EEEE EEEE
GEEERE) (EERME) BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FEIT FEIT
As at 1 January 2018 HZE2018F1A1H 10,000 27,000 37,000
Changes due to financial AEZE2018%F1 818
instruments recognised as at BRZMBILAZ
1 January 2018: B
— Impairment losses reversed — — JR{EEEED (9,832) - (9,832)
New financial assets originated — #T B 754 E A #ER 29,832 — 29,832
As at 31 December 2018 H=E2018% 12 A31 H 30,000 27,000 57,000
Changes due to financial A#EZE2019%F1 818
instruments recognised as at HRMBE LA
1 January 2019: i
— Impairment losses reversed — — JF{EEEE D (28,757) — (28,757)
New financial assets originated — #TE1 54 & A #E R 36,757 = 36,757

As at 31 December 2019 HZE2019F12 A31 H 38,000 27,000 65,000
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL 38. BEXEBREERMBEIAZ)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) SEmBRREFGE(Z)
The following table shows the reconciliation of loss TRERER  BfiRe REMEKE
allowance that has been recognised for loan advances, K2 EREREIBAEE 2 HK -
deposits paid and other receivables.
Lifetime ECL
12m (not credit- (credit-
ECL impaired) impaired) Total
128 A FHETEH
BHEEE GEEE
BB BE) (EERME) BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FEIT FEIT FEIT
As at 1 January 2018 BHZ2018F1H1H 4,165 25,835 — 30,000
Changes due to financial E&EZ=2018F1 51 B
instruments recognised as ~ RZ BT EZE :
at 1 January 2018:
— Transfer to credit — BBREEERE
impaired — (25,835) 25,835 =
— Impairment losses — ERRREEE
recognised 7,348 — 22,652 30,000
As at 31 December 2018 HZE2018%412 A31H 11,5183 — 48,487 60,000
Changes due to financial E&EZ=2019F1 51 8
instruments recognised as ~ RZ P BT EZ# :
at 1 January 2019:
— Transfer to credit — BBREEERE
impaired (3,296) — 3,296 —
As at 31 December 2019 #HZE2019%F12 A31H 8,217 — 51,783 60,000
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, loan advances with a gross
carrying amount of HK$51,783,000 (2018: HK$48,487,000)
has been identified as credit-impaired financial assets
following a significant financial difficulty of counterparties.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, an additional
impairment losses of HK$22,652,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
reversed HK$28,757,000 (2018: HK$9,832,000) impairment
losses for trade receivables due to the settlement from
trade debtors.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has undrawn
short term borrowing facilities amounting to
approximately HK$4,707,386,000 (2018: approximately
HK$6,032,415,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derive from interest rate carries at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual
net cash (inflows) outflows on derivative instruments that
settle on a net basis. When the amount payable is not fixed,
the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to
the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves
existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity
analysis for the Group’s derivative financial instruments
are prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash
flows of derivatives.

38.

REEAREERMBIA(E)

MERREEARRBE(E)

ERBEER R EFE(E)

HZ2019F12A31 8B ARG E
BEAVKRE - B3R 2 51,783,000/8
JC(2018 : 48,487,000/ 7T ) BE R B 1=
BERE - AZ2018F 12 A31 HIEFE
N REEEERkEMEE WK R
REEINBEETIE 22,652,000 7 7T °

#H 220196 12A31H8 It & - B
REKREEKE SERERAEEE &5
28,757,000 7£(2018 : 9,832,000 7%
TC)FEWE B IEREEE o

BB R

EEERDECRRE  AEEEER
REREEEBRAREAZHENERRE
BEHE UAAEEZEXBEERM
B2 WRERSRERPITE - B
EBEZRITIERZ ERBERRERET

ERRL -

MR2019F 12 A31 B » A&EE 7 RIEH
%2 B f& 515 B 495 4,707,386,000 78 7T
(2018 : 49/5%6,032,415,000 % 7T) °

TRANANEEFTEMBREILRT
BHZBHHR - TRIDERAKER
AEEMBREZEFARZAINAR
EREMBRE - TREFBMNERAEZ
BEene - Wi RERNFEEH =G

B BREE RS 2 WK R
IO - FREFIAEBTERBTA

MBEEDN - ZRERBAFES
BZMETARBBAORERFE
ORA) R AREL - B A SRR IEE E
B IRBESEE2ERERPRZE
S22 AN XREE - AEE
TEFMBTAEZRBES DT HIERE
WEMERE  REAEEEERREH
NHEWEETAETAZREREZRK
HEREER -
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL 38. BEXEBREERMBEIAZ)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) RHELRE(E)

Liquidity risk table BB ZE

Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December

effective 1 year undiscounted 2019
interest rate Within (] 2 years to Over  cash flows R2019%
Ty 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years BxBR 123182
ERf% 15  1£E2f  2fE5E Bl5%F AenE EEE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FET FET FET TET . 27

2019 2019
Non-derivative financial ~ FEITABIBERE
liabilities
Trade payables EEfEZ5H - 974,192 - - - 974,192 974,192
Other creditors Eft R - 204,052 - - - 204,052 204,053
Amount due to an ER—FHELNH
associate LB - 9,480 - - - 9,480 9,480
Amount due to a joint Ef—FaEhZ
venture 258 - 5,576 - - - 5,576 5,576
Fixed interest rates TR
borrowings 4.04% 655,683 - - - 655,683 652,443
Variable interest rate ZRER
borrowings 5.22% 5,156,334 346,233 1,126,346 - 6,628,913 6,401,967
Lease liabilities fEak 4.02% 57,597 55,162 40,764 50,787 204,310 172,354

7,062,914 401,395 1,167,110 50,787 8,682,206 8,420,065

e T

Derivatives — net settlement 14T & — £EF&
Commodities swaps AnESA AR

contracts outflow 830 - - - 830 830
Non-deliverable cross AIRERNEE

currency interest el

swap contracts it

outflow 26 206 85 - 317 317

Foreign exchange option  SMEEIEA LRI
contracts outflow 2,034 - - - 2,034 2,034
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk table (Continued)
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38. REARETERMBIAE)

MERREEARRBE(E)

ROELEEE(E)

REELE R (&)

Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December
effective 1 year undiscounted 2018
interest rate Within to 2 years to cash flows R20184F
METF 1 year 2 years 5 years BRER 1283182
ERA = 18R/ 1620 2FELE Heng RE(E
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TAT AT FET FET FET
2018 2018
Non-derivative financial FITENKEE
liabilities
Trade payables ENE SR - 858,439 - - 858,439 858,439
Other creditors Hin R = 328,646 - - 328,646 328,646
Amount due to an ER—FHERR
associate #IE - 14,530 - - 14,530 14,530
Amount due to a joint ER-FREREL
venture B - 8,674 - - 8,674 8,674
Fixed interest rates EEMER
borrowings 3.87 459,353 - - 459,353 457,274
Variable interest rate ZRER
borrowings 5.38 4,484,935 1,262,173 1,331,156 7,068,264 6,716,097
6,154,577 1,262,173 1,331,156 8,737,906 8,383,660
Derivatives — net settlement #7148 — FEFE
Commodities swaps BRBEAORHT
contracts outflow - 2,437 - - 2,437 2,437
Non-deliverable cross FORERXERH
currency interest swap ZiSBAH(RA)
contracts (inflow) iojan
outflow - (1,651) (549) 39 (1,804 (1,604
Foreign exchange option ~ SMEHEEA A7 H:
contracts outflow - 2,364 1,188 — 3,562 81562
Interest rate cap contract ~ FIE ERAMEA
inflows - (816) 611) - (1,427) (1,427)
Foreign exchange range NEGEEHERS
forward rates contract oo
outflow - 2,268 - - 2,268 2,268
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL

39.

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis and or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

o the fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices; and

° the fair value of derivative financial instruments
is made of discounted cash flow analysis using
the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

The details of fair value measurements of financial
instruments that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis are further set out in note 48.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

38.

39.

REARETEERMBIA(E)

AFE

MBEERYBABZRAFECTET
BERINTIRTRBESRED T LKE
BTARRBRERBEAREERAE

TE °

o  RIREFRRRKHLNERRET
BEBECHBEEL AT EREMR
BHEEEMEE - &

o AEMBIARATENERRERR
TR ASFRESTA T A2 HiRE
Bz W R AR E - MADENTE
TRAAREEERNGTE -

EEAR/NEAMBRRPIRBHERAN
LR BEERM B AR REESR
HRFERE -

REEMERNATENE2HBIA
2 DR R — SRR K48 -

MEITDHEEZARYE

TRALEERAEDELZ AEEDY
HiE - AERRERLED - RAF
PELZBENARSRERERES
FENFEEGA RS RERDE AR
BEDRSTE -
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39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 39.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

Borrowings

fEm

“E-hEFFR 1195

MRTDEEZARYIRE)

METDELEZARBIE

Interest

payable

(included

Lease in other
liabilities [EVEL )]
EfFR

(BiEERM

HEAR BEMARER)

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

TFET TFET FET TFET

At 1 January 2019 20191 A1H 7,173,371 - 12,667 7,186,038

Adjustment (Note) RE(KEE) - 187,304 - 187,304

Financing cash flows BMER SR (116,201) (50,425)  (355,935)  (522,561)
Non-cash changes I & #E)

Interest expense FEX H - 8,220 350,265 358,485
New lease entered HIVE Kk - 39,091 - 39,091
Exchange realignment fE B (2,760) (11,836) - (14,596)
At 31 December 2019 MR2019%F 12 531 H 7,054,410 172,354 6,997 7,233,761

Note: The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application
at 1 January 2019.

Hiet AL ETBYERE B KRS &L
F16%  HRFFER2019F1 A
1B EIRER B EmER -

Interest

payable

(included

Lease in other
Borrowings liabilities payable) Total

FERTFI &

(BIEEEA
& HEAFE ENKIEFR) &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2018 R2018%F1 A1H 5,347,386 — 10,943 5,358,329
Financing cash flows BER ST 1,825,985 — (282,801) 1,543,184

Non-cash changes I % )

Interest expense e — — 284,525 284,525
At 31 December 2018 ®R2018% 12 A31 H 7,173,371 — 12,667 7,186,038
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

41. LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases for offices, oil vessels and
leasehold land which fall due as follows:

Within one year —F RN
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Over five years BREAF

40.

41.

E_EZRFN(ERFEREMF)

BARAR

MR20194F k2018412 A31H » K&
B ESRFAEE -

HEKiE
FREESEEA

RERPR  AEERBTAIHELE
MAaE  amkEETBEOASINZ
BR&ALESE  BIBBEMT

2018
HK$°000
FET

76,902
111,724
77,748

266,374

As at 31 December 2018, rentals are fixed for an average
of 5 years.

The Group as lessor

All of the Groups oil vessels and warehouse have
committed tenants for the next one to five years.

Minimum lease payment receivable on leases are as
follows:

MN2018FE 12 A31 0 HEBETEHFEH
BEE o

FREMESHEA

AEBRAH MM NA BEHDARER
K—E|RFRHAH -

FEW AR DEE BT

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

F_EhFR(BREEMSF)

HK$°000
FET

6,296
10,500

16,796
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41. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued) 41. HERIEE)
The Group as lessor (Continued) FEEEBHBEAE)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REREEIR  ANEBEHEAFR AR BB R
contracted with lessees for the following future minimum DS HETA -

lease payments.

2018
HK$’000
FET
Within one year —FR 20,911
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERAFAN(BEEEMRT) 23,272
Over five years BiEmA s 450
44,633
42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42, BXEKIE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FEIT
Capital expenditure contracted for but ~ BRAIEARE - #28 KInEH
not provided in the consolidated B ETABE R ARG B 15 3R
financial statements in respect of B2 EARFEX
purchase of gas plant and machinery
and oil vessels 440,948 260,279

Capital expenditure authorised for but BRI IR ETE B B 2 ERHE
not contracted and provided in the BRETH R ARRERE B 75
consolidated financial statements in BB ERAZ
respect of acquisition of investment
projects 33,489 150,881
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The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group and each
employee employed in Hong Kong are required to make
a contribution of 5% on the employees’ monthly relevant
income with a maximum monthly contribution of HK$1,500
per person from June 2014 onward.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute fixed percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the specified contributions.

As prescribed by the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”)
Board of Singapore, the Group’s employees employed
in Singapore who are Singapore Citizens or Permanent
Residents are required to join the CPF scheme. From 1
January 2018 onwards, the Group’s contribution rates
of the eligible employees’ salaries remain the same, with
each employee’s qualifying salary capped at SGD$6,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$35,000) per month.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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43. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 43. BWFEFIEHR

AEBAERBB2E2BAEREER
Bt B E - ZtEIcBEER
REEEESHIEE  AETEANRES
TS - REBEREBER 2 &4
EEEBRIZEEERBBWMAZ5%ER
MK B2014F6 A FARKER
DHRIAZA1,500/87T °

AEERTENRBARZEEZ2MNTH
BT EEZRKENGE - ZEMB L
AR ERFERBHAEATERALZ
B 7E LE PI R o AN SR R IR A 5t 8
ZME— B EEHRR -

BRIMEAES([AELTE])BR
o ASBRFMEERZEES A
MFEARSKAEER » MBZENTE
&5t8l - H2018F1 A1 HE A& E
BEEWREBIED 2 BRRFTE
UEBAEWREE LR AES A 6,000
DT (ABER 49 35,0008 7T) ©
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than the related party transactions as set out in

notes 26 and 32, saved as disclosed

consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into

44.

elsewhere in the

the following transactions with related parties during the

year:

REALEXS

BRETAE26 R2FABMZBABALTRH K
REMBRREMIE T AREEIN
SERNFAERBEALTET FIR

ZiN
5

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Sales to joint ventures MAESTEHE 12,075 19,539
Purchase from an associate m—REEAREE - 306,118
Rental expenses paid to a joint venture F—XRAEPESNEEFAX - 1,188
Rental expenses paid to Shum Ho, Neo A28 NS
(Note 1) (Kt 1) 4,776 4,776
Rental expenses paid to a related party [A— B8t 5 X N HEFE
(Note 2) (HteE2) 27,074 2,256
Management charges paid to an B—REEARZNEERE
associate 2,290 2,002
Transportation fee received from an A — KB A Y EE B
associate 1,380 2,145
Transportation fee received from a joint [Al— KA L X WEUER E
venture 224 317
Sales to an associate m—REEE R RIHE 513 533
Engineering income received from a joint [ —R& &M UER TF2URA
venture - 94
Acquisition of right-of-use assets from a [ — BaHE 7 UeiE (& A& &
related party (Note 3) (B17£3) 29,881 —
Notes: Biat -
1. Shum Ho, Neo is the employee of the Group and also the 1. BB AEECZEEVYAZSLERE

son of Shum Siu Hung and Tong Shiu Ming. Shum Siu
Hung is the executive director of the Company. On 19
December 2017, Sound Management entered into an office
tenancy agreement with Ever Lucky Limited (“Ever Lucky”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong and wholly owned by
Shum Ho, Neo, to extend the existing leasing agreement for
the use of office premises owned by Ever Lucky located on
23rd Floor, The Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong at HK$398,000 per calendar month
for a period of one year commencing on 1 January 2018.
On 17 December 2018, Sound Management and Ever Lucky
entered into another office tenancy agreements to extend
the rental period for one year to 31 December 2019. The
details of the transactions were set out in the announcement
issued by the Company on 17 December 2018.

INBZ T o BLWRRNNRZHITE
F o R2017F 12 A19H » /8 EIE
HBEBRILLBSEEERE 2ERE
BRAG(ERDETHAEHEEL -
LA B #398,000/% Jt 4 1 M 12 & %
- MNREBEBIFES T E2005% 5
IREBMAPLBEZHAETYE - A
H 201841 A1 H s A H1F -
R2018F 12 A17H @ FEE R EE
BEHAEHY  BHZBLAE—
£ 2019412 A 31 EI e ZBRHZ
HEEEHINARFR2018F 12 A
17 BRI Z2AER °

1199
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2. On 2 November 2018, Baifuyang Macao Commercial
Offshore Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a bareboat chartered agreement
with Link Harvest Enterprise Limited (“Link Harvest”) for the
lease of a very large crude carrier at the monthly rate of hire
of US$290,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,256,000
per month) for a term of 36 months commencing from 1
December 2018. The controlling shareholder of Link Harvest
is Shum Chun, Lawrence who is the managing director and
substantial shareholder of the Company. The details of the
transactions were set out in the announcement issued by the
Company on 2 November 2018.

3. On 6 September 2019, NewOcean Fuel (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, entered into two bareboat
charter agreements with Rise Harvest Enterprise Pte. Ltd.
(“Rise Harvest”), and Win Harvest Enterprise Pte. Ltd. (“Win
Harvest”) for the lease of two oil tankers at the monthly
rate of hire of US$90,000 each (equivalent to approximately
HK$700,200 per month) for a term of 24 months
commencing from 20 September 2019 (the “Transaction”).
The value of the right-of-use assets recognised under the
Transaction is approximately HK$29,881,000. The controlling
shareholder of Rise Harvest and Win Harvest is Shun Chun
Lawrence who is the managing director and substantial
shareholder of the Company. The details of the Transactions
were set out in the announcements issued by the Company
on 6 and 9 September 2019.

The rental expenses paid to Shum Ho, Neo are subjected
to reporting and announcement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rule, the remaining transactions disclosed in this
note and notes 26 and 32 are connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
but are exempted from reporting, announcement, and
shareholders approval requirements under Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel

The directors of the Company consider that the directors
are the key management of the Group, whose emoluments
have been disclosed in note 11.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

44, FEBEALTE S (Z)
Btz - (&)

2. M2018F11 A28 "R @lza A&
MBARE S FRMBEFEERSEE
RARELLRREEFR A AL
AR DRAE—RER GG UE
A £290,000%t(HBEREFAEE
2,256,000 70 ) FT ML AR R E 1 -
FHE H2018FE12 A1 B £ 51 A H
361HA - BLAFRZIEERREAZE
(BABARRZEZHBIKEBERTER
) o XRHFRBEHINNALF K 2018
F11 A2BHEZAER -

3. M2019F9H6H  ARFZHMEAR
7] NewOcean Fuel (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. EiRise Harvest Enterprise Pte.
Ltd. ([Rise Harvest]) & Win Harvest
Enterprise Pte. Ltd.([Win Harvest])
REEREHEN SEUERAHES
90,000 7T (#8EM& A 4 700,200
BIET) U AMEEHE BHA
201949 A20H &+ & Hi241@ A
([R5 ]) - ZBER5E BRI A
& EE{E# 529,881,000/ T ° Rise
Harvest & Win Harvest 2 {2 # IX 5 &
BREE  BAARACESRKE
REERR - XEHFABEHIRAER
AR 20199 A6 H K9H Fl% 2
ER o

N FEEZEE X TIRE EHAR A
FUABZHHRERE - AR ERNEE
RHhME26 R32WE RARARE
FHRAFEUATETNREERS @
BHREETEMRABET ZHE  2F
KRR RBLAERRE

FEEHASZHM
AAREEZREBESAAEEZEEE
BEAE  HMESERHE11 RIFEE -

EERIF2TRABZHFMAFHNEZE
SRBEAXRRRTEBEETE -
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 45, ERTZEEMEAFHS
THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 AR A HR20194F % 2018F 12 531 H
December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: ZEEMBARGFBEOT
Place of Issued and Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ fully paid up value of issued/
registration/ Class of share capital/l  registered capital held
Name of subsidiary operation’ ’ share held registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
e/ ERTRMERT/ FLRARBERT/
HEARER Xk FiRnER &S HREFEELA EERE
2019 2018
Baifuyang Macao Commercial Offshore ~ Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG, oil
Limited and electronic products
AR RMEREEREERAR 2 LAk 100,000 27 HERAERIR - BRRETER
Fruto International Macao Commercial Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG and
Offshore Limited oil products
BRI RRE R AR AT il Lk 100,000 &7 HERABRIR AR
Lianxin Energy Development Company ~ PRC' Registered capital RMB486,500,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
Limited
B RERARAR e iR AERH 486,500,007 HERAMRILE
NewOcean Petroleum Company Limited ~ BVI Ordinary USD1 100 100 Sales and distribution of oil products
TARBARAR ABRLE LR 1% HERAHRm
Sound Agents Limited (“Sound Agents’)  Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG and
(Note 1) selling of oil products
HEREARRAR(TFEREAL &k LRk 28T HERAERIRRHEE AR
W1
AR RS BB A PRC? Registered capital USD99,150,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
RE’ iR 99,150,000 70 HERAHRIE
AR (PE)BR AR PRC? Registered capital USD107,670,000 100 100 Sales and distrioution of LPG
hE’ iftEx 107,670,0005%7 BERMHRILE
BEANSRE(RE)BRAT PRC? Registered capital RMBT79,182,085 79.2 79.2 Sales and distribution of of products
hE’ iR AEH79,182,0857 HERA G
NewOcean Fuel (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary SGD4,109,589 4715 475 Sales and distribution of oil products
(‘NewOcean Fuel’) (Note 2)
NewOcean Fuel (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. %t LRk 4,109,589 3 T HERD HAm
([NewOcean Fuell)(#:22)
! Domestic — Invested enterprise ! NERERE
2 Wholly-owned foreign enterprises 2 EEINEDE

Sino-foreign equity enterprise 8 FINE BB

1201
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THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

1. Sound Agents is indirectly held by the Company through
the declarations of trust executed by Shum Chun, Lawrence
who is holding 50% interest in Sound Agents. The remaining
interest in Sound Agents is indirectly held by the Company.

2. 60% of the interest in NewOcean Fuel is owned by Keen
Luck Ventures Limited (“Keen Luck”) and 79.2% of the
interest in Keen Luck is owned by Sound Hong Kong Limited
(“Sound HK”). Sound HK is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The above principal subsidiaries are owned indirectly by the
Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no material
non-controlling interests and the summarised financial
information about these subsidiaries is not disclosed.
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 45, ERTFZEEMBAFHEZ)

1. HMBREANBEHZSERLZETE
REBARARMERE - ZBEEH
BRIEAZB0% e o FERIE AR
THERAARBEERE °

2. NewOcean Fuel &) 60% # 25 i 1212 Al
KRERAR(RELRDIFESE  BE
BlEH 79 2% = BINEBBERA
A([FEBREDNIFER - HEBBEBAEN
AEIZEBRENHB AT -

PR TF2MBAR G HARRMEEE
ﬁ o

&M B 2 RN F R R B A
EAIREEERES

ERFINESRABEIEREAKERE
HEEZARFINBRR - EFRRT
HEMHBAR 2 EHMEENITE -

EERA AEBEUES KIFEFE
@ BYERBEEMB AR ZHBER
BEELIE -
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46. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46.

TTHEMBIAR

—E-hFEFHK 1203

Derivatives financial instruments

FTEMBIR
Assets Liabilities
=E K
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FEIT
2019 2019
Current M ED
Commodities swaps contracts iR B G &Y - 830
Non-deliverable cross currency interest  “NAJ 32 21|35 X & # Rl R 3= £
swap contracts a4 4,307 4,624
Foreign exchange option contracts HNEEHRRE A 4Y 2,299 4,333
6,606 9,787
Derivatives financial instruments
PTEBBIA
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
2018 2018
Current D
Commodities swaps contracts EmiE A 4 392 2,829
Non-deliverable cross currency interest  ~AJ &2 2 38 X & s | 2 455 HA
swap contracts = 3,067 1,263
Foreign exchange option contracts SN ERRES 4 — 3,552
Foreign exchange range forward INEEERAEA = 2,268
Interest rate cap FZE LR 1,427 —
4,886 9,912
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46. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. FTEMBIR(Z)
(Continued)
Major terms of the derivative financial instruments are PTEMB T Az EBEFAmT

summarised as follows:

A. Commodities swaps contracts — net settlement A. BREHSH-EHESdE
2019 2019
Notional amount Period Prices
zZReH HARS €]
USD1,840,000 January 2020 Buy at price ranging from USD74.43 to USD76.12
1,840,000 37T 20204 1 A NF7443FETTET76.12FE T2 EREA
2018 2018
Notional amount Period Prices
zHan HARS =
USD6,460,000 January 2019 Sell at price ranging from USD460 to USD470

6,460,000 37T 20194 1 A NFA460ETE4T0ETZBREE
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46. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. TTEMBIR(Z)
(Continued)
B. Non-deliverable cross currency interest swap — B. AURHXNEHFFEHHEH -
net settlement RHESE
2019 2019
Notional amount Period Rates
ZHREH i Ex
USD169,000,000 7 January 2019 to HK$ to USD ranging from 7.7677 to 7.8271
31 May 2022

Floating rate of 1 month HIBOR + 3.65% to 1
month HIBOR + 3.67% or LIBOR Flat to LIBOR
+ 3.5%
169,000,000 7T 2019F1 A7HZE BILHETLN T 7.7677 £7.8271
202245 H31H

FBHEEABTBRITRARTE +3.65% =1 1E
ABBRITRIERE +3.67% i ZIRTTR FIF
BFFEMBERITRFEFE +3.50%
2018 2018

Notional amount

£33

USD200,500,000 5 January 2018 to HK$ to USD ranging from 7.80 to 7.83
31 May 2022
Floating rate of 1 month LIBOR + 3.50% to 1
month HIBOR + 2.99% or 1 month HIBOR +
3.65% or 1 month HIBOR + 3.70%
200,500,000 37T 20181 H5H=E BILHETN T 7.80E7.83
202245 H31H
FEAEAE A mBERITRIERF L +3.50% £ 1 &
RAEBRITRFENRB +2.99% 2 1 8 A BB IRTT
A4 2 +3.65% 3k 1 il A BB RITRIFEFE
+3.70%
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46. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. fTEMBIR(Z)
(Continued)
C. Foreign exchange option — net settlement C. HrsHiE —HHPHE
2019 2019
Notional amount Period Exchange rates
Z2BREeH ¥R Ex
USD540,000,000 18 May 2020 to USD to HK$ at rates of 7.7495 to 7.851
18 November 2020
540,000,000 & 7T 202065 H18HE  EHBTERNTF7.7495ZF7.851
2020411 A 18 H
2018 2018
Notional amount Period Exchange rates
zEen R i:: 3
USD140,000,000 25 June 2018 to USD to HKS$ at rates of 7.75
27 June 2020
140,000,000 % 7T 201866 H25HZE ETHABTEXT.75

20204 6 H 27 H

D. Foreign exchange range forward rates — net D. MHEZEHEH — BHTEHE
settlement
2018 2018
Notional amount Period Exchange rates
ZBREeH ¥R Ex
UsD20,000,000 9 October 2018 to USD to RMB at rates ranging from 6.9470 to
9 October 2019 6.9520
20,000,000 & 7T 2018510 H9HZE  ETHARMKEEF6.9470%F6.9520

2019410 H9 H

E. Interest rate cap E. FIELR
2018 2018
Notional amount Period Interest rates
£t 34 L] Ex
UsD120,000,000 1 September 2020 Interest rate cap at 2.65%

120,000,000 % 7T 20209 H1H & LR 2.65%
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47. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 47. TEPMEESERMEEBACESNR
LIABILITIES SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING BE
AGREEMENTS

AEBEE TRITRFE TEERERERAR
TETAEREzEFRHA(ERE
BENTETABEHBZDREZITE
X5 WETETARGEMBARREK
MY EAEEE  ARERERARITET
B gthael B RRNED EHE
BREFAZMRT - T BREMEEE - &
AEERETEEIFE LA THRIT R
M- AEHEER S -

The Group has entered certain derivative transactions
that are covered by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association Master Netting Agreements (“ISDA
Agreements”) signed with various banks. These derivative
instruments are not offset in the consolidated statement
of financial position as the ISDA Agreements are in place
with a right of set off only in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy so that the Group currently has no legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts.

MBEEZEELH  IRTEFELR
BERIAUAZBE -

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangement and similar arrangements.

As at 31 December 2019

B F2019F 12531 H

Gross Net
amounts of amounts of
recognised financial

financial assets

liabilities presented

Gross set off in the in the
amounts of consolidated consolidated
recognised statement of statement of
financial financial financial
assets position position
RGEMBRA RESHBERKR

Bz F=HESNEHE FPETH
HMEEESEE RUBAREE MBRERR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Derivative financial assets ~ $T4 BB &E 6,426 - 6,426
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47. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 47.

LIABILITIES SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING
AGREEMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements by counterparty.

As at 31 December 2019

Net

amounts
presented

in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position

2 ERE
MR &R
ZBH
HK$°000
FET

Counterparty C R%7C 6,426

TEMERERMBARZENRR
BE(&)

MBRBEZARTEFRLERR S
ZRUL L -

#F2019F 12H31H

Related
amounts not
set off in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position —
Derivative
financial Net
instruments amount
REEFREME
RRARIERZ
HREHE —
fTEMBIAR
HK$°000 HK$°000
F#EiT FET

(830) 5,596
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47. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 47. TEPMEESERMEEBACESNR
LIABILITIES SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING BE(E)

AGREEMENTS (Continued)

MBBECHHETH - AIRITEFER
PE R IR B -

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangement and similar arrangements.

B F2019F 12H31H

As at 31 December 2019

Gross Net
amounts of amounts of
recognised financial

financial liabilities

assets presented

Gross set off in the in the
amounts of consolidated consolidated
recognised statement of statement of
financial financial financial
liabilities position position
RGEHBRL RESHBRR

ERRBZHBERE RPEHHER FRPEATHME
fEE RHEIEESH =R p:t |
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FET FET
Derivative financial liabilities #7481 8 & 830 - 830

Financial assets subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements by counterparty.

MBEEZARATEFRLERR S
ZHEUL L -

As at 31 December 2019 EFE2019F 12531 H

Related

amounts not

Net set off in the

amounts consolidated

presented statement of

in the financial

consolidated position —

statement of Derivative
financial financial Net
position instruments amount

RAERE

MBI RIEH

ENEHFEME ZHHREHE —

LU ] ] fTEMBIAR
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TFRETT TF#ET TF#EIT
Counterparty C RHPHC 830 (830) -
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47. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 47. EMBRERMBARZERR
LIABILITIES SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING BE(4)

AGREEMENTS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018 ElZ 2018 1231 H

Gross Net
amounts of amounts of
recognised financial

financial assets
liabilities presented
Gross set off in the in the
amounts of consolidated consolidated
recognised statement of statement of
financial financial financial
assets position position
RiFEBBHRR RESMBARR
ERRCHBE RPEENEE KPBEROTB
ERE RUBAERSE BETH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Derivative financial assets  $T4 & EE 2,654 = 2,654
Financial assets subject to enforceable master netting R EEZAHITEFRALHERER S H
arrangements and similar agreements by counterparty. ZHEUZHE -
As at 31 December 2018 B ZE20184F 1231 H
Related
amounts not
Net set off in the
amounts consolidated
presented statement of
in the financial
consolidated position —
statement of Derivative
financial financial Net
position instruments amount
RNEESZE
B ISR R R 8H
2IEFETH IS —
MRS TR 2 558 PTHEMB T A FER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FEIT FAET
Counterparty A R577 A 392 (392) —
Counterparty B R577B 2,262 (2,262) pe
Total #E 2,654 (2,654) —
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47. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 47. GTEMEBEERMBEARZESR
LIABILITIES SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING t: 1€-))
AGREEMENTS (Continued)
Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master MBEECHETH AT EFHEL
netting arrangement and similar arrangements. BE R FALIZLHE -
As at 31 December 2018 AZE20184 12431 H
Gross Net
amounts of amounts of
recognised financial
financial liabilities
assets presented
Gross set off in the in the
amounts of consolidated consolidated
recognised statement of statement of
financial financial financial
liabilities position position
- RESHBIRRN RS BRI
EERUBE RPEHHNEE XPETHIB
B RUBEELERE BfEFHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Derivative financial liabilities {74 A& 9,912 — 9,912
Financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting BB NTEEELHER S A
arrangements and similar agreements by counterparty. 2RI EHE o
As at 31 December 2018 B Z 20184 12 H31 A
Related
amounts not
Net set off in the
amounts consolidated
presented statement of
in the financial
consolidated position —
statement of Derivative
financial financial Net
position instruments amount
RBIUELZE
B F AR L 3R 4 8
SHEGABE  ZHEMSE — B
RSLTR 2 F 58 MTEMBIA Pt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Counterparty A RE5HA 2,829 (392) 2,437
Counterparty B R5HB 7,083 (2,262) 4,821
Total #ET 9,912 (2,654) 7,258
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INSTRUMENTS

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The following gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

As at 31 December 2019, derivative financial instruments
comprise cross currency swap, commodities swaps, foreign
exchange option and interest rate swaps, are measured
at fair values at the end of the reporting period at Level
2 fair value hierarchy. No further disclosures on valuation
techniques and key inputs are provided as the directors
of the Company consider that the amount of derivative
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period is
insignificant.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

48.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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48. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

MBIAZATEIE

BEFHEEUATFEABEZFREM
BERERMBARZLFE

RBEHR  ETAKEZMBEER
MBBABTIARATFEE - U TEIE
A EENEMBEERMBRESZ
RPEERRAFEB 2 GERTEE
ABR)  URAFEFEZAFER
BAMN MR A FEAERAZIEZA
BEEREIB(E-—REF=4) -

s FRARFEAEDNEHREER
BEREBRMSTHHRZERCR
RHEB)FAFH

s FRAFEMAENAEEXAME
ZEZ(NER)REROTERE
R)AERBARBEASL - M
AF— R FTRERERIN - &

s  FERAHEMENABREIIR
BABRMSHEE(BIBERHA
B2 EERBERARE G
ERMAFL -

HE2019F12 A31 B It STERBKT
BERERINE®EH - pEmigHl - INE
HRE R A RiE 8 - RRERIRIZE A FE
BEE_REABEE  ARAES
RAERFERRNITETBETAZ 5
WAER  BULHE— PR TR
REZHAEIE o

ARAEFRBREAMHREDRR
ZHBEERYGE EEEERLAT
% -



Notes to the Consolidated

=PAN £ 2
iRE ISR M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2019
EE2019F 12 31 HILFZE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of the financial position
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

Annual Report 2019

Financial Statements

49. ERFZMBIKRER

AR

“E-NEFR

RBERREEARB M BARRKZ

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Non-current assets EMBEE
Investment in a subsidiary WEMB AR - —
Deposits paid BEffEe 659,188 206,895
659,188 206,895
Current assets mBN & EE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) — FEURHI B A &) 2 FIB (K1) 4,620,461 5,560,552
Other debtors, deposits and Hih e WBRF ~ & MFER
prepayment FRIA 17,487 22,809
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIRE 68,592 8,198
Derivative financial instruments PIHEMBETA 180 1,920
4,706,720 5,593,479
Current liabilities mEBE
Other creditors and accrued charges H b FE R BR RN FEET B A 6,983 9,020
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT B A B 2 FRIE 995,539 1,059,460
Amount due to a joint venture JER —KE &3 FIA - 2,967
Borrowings — repayable within one Bk — AR —FAEE
year 1,414,704 542,090
2,417,226 1,613,537
Net current assets mEEEFE 2,289,494 3,979,942
Total assets less current liabilities wEERRSAR 2,948,682 4,186,837
Capital and reserves & 7R % e
Share capital fil’e 146,812 146,812
Reserves i 1,450,034 1,685,825
Total equity BREES 1,596,846 1,832,637
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Borrowings — repayable over one year {3k — AR —FEEE 1,351,836 2,354,200
2,948,682 4,186,837

Note: The balances are presented as current assets as the
directors of the Company expect the balances will be
recovered within twelve months and the relevant subsidiaries
have the capabilities to repay the outstanding balances in
full.

=

HRARBESEHRER12EAR
Yoo igesk - RARRAMT B A A AE
EHEEREEEL  BREMZ

213
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49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 49. FXLFRZHMBRAERE)
COMPANY (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves: KRR E2ES

Contribution Capital
Share Share Exchange surplus  redemption Retained

capital premium reserve accounts reserve profits

k% BhiER EfER  BARBE ESROGE REEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AL

At 1 January 2018 R2018%F1A1H 147,303 1,423,025 (20,771) 1,667 737 439,638 1,991,599
Loss for the year EREiE - - - - - (81,301) (81,301)
Exchange difference REERGIREEELE

arising on translation to RER

presentation currency - - (69,864) - - - (69,864)

Total comprehensive expense N2 E Xtz

for the year - - (69,864) - - (81,301) (151,165)
Repurchase of ordinary R LER

shares (491) (7,306) = = 491 (491) (7,797)
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12 431 R 146,812 1,416,719 (90,635) 1,667 1,228 357,846 1,832,637
Loss for the year gk - - - - - (224,802) (224,802)
Exchange difference REERFIREEELE

arising on translation to RER

presentation currency - - (10,989) - - - (10,989)

Total comprehensive expense N2 E Xt

for the year - - (10,989) - - (224,802) (235,791)
M3 December 2019 R2019%12F31A UG8 145719 (101624 1,667 1228 13304 159846
Note: The application of new and amendments to HKFRSs in the Hiet - RAFEEREBHG REBMB®RE

current year has had no material impact on the Company’s ERHEETRE AR QRN EXERAR
financial position as at the date of initial application except MBS EERNTE -
for the adjustment is related to the remeasurement of B EIBIR A S %R EERIE 5%
financial assets subject to ECL under HKFRS 9. BN ENATEHEERENITE

EERR -
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50. EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The outbreak in late December 2019 of the novel
coronavirus, has adversely impacted global economic
activity in the period subsequent to the reporting date.
Given the widespread nature of the outbreak, the relative
impact to the Group’s operation cannot be reliably
quantified or estimated as at the date of this report. The
Company continues to closely monitor the situation.

Other than this and matters outlined in these financial
statements, there have been no matters that have occurred
subsequent to the reporting date which have significantly
affected, or may significantly affect the Group’s operations,
results or state of affairs in future years.

50.

BEAN&ER

AWk E = R2019F12 A ~ A 18
B HREHEN —BRREARNZ 2K
BEBELETTAFE - EREBENE
e BEAREH  MEXTSEHE
b harE AEBEBEENTE - K
NEISHRETERABIBNR -

B Lt DA S DA Bo AN B 765 3 o5 7R Bt B 55
B RBESARTEXEEMNSHRER
BT EAREARAREENEE
RENERNER -
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Financial Summary

M5 E

RESULTS E 3|

For the year ended 31 December

HE12A3 HILEE
2016 2017 2018
(Note)
(Hizt)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FETL FETL FET F#TT
Revenue N 15,514,990 15,700,406 22,058,618 30,007,805 = 27,791,913
Profit before taxation BRETADE R 795,755 829,341 852,466 698,671 627,215
Taxation charge BB (36,783) (79,181) (27,663) (28,215) (20,105)
Profit for the year FEREF 758,972 750,160 824,803 670,456 607,110
Attributable to; &1 :
Owners of the Company AREHEEA 756,643 749,397 835,631 759,042 642,175
Non-controlling interests JEE R 2,329 763 (10,828) (88,586) (35,065)
758,972 750,160 824,803 670,456 607,110
Earnings per share BREM
Basic (in HK dollars) BER(ETL) 0.51 0.51 0.57 0.52 0.44
Diluted (in HK dollars) EE(BT) 0.51 N/AT R N/ATNiE A N/AT & A N/AFER
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SEREE
At 31 December
®12A31H
2017
(Note)
(Hi)
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET F#TT
Total assets BB E 11,404,965 12,544,128 14,337,092 16,172,120 16,672,186
Total liabilities waE (6,016,349) (6,603,183 (7,352,544) (8,730,238)  (8,698,062)

5,388,616 5,940,945 6,984,548 7,441,882 7,974,124

Equity attributable to owners of  ANA Al Z #EH AJE

the Company S 5,350,423 5,857,227 6,915,350 7,465,486 8,000,678
Non-controlling interests PR 38,193 83,718 69,198 (23,604) (35,554)

5,388,616 5,940,945 6,984,548 7,441,882 7,974,124

Note: The amounts for the year ended 31 December 2019 were Kl : HE2019F 12 A1 ALEFEMNSE IR
presented upon the application of HKFRS 16, which the AR REEREI6HREES - M

comparative financial information was not restated. LB AR AR ES
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